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TRENTON BOARD OF EDUCATION 
"Children come first, Los niiios son primero " 

Francisco Duran 
Superintendent of Schoo 1s 
609.656.5454· 609.989.2682 fax 
fduran@trenton.k12.nj.us 

November 30, 2012 

Members, Board of Education 
City of Trenton School District 
County of Mercer, New Jersey 

Dear Board Members and Constituents: 

Jayne S. Howard 
Business Administrator/Board Secretary 

609-656-5464 .. 609-989-2860 fax 
jhoward@trenton.k12.nj.us 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Trenton School District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, 
is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and completeness and fairness of the 
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the District. To the best of our knowledge and 
belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to 
present fairly the fmancial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund information at June 30,2012 and the respective changes in fmancial position and cash 
flows for the year ended June 30, 2012. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of 
the District's fmancial activities have been included. 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in four sections: Introductory, Financial, Statistical and 
Single Audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter (designed to complement Management's 
Discussion and Analysis and should be read in conjunction with it), the District's organizational chart, list of 
principal officials, consultants, independent auditor and advisors and the certificate of excellence in fmancial 
reporting. The fmancial section includes the basic fmancial statements and related footnotes, as well as the auditors' 
report thereon and Management's Discussion and Analysis of the fmancial statements (immediately following the 
Independent Auditors' Report). The statistical section includes selected fmancial and demographic information, 
generally presented on a multi-year basis and is unaudited. The District is required to undergo an annual single 
audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and the U.S. Office of 
Management and Budget Circular A-B3, "Audits of State, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations," and 
the State Treasury Circular Letter 04-04-0MB, "Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants 
and State Aid Payments." Information related to this single audit, including the auditors' reports on internal control 
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations and fmdings and recommendations, is included in the single 
audit section of this report. 

1. Reporting Entity and Its Services 
The Trenton School District is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the GASB. All funds 
of the District and the government-wide fmancial statements are included in this report. The Trenton Board of 
Education and all its schools constitute the District's reporting entity. 

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate for grade levels Pre-K through 12. These 
services include regular, bilingual, special education, alternative and vocational education. The District completed 
the 2011-2012 fiscal year with an average daily enrollment of 11,353 students, which is 366 students more than the 
previous year's average daily enrollment. The following details the change in the student enrollment of the District 
over the last ten years: 
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Fiscal 
Year 
2012 
2011 
2010 
2009 
2008 
2007 
2006 
2005 
2004 
2003 

AVERAGE DAILY ENROLLMENT 

Student 
Enrollment 

11,353 
10,987 
11,662 
11,539 
11,636 
11,280 
12,689 
12,940 
13,389 
13,475 

Percent Change 
Increase! 

(Decrease) 
3.22% 

(5.78%) 
5.00% 

(0.83%) 
4.66% 

(11.10%) 
(1.94%) 
(3.35%) 
(0.64%) 
7.23% 

The District expects future enrollment to remain relatively consistent over the next few years based on recent 
history. 

2. Economic Condition and Outlook 
Government forms the single largest sector in Trenton. Other significant economic areas include manufacturing, 
trade, and services. Trenton's set of unique circumstances contributes to its continued growth: the city benefits from 
the spill-over of high technology industries and research centers locating along the Route 1 corridor; land costs, 
rents and taxes in Trenton are a fraction of those in New York City, yet Trenton remains an acceptable commute for 
much of the Northeast Corridor, and commitment by state and local government is high. 

Trenton was the recipient of a $2.3 million (M) Economic Development Administration grant made available to help 
in the development of the Hill Complex in the Trenton enterprise zone. 

The $46M Trenton train station renovation attracted downtown and regional developments, including new office 
buildings and commercial projects. 

Trenton Public Schools recently hired a firm to provide school enrollment projections, District boundary analysis, 
geo-coding, and mapping services. The goal of the firm was to gather US census data, birth data, and relevant 
demographic information to calculate the number of schoolchildren who are anticipated to attend each of the grades 
within the school district. They reviewed historic and current residential development trends, including proposed 
development and redevelopment. They also assessed the impact of these trends on future enrollment using standard 
land use planning methodologies and demographic multipliers in determining the impact of this growth and 
development on enrollment. 

The Trenton Public Schools is a comprehensive community public school district serving students in Pre-K through 
twelfth grade from Trenton, in Mercer County, New Jersey, United States. The District has seventeen (17) 
elementary schools, two (2) middle schools (1 regular and 1 alternative) and three (3) high schools (2 regular and 1 
alternative). The schools are housed in twenty-two (22) owned buildings. The District was formerly one of the 
thirty-one (31) Abbott Districts statewide. The District is classified by the New Jersey Department of Education as 
being in District factor Group "A", the lowest of eight groupings. District Factor Groups organize districts statewide 
to allow comparison by common socioeconomic characteristics of the local districts. 
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The age and estimated capacity of the school buildings are as follows: 

Location 

1. Cadwalader Elementary 
2. Columbus Elementary 
3. Franklin Elementary 
4. Grant Elementary 
5. Gregory Elementary 
6. HedgepethlWiliiams 
7. P.J. Hill Elementary 
8. Jefferson Elementary 
9. Joyce Kilmer Elementary 
10. Martin Luther King 
11. Monument Elementary 
12. Mott Elementary 
13. Parker Elementary 
14. Robbins Elementary 
15. Stokes Elementary 
16. Washington Elementary 
17. Wilson Elementary 
18. Grace Dunn Middle 
19. MunozIRivera Alternative 

Middle 
20. Trenton Central High School 

West 
21. Daylight Twilight High School 
22. Trenton Central High School 

Main 

Trenton Board of Education 
District Facilities 2011 - 2012 

Address 

501 Edgewood Ave 08618 
1200 Brunswick Ave. 08638 
200 William St. 08610 
159 N. Clinton Ave. 08609 
500 Rutherford Ave. 08618 
301 Gladstone Ave. 08629 
1010 E. State St. 08609 
1 Whittlesey Rd. 08638 
1300 Stuyvesant Ave. 08618 
401-411 Brunswick Ave. 08638 
145 Pennington Ave. 08618 
45 Stokely Ave. 08611 
800 S. Warren St. 08611 
283 Tyler st. 08609 
915 Parkside Ave. 08618 
331 Emory Ave. 08611 
175 Girard Ave. 08638 
401 Dayton St. 08610 
400 N. Montgomery St. 08611 

1001 West State St. 08618 

135 E. Hanover St. 08609 
400 Chambers St. 08629 

Year Estimated Capacity 

1961 346 
2004 308 
1913 405 

1933/66 550 
1985 480 
1939 925 

1977/96 700 
1973 400 
2005 730 
2009 730 
1954 450 

1984/2005 406 
1940/55/07 505 

1907175 226 
1954 416 
1938 349 

1960172 445 
1925 669 

1923/84 523 

1926/55 630 

2008 500 
1928/56 2,200 

Trenton continues to be in the midst of both an economic renaissance, with new housing and commercial 
development across the city, and a demographic shift, as our city's Latino and other immigrant populations rapidly 
increase. The District's Early Childhood Program continues to be cited as an exemplary educational aid attracting 
public attention. 

New Jersey Schools Development Authority (NJSDA) manages our Funded Construction Program. NJSDA has 
already expended to date over $250M for the District construction program. All other renovations are currently on 
hold. 

The new schools consist of $24M for Kilmer Elementary, $20M for Columbus Elementary School, both of which 
opened in September 2006, $15M for Parker Elementary School which opened in September 2007, $39M for 
Daylight/Twilight High School which opened September 2008 and $35M Martin Luther King Junior School which 
opened in March 2010. 

The three (3) projects that are currently on hold are the new Trenton Early Childhood Center with a construction 
working estimate of $l1M, the new Roebling Elementary School with a construction estimate of $70M, as well as 
the new Trenton Central High School estimated at $149M. 

In the 2011-2012 school year, TBOE paid $23,361,258 in tuition payments to six (6) charter schools with an 
enrollment of 1,515. The charter schools were as follows: Emily Fischer, Foundation, International, Pace, Paul 
Robeson and Village Charter. Capital Prep Charter School and Trenton Community Charter School were closed in 
June and July 2011, respectively. 
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3. Initiatives 
With its main focus on the academic achievement of all students, the Trenton Public Schools, administration and 
staff continue to work to close the achievement gap and to increase rigor in the classroom across all grade levels. 

Curriculum review, revision, alignment and assessment are on-going throughout the year. Professional development 
and common staff planning time is one of the avenues by which the learning process is enhanced. As a result of the 
additional funding awarded the district student computers were purchased throughout the district and the district also 
purchased smart boards for all middle school math classrooms. 

Recognizing that success is relative but measureable, the District continues to emphasize staff professional 
development and offer students extended opportunities to improve. Staff avail themselves to in-service training 
relating to Reading Recovery, TERC Investigation, and numerous reading and writing workshops. Students have 
resources in the way of First in Math, Read 180, Summer School as well as SES private provider services. 

The District had the following instructional initiatives in the 2011-2012 school year: 
• Intensive early literacy program grades k-3 
• Balanced literacy across grades k -12 
• Inquiry based mathematics program aligned to the NJCCS for grades k-12 
• Continuous improvement process to be used routinely to analyze district and state assessments that will 

drive instruction for students 
• District-wide and school-based Professional Learning Program (PLC) to improve teacher mastery of the 

New Jersey Core Curriculum Content Standards in grades k-12. 
• Programs to increase parental involvement in the education of their children. 

At the elementary level, the district utilized reading recovery teachers to work with students in grades k-l. 

At the middle school level, staff continued to work on professional development and receive training in content­
specific areas while working to maximize the use of block scheduling. 

The High School continues to offer academic enhancement opportunities after school and on the weekends. It offers 
a library of resources available to all students. All major subject area curricula have been reviewed, and where 
needed, better aligned to the NJ Core Curriculum Content Standards. 

Extensive data analyses will continue to play an important role in the District's decision-making as it strives to close 
the academic achievement gaps. 

We will continue to support high quality preschool, English language learners and bilingual programs. We also 
continue to support the enhancement of the student information system, which serves as the infrastructure for a data­
driven instructional management approach. 

4. Accomplishments 
The 2011-2012 school year continued a trend of marked achievements by staff and students. Some of the 
accomplishments and service efforts are as follows; 

• District-wide (NJASK) 
3rd Grade 
5th Grade 

Math 
3.7% 
1.6% 

HSP A Score increases from the previous year: 
Literacy 

Daylight Twilight 25% 

TCHSM 
TCHSW 

Math 
17% 
16% 

• Successfully opened and staffed a k-8 school in one month due to the late closing of one of our Charter 
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schools in mid July 2011. 

• After many years of discussions and planning, the Alternative middle school program opened its doors on 
September 1, 201l. The program was implemented to accommodate 6th

, 7th and 8th grade students with 
behavioral difficulties and forty- five day placements when suspended or while awaiting placements by the 
child study teams. 

• Robotics Team at the high school took part in a championship competition at the New Jersey Institute of 
Technology. 

• The National School Lunch Program (NSLP) is a federally assisted meal program operating in public, 
nonprofit and private schools. Trenton's student participation and eligibility for free and reduced lunch 
applications increased by 1,865 students, a 12% over the 2010-2011 school year. 

• The District utilized a School Resource Officer, through a shared service inter-local agreement. This 
officer, who was located in the high school, has been a positive addition to the staff and has been an 
invaluable resource to improving the safety and security in the high school. 

• Trenton High School seniors are pursuing post-secondary education at some of the most prestigious 
institutions in the country. There are also forty-six student athletes receiving scholarships in football, 
tennis, basketball, baseball, soccer and wrestling. 

• The District gave twenty-three high school students scholarship funding in various amounts. 

5. Service Efforts 
• Princeton University currently offers tutoring to our students under the direction of the curriculum 

department. The program formerly was affiliated with the African American studies department at 
Princeton and it currently exists as a tutoring program. Some of the student volunteers plan to pursue a 
career in education, while other students are passionate about making a difference. 

• Mercer Outpatient Services of Catholic Charities offers a substance abuse after school program at Robbins 
School. 

• Trenton Chambers High School offers a Tornado Pride incentive program. The program rewards good 
citizenship, academic excellence, school attendance and positive behavior. 

• In May 2012, the Mayor appointed two first time Board members Justin Torres and Gerald Truehart and 
reappointed two Board members Denise Millington and Marisol Ovalles. Toby Sanders was reappointed 
the President of the Trenton Board of Education. The Board continues to actively pursue professional 
development through the NJSBA and also through use of Board of Education consultant and 
administration. 

6. Awards 
• The International Association of School Business Officials (ASBO) awarded a Certificate of Excellence in 

Financial Reporting to the District for its comprehensive annual fmancial report for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2011. This was the first year that the District has applied and received this prestigious award. In 
order to be awarded this certificate, the District published an easily readable and efficiently organized 
comprehensive annual fmancial report. This report satisfied both accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States and applicable legal requirements. 

The Certificate is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current comprehensive annual 
fmancial report continues to meet the Programs' requirements and we are submitting it to ASBO to 
determine its eligibility for the fiscal year 2011-2012 certificate. 

• Atlantic Associates, in conjunction with the New Jersey School Boards Association Insurance Group, 
presented the Board with the 2011-2012 Safety Grant Award in the amount of $82,255. The District won 
the award by promoting workplace safety. 
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7. Major Operational or Financial Concerns 
In the 2008-2009 school year, a new funding formula was implemented to ensure that all children in all communities 
have the opportunity to succeed. A challenge for the District is continuing its concerted effort to maintain programs 
that address the needs of all of its students in light of the State's funding for both the current school year and perhaps 
the next several fiscal years based on reduced funding. During the 2011-2012 school year, the District state aid was 
increased by $12,708,171. 

School-based budgets likely will be maintenance budgets that continue current year expenditures, adjusted for the 
yearly estimated percentage increases and realignment of staff to students. We are currently experiencing a 
significant increase in kindergarten students that may be a direct result of the increased enrollment of pre-school 
students. 

As a public entity with heavy reliance on federal and state aid for its operations, there are always concerns over 
operational funding. The State's tighter purse strings on school funding statewide forces difficult decisions to be 
made locally. While the Trenton Board of Education has been adept at seeking alternative sources of revenues to 
mitigate its reliance on state dollars, it is still vulnerable to the vagaries of government decision making. 

The District has continued to manage its fund balance while the City has not increased its tax levy in over fifteen 
years. 

8. Significant Budget Variance or Budget Modifications 
During the year, operational budget variations arise and require attention. Areas most affected are vacancies, staff 
retirements, and reassignment changes in student tuition placements and related transportation. 

As the state grapples with its budget, the District will continue to develop responsible, comprehensive school 
budgets and expect further belt-tightening measures from the State. 

9. Internal Control 
Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal control designed to ensure that 
the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are 
compiled to allow for the preparation of fmancial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles in the United States (GAAP). Internal control is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, 
assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a 
control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires 
estimates and judgments by management. 

As a recipient of federal awards and state fmancial assistance, the District is also responsible for ensuring that 
adequate internal control is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those 
programs. Internal control is also subject to periodic evaluation by District management. 

As part of the District's single audit, tests are made to determine the adequacy of internal control including that 
portion related to federal awards and state fmancial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the District has 
complied with applicable laws and regulations. 

10. Budgetary Controls 
In addition to internal control, the District maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls 
is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget. Annual appropriated 
budgets are adopted for the general fund and the special revenue fund. Project-length budgets are approved for the 
capital improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund. The fmal budget amount as amended for the fiscal 
year is reflected in the fmancial section. 

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item basis. Open 
encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as re-appropriations of fund balance in the subsequent 
year. Those amounts to be re-appropriated are reported as reservations of fund balance at June 30, 2012. 
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I 1. Accounting SYstems and Reports 
The District's accounting records reflect generally accepted accounting principles in the United States, as 
promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASH). The accounting system of the District is 
organized on the basis of Ilmds. These funds are explained in "Notes to Basic Financial Statements," Note 1. 

12. Cash Management 
The investment policy of the District is guided in large pan by stare statute as detailed in "Notes to Financial 
Statements,U Note 3. The District has adopttld a cash management plan which requires it to deposit public funds in 
public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Govemmental Unit Deposit Protection Act 
("GUDPA"). 

GUDPA was enacted in 1970 (0 protect Governmental Units !l'om a loss of funds on deposit with a fhiled banking 
institution in New Jersey. The law requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositOries 
located in New Jersey, \vhere the funds are secured in accordance with the Act. 

13. Other lnformation 
State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountanlS or registered municipal 
accountants. The accounting I1rm of \\!iss & Company \\'a$ re-appointed by the Board to conduct thL~ annual audit 
for the 2011-2012 school year. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was 
designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and the relat.ed OMS Circular A-
13] and State Treasury Circular Letter 04-04-0MB. The auditors' report on the basic financial statements and 
combined and individual fund statements and schedules is included in the financial section of this report. The 
auditors· reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit section of this rcp0l1, 

14. AckllO\"'Jedgmen ts 
We would like to express ollr appreciation 10 the members of the Trenton School Board for their concern in 
providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the school district and thereby contributing their full 
support to the development and maintenance of our financial operation. The preparation of this report could not 
have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of our financiul and accounting start: 

Respectfully submitted, 

~ ~-- ~ J /-i;VVtJtcl 
Jayne S. Howard 

Business Administrator / Board Secretary 

---------_._._ .... _--_.-._._-_. __ ._------------_. __ ._-------_._._-----
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Trenton School District 
Trenton, New Jersey 

Roster of Officials 

June 30, 2012 

Members of the Board of Education 
Rev. Toby Sanders, President 

Ms. Sasa Olessi Montano, Vice President 

Ms. Missy Balmir (resigned 112/12) 

Ms. Denise Millington (appointed 1/6/12) 

Ms. Marisol Ovalles (appointed 11121111, resigned 5/22/12) 

Mr. Jason Redd 

Mr. Waldemar Ronquillo (appointed 10/11/11, resigned 10/19/11) 

Dr. Jane Rosenbaum 

Mr. Donald o. Shelton (not reappointed) 

Ms. Nicola Tatum 

Ms. Mary Taylor-Hayes 

Ms. Justine Torres (appointed 6/25/12) 

Mr. Gerald Truehart (appointed 5/16/12) 

Mr. Algernon Ward, Jr. (resigned appx. 8/15/11) 

Other Officials 
Mr. Francisco Duran, Superintendent of Schools (effective 7/1112) 
Mr. Raymond Broach, Interim Superintendent of Schools (through 6/30/12) 
Ms. Jayne S. Howard, Business AdministratorlBoard Secretary 

Term 
Expires 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2014 

2013 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2015 

Ms. Deborah Ward, Interim Executive Director of Management Information Systems 
Ms. Joyce Payne, Interim Executive Director of Curriculum 
Kathleen Smallwood-Johnson, Esq., Executive Director of Human Resources, 

Negotiations, and Legal Affairs 
Ms. Pearl Charatz, Interim Executive Director of Special Education 
Ms. Priscilla Dawson, Ed. D., Executive Director of Turn Around Schools 
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Trenton School District 
Trenton, New Jersey 

Consultants, Independent Auditors and Advisors 

Independent Auditors 

Wiss & Company, LLP 
485C Route 1 South 

Suite 250 
Iselin, NJ 08830-0471 

Attorney 

Parker McCay, P .A. 
Carl L. Tanksley, Jr. 
1009 Lenox Drive 

Building 4 E, Suite 102A 
Lawrenceville, NJ 08648 

Official Depositories 

New Jersey Cash Management 
Harborside Financial Center, Plaza 2 
Jersey City, New Jersey 07311-3977 

Bank of America 
1125 Route 22 West 

Bridgewater, New Jersey 08807 

Wells Fargo Bank 
550 Broad Street 

Newark, New Jersey 07102 

Official Newspaper 
The Trenton Times 
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Association of School Business Officials International 
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President 

John D. Musso, CAE, RSBA 
Executive Director 
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T~T 
WISS 
ACCOUN T ANTS 
CONSULT ANTS 

Honorable President and 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Members of the Board of Education 
Trenton School District 
County of Mercer, Trenton, New Jersey 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, 
the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the Trenton School District in the County of Mercer, State of New Jersey 
(the "District"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise 
the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the District's management. Our responsibility is to 
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School 
Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey; and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards and requirements require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over 
financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the District's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such 
opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all 
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information 
of the District as of June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position and, 
where applicable, cash flows, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
November 30, 2012 on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be 
considered in assessing the results of our audit. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis, the schedule of funding progress, the schedule of 
employer contributions and budgetary comparison information as found in the table of 
contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, 
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We 
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements 
that collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements. The accompanying 
supplementary information, which consists of the combining and individual fund 
financial statements, school-level schedules and schedules of expenditures of federal 
awards and state financial assistance, as required by U.S. Office of Management and 
Budget Circular A-I33, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations and New Jersey OMB's Circular 04-04, Single Audit Policy for Recipients 
of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid, respectively are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is 
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fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a 
whole. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements 
that collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements. The accompanying 
other information, such as the introductory and statistical sections are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

November 30, 2012 
Iselin, N ew Jersey 

David J. Gannon 
Licensed Public School Accountant 

No. 2305 

uI~~~dO 
WISS & COMPANY, LLP 
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Required Supplementary Information 
Part I 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 



Trenton School District 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Year ended June 30, 2012 
(Unaudited) 

This section of the Trenton School District's (the "District") Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report presents our discussion and analysis of the District's financial performance during the 
fiscal year that ended on June 30, 2012. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter at 
the front of this report and the District's financial statements, which immediately follow this 
section. 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is Required Supplementary Information 
specified in the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic. 
Financial Statements-Management's Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments. 
Certain comparative information between the current year and the prior year is presented in the 
MD&A. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District's basic 
financial statements. The District's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) 
Government-wide financial statements, 2) Fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic 
financial statements. This report also contains supplementary information in addition to the 
basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed 
to provide readers with a broad overview of the District's finances, in a manner similar to a 
private-sector business. 

The statement of net assets (A-I) presents information on all of the assets and liabilities of the 
District, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or 
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the 
District is improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities (A-2) presents information showing how the net assets of the District 
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in 
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g. earned but unused vacation leave). 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 24-25 of this report. 
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Fund Financial Statements 

A fund is a group of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have 
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other state and local 
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements. All of the funds of the District can be divided into three categories: 
governmental funds, enterprise funds, and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, 
unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus 
on the near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of 
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in 
evaluating the District's near-term financing requirements. 

Because of the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide 
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds 
with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial 
statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the District's 
near-term financing decision. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental 
fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation 
to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The District maintains three individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately 
in the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances for the general fund, special revenue fund and the 
capital projects fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. Individual fund data for 
each school following school based budgeting is also provided in the general fund detail 
statements elsewhere in this report. 

These funds, with the exception of the capital projects fund, utilize a legally adopted annual 
budget. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the general fund and special 
revenue fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 26-28 of this report. 

Proprietary fund. The District maintains one proprietary fund type, an enterprise fund. The 
enterprise fund is used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner 
similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the District is that the costs of 
providing goods or services be financed through user charges. The food services enterprise fund 
provides for the operation of food services in all schools within the District. The enterprise fund 
has been included within business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 29-31 of this report. 
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Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties 
outside the governmental entity. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide 
financial statement because the resources of those funds are not available to support the District's 
own programs. 

The District uses trust and agency funds to account for resources held for student activities and 
groups and for payroll transactions. The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found 
on pages 32-33 of this report. 

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential 
for a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial 
statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 34-60 of this 
report. 

Other information. The schedule of funding progress and schedule of employer contributions 
related to the District's post-employment retirement healthcare benefit plan are presented 
immediately following the notes to the basic financial statements and can be found on pages 61-
62 of this report. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with governmental 
and enterprise funds are presented thereafter. Combining and individual fund statements and 
schedules and school-level schedules can be found on pages 63-145 of this report. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Key financial highlights for the 2011-2012 fiscal year include the following: 

Net assets increased $23,233,758 from 2010-2011 mostly due the District's ability to keep 
overall expenses in line with the prior fiscal year, while receiving additional federal and state aid. 

The local tax levy of $21,115,662 remained the same as the local tax levy in the 2010-2011 fiscal 
year. The District's tax levy is at the minimum required by statute and hasn't changed in over 15 
years. 

In the 2011-2012 fiscal year, the State Treasurer withheld all school districts' last two regular 
state aid payments. The District had enough cash on hand at the end of the fiscal year to meet 
cash flow needs, therefore we did not need to take out a short term loan. 

The General Fund fund balance, budgetary basis, (including the last state aid payments) 
increased $28,655,710 from the prior fiscal year's balance of $9,162,438 due to numerous 
factors including receiving Education Jobs Fund aid in the amount of $7,789,683, additional state 
aid in the amount of $10,033,047, the closing of two charter schools which reduced the amount 
paid to charter schools by $9,957,220, and a reduction in the number of students that the District 
was sending to private schools for the disabled. 
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Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the District's financial 
position. The following table provides a comparative summary of net assets relating to the 
District's governmental and business-type activities at June 30: 

Trenton School District 

Net Assets 
June 30, 

2012 2011 
Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total 
Current and other assets $ 24,195,956 $1,246,007 $ 25,441,963 $ 19,516,086 $ 1,332,538 $ 20,848,624 
Capital assets, net 250,074,624 334,334 250,408,958 255,834,136 419,182 256,253,318 

Total assets 274,270,580 1,580,341 275,850,921 275,350,222 1,751,720 277,101,942 

Current and other liabilities 12,263,833 1,298,488 13,562,321 35,475,600 1,497,072 36,972,672 
Long-term liabilities 

outstanding 18,190,200 260,264 18,450,464 19,270,244 254,648 19,524,892 
Total liabilities 30,454,033 1,558,752 32,012,785 54,745,844 1,751,720 56,497,564 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets, net 

of related debt 250,074,624 250,074,624 255,834,136 49,428 255,883,564 
Restricted 26,158,460 26,158,460 145,592 145,592 
Unrestricted (deficit)/assets {32,416,537! 21,589 {32,394,948! {35,375,350} {49,428! {35,424,778} 

Total net assets $ 243,816,547 $ 21,589 $ 243,838,136 $ 220,604,378 $ $ 220,604,378 

The largest portion of the District's net assets reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, 
buildings and improvements, and furniture and equipment). The decrease in capital assets, net is 
mainly due to depreciation in excess of current year additions. This is also the reason for the 
large decrease in net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt. Although the District's 
investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources 
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets 
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

An additional portion of the District's net assets represents resources that are subject to external 
restrictions on how they may be used. The increase in the District's restricted net assets is due to 
the excess surplus generated during the 2011-12 fiscal year, as well as the District establishing a 
maintenance reserve during the current year. The remaining deficit balance of unrestricted net 
assets reflects long-term obligations, such as compensated absences and an early retirement 
pension liability, not invested in capital assets. The deficit (negative) amount is mainly the result 
of liabilities for compensated absences without an offsetting asset. 

The increase in current and other assets is mainly attributable to the increase in cash from the 
prior year, which is mostly the result of the District's operating performance during the year. 

The decrease in current and other liabilities is a result of the District not having to take out a 
short-term loan at the end of the fiscal year. At June 30, 2011, the District took out a short-term 
loan in the amount of$21,459,027. 
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At the end of the current fiscal year, the District is able to report a positive balance in total net 
assets. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year. 

The decrease in the current and other assets reported in the Enterprise Fund is primarily due to 
the reduction in receivables from the prior year and as a result of the food service management 
company having met their financial guarantee in the current year. The decrease in the current and 
other liabilities reported in the Enterprise Fund is related to the decrease in accounts payable at 
year-end, which is due to the fact that the amount due to the District's food service management 
company was lower at the end of fiscal year 2011-12 than 2010-11. 

The following table provides a comparative summary of the changes in net assets relating to the 
District's governmental and business-type activities for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011: 

Trenton School District 

Changes in Net Assets 
Year ended June 30, 

2012 2011 
Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total 

Revenues: 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services $ 516,701 $ 516,701 $ 764,526 $ 764,526 
Operating grants and 

contributions $ 38,678,995 5,386,858 44,065,853 $ 42,404,256 4,333,517 46,737,773 
Capital grants and 

Contributions 1,635,807 1,635,807 1,930,667 1,930,667 
General revenues: 

Property taxes 21,115,662 21,115,662 21,115,662 21,115,662 
Federal and state aid not 

restricted to specific 
purposes 249,064,979 249,064,979 229,852,230 229,852,230 

Miscellaneous 2,165,492 2,165,492 1,757,296 1,757,296 
Total revenues 312,660,935 5,903,559 318,564,494 297,060,111 5,098,043 302,158,154 

Expenses: 
Instructional services 153,563,624 153,563,624 146,211,593 146,211,593 
Support services 112,386,780 112,386,780 110,355,176 110,355,176 
Charter schools 23,361,258 23,361,258 33,318,478 33,318,478 
Special Schools 137,104 137,104 292,945 
Business type activities 5,881,970 5,881,970 5,558,984 5,558,984 

Total expenses 289,448,766 5,881,970 295,330,736 290,178,192 5,558,984 295,737,176 
Increase (decrease) in net 

assets before transfers and 
special items 23,212,169 21,589 23,233,758 6,881,919 (460,941) 6,420,978 

Transfers (460,941) 460,941 
Special item (23,474,744) (23,474,744) 
Change in net assets 23,212,169 21,589 23,233,758 (17,053,766) (17,053,766) 

Net assets - beginning of year 220,604,378 220,604,378 237,658,144 237,658,144 
Net assets - end of year $ 243,816,547 $ 21,589 $ 243,838,136 $ 220,604,378 $ - $ 220,604,378 

Governmental activities. The increase in the District's governmental activities net assets is 
$23,212,169 for the year ended June 30, 2012. The increase is mainly attributable to the District 
receiving Education Jobs Fund aid, additional state aid, the closing of two charter schools, and a 
reduction in the number of students that the District was sending to private schools for the 
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disabled. Capital grants and contributions decreased from the prior year due to the projects 
administered by the SDA nearing completion and the State having less funds to invest into 
school construction. 

Business-type activities. Overall, the net assets of the business-type activities did not change 
significantly. The District continued to utilize the services of an outside food service 
management company instead of running the food service operations in-house. No amount was 
required to be contributed by the General Fund in the current fiscal year. 

Financial Analysis of the District's Funds 
As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds. The focus of the District's governmental funds is to provide information 
on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful 
in assessing the District's financing requirements. The District's fund balance amounts are 
classified as either restricted or unassigned. 

Proprietary Fund. The District's enterprise fund provides the same type of information found in 
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 

The unrestricted net assets of the food service program were $21,589. This represents an 
increase of $71,017 from the 2010-2011 deficit of ($49,428), which was mainly the result of an 
increase in federal and state meal reimbursement rates, along with increased participation in the 
District's low income meal program. 

Financial Information at Fiscal Year-End 

The following schedule presents a summary of the general fund and special revenue fund 
revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 and the amount and percentage of increases in 
relation to prior year revenues. The Capital Projects Fund has been excluded as amounts vary 
substantially from year to year. 

Percent Increase Percent of 
Revenue Amount of Total From 2011 Increase 

Local sources $ 23,427,011 7.5% $ 501,073 2.2% 
State sources 267,922,909 86.2 12,609,280 4.9 
Federal sources 19,675,208 6.3 2,785,331 16.5 
Total $ 311,025,128 100.0% $ 15,895,684 5.4% 

The increase in federal sources is mainly attributable to the one time award for the Education 
Jobs Fund, which was offset by decreases in ARRA funds as compared with the prior year. 

The increase in state sources is mainly attributable to an increase of $12,545,077 in general fund 
state aid awarded to the District in 2011-12 as compared with the prior year. 
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The following schedule presents a summary of general fund and special revenue fund 
expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 and the percentage of increases and 
(decreases) in relation to prior year amounts. The Capital Projects Fund has been excluded as 
amounts vary substantially from year to year. 

Increase Percent of 
Percent (Decrease) Increase 

Expenditures Amount of Total From 2011 (Decrease) 

Current: 
Instruction $ 79,951,906 28.1% $ 6,530,808 8.9% 
Undistributed expenditures 180,265,719 63.4 (471,138) (0.3) 

Capital outlay 610,548 0.2 457,808 299.7 
Charter schools 23,361,258 8.2 (9,957,220) (29.9) 
Special schools 86,765 0.1 (100,763) (53.7) 
Total $ 284,276,196 100.0% $ (3,540,505) (1.2)% 

The decrease of expenditures for charter schools was mainly the result of two charter schools 
closing prior to the start of the school year. As a result, spending on instruction increased from 
the 2010-11 fiscal year, as the District incurred additional costs in supporting the displaced 
charter school students. The District also made a decision to reduce the number of students sent 
to private schools for the disabled, which contributed to the reduction in undistributed 
expenditures. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

$89,852,571 of the general fund budget was allocated directly to the schools to support whole 
school reform. $9,803,759 of this amount was not expended largely due to the District's 
concentrated efforts to reduce spending. The increase in appropriations to support whole school 
reform was mostly a result of the District budgeting for the increased cost of opening two new 
schools in the current year. 

The reallocation of appropriations in undistributed tuition, which resulted in a net budgetary 
decrease of ($2,238,884) is mainly attributable to less students being sent to private schools for 
the disabled. 

The decrease in energy (electricity) is due to the much milder winter experienced during the 
2011-12 fiscal year, combined with a reduction in electricity rates. 

The reallocation of appropriations in custodial services, which resulted in a net budgetary 
increase of $702,628, is mainly attributable to the District retaining its custodial employees as 
opposed to privatizing the unit as originally planned. 
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The increase in appropnatlons transferred to the various employee benefit lines is mainly 
attributable to the District electing to payoff the deferred PERS payment in full in the current 
year in order to save on future interest costs. 

The decrease in appropriations transferred to charter schools is attributable to a decrease in 
students being sent to charter schools, mainly as a result of two of the charter schools having 
closed prior to the start of the school year. This also resulted in an overall increase in 
appropriations for instruction of $8,889,897, as the District budgeted for anticipated increased 
costs in bringing the displaced charter school students to in-district schools. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets 

At June 30, 2012, the District has capital assets of $250,408,958 net of depreciation, which 
includes school facilities, land, buildings, equipment and vehicles. 

The following provides a summary of the capital assets held by the District at June 30, 2012 and 
2011: 

Non-depreciable assets: 
Site and site improvements 

Depreciable assets: 

Capital Assets 
(Net of Depreciation) 

2012 2011 
Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Activities Activities 

$ 15,354,677 $ 15,354,677 

Building and building improvements 233,463,748 239,127,375 
Machinery, equipment and vehicles _--=-1 =,2..:::..:56.::...z.,..:::..:19:....:.9_-.::;..$ ...:;.3=-34=,3::....:3;.....:4 ___ -=-<1 ,~35=-2-L,0.:......:8'--4_--.:$_4_1-'-9~, 1_82 __ 

Total $ 250,074,624 $ 334,334 $ 255,834,136 $ 419,182 

Additional information on the District's capital assets can be found in Note 4 to the basic 
financial statements. 
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Debt Administration and Other Obligations 

The District does not have any outstanding bond issues. 

In fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the District's governmental activities long-term liabilities 
decreased by $2,084,042. The decrease is a result of the District paying off its deferred pension 
obligation in full. The District also decreased its long term liability for its early retirement 
pension obligations due to an annual required payment of $1,090,000. These decreases were 
offset by an increase in the long-term portion of the accrued liability for compensated absences. 

The District has estimated $2,293,802 of governmental activities long-term liabilities due within 
one year. Of this amount $1,148,802 is estimated for compensated staff absences, and 
$1,145,000 represents the next payment due on the District's Early Retirement pension liability. 

Additional information can be found in Note 5 to the basic financial statements. 

Economic Factors and Subsequent Years' Budgets 

The fiscal outlook in the near term is a concern for most school districts and municipalities, 
including this one. Top-down changes in funding will require flexibility and very careful 
planning at the local level. The District tax levy has not increased in more than fifteen years and 
with the continued uncertainty related to the State of New Jersey's budget challenges and 
continued lower than expected tax collections, the adoption of a budget that maintains 
educational services at a higher level becomes more and more difficult. The Trenton School 
District will continue to employ prudent and responsible fiscal practices to maintain its sound 
financial condition. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Trenton District's finances 
for all those with an interest in the District's finances. Questions concerning any of the 
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be 
addressed to the Office of the Business Administrator, Trenton Public Schools, 108 North 
Clinton Avenue, Trenton, NJ 08609. 
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Basic Financial Statements 



Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements provide a financial overview of the District's 
operations. These financial statements present the financial position and operating results of all 
governmental activities and business-type activities as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012. 



A-I 

Trenton School District 

Statement of Net Assets 

June 30, 2012 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,139,148 $ 162,346 $ 7,301,494 

Accounts receivable 6,759,130 1,197,205 7,956,335 

Internal balances 120,000 (120,000) 
Inventories 6,456 6,456 

Restricted assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 10,000,000 10,000,000 

Cash held by fiscal agents 130,657 130,657 

Other asset 47,021 47,021 

Capital assets - non-depreciable 15,354,677 15,354,677 

Capital assets - depreciable, net 234,719,947 334,334 235,054,281 

Total assets 274,270,580 1,580,341 275,850,921 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 4,434,248 1,209,778 5,644,026 

Intergovernmental payables: 
State 6,973 6,973 

Federal 97,260 97,260 

Unearned revenue 3,751,266 3,404 3,754,670 

Accrued interest payable 175,434 175,434 

Accrued liabilities 788,886 788,886 

Accrued salaries and wages 453,426 453,426 

Accrued liability for insurance claims 262,538 262,538 

Current portion of long-term obligations 2,293,802 85,306 2,379,108 

Noncurrent portion of long-term obligations 18,190,200 260,264 18,450,464 

Total liabilities 30,454,033 1,558,752 32,012,785 

Net assets 
Invested in capital assets 250,074,624 250,074,624 

Restricted for: 
Other purposes 26,158,460 26,158,460 

Unrestricted (deficit) (32,416,537) 21,589 (32,394,948) 

Total net assets $ 243,816,547 $ 21,589 $ 243,838,136 

See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 24 



FunctionslPrograms 

Governmental activities 
Instruction 
Support services 

Attendance/social work 
Health services 
Other support services 
Improvement of instruction 
School library 
Instructional staff training 
General administration 
School administration 
Central services 
Admin information technology 
Required maintenance 
Operation of plant 
Student transportation 
Special schools 

Charter schools 
Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities 
Food service 
Total business-type activities 
Total primary government 

General revenues: 
Property taxes, levied for 

general purposes 
State sources 
Federal sources 
Miscellaneous income 

Total general revenues 
Change in net assets 

Net assets-beginning of year 
Net assets-end of year 

Expenses 

153,563,624 

2,786,550 
3,330,344 

48,736,327 
1,613,548 
3,068,822 

15,516 
2,107,360 

11,615,041 
3,999,267 
3,017,583 
5,893,562 

19,529,413 
6,673,447 

137,104 
23361 258 

289448766 

5881970 
5881970 

295330736 

Charges for 
Services 

516701 
516701 
516701 

Trenton School District 

Statement of Activities 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Program Revenues 
Operating Capital 
Grants and Grants and 

Contributions Contributions 

$ 5,342,252 1,082,961 

25,461 
31,925 

33,336,743 145,465 
11,863 
27,911 

151 
7,243 

113,484 
36,194 
16,369 
37,888 
96,649 

862 
1,381 

38678995 1635807 

5386858 
5386858 

$ 44 065853 1635807 

$ 

Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Changes in Net Assets 

Governmental 
Activities 

(147,138,411) 

(2,761,089) 
(3,298,419) 

(15,254,119) 
(1,601,685) 
(3,040,911) 

(15,365) 
(2,100,117) 

(11,501,557) 
(3,963,073) 
(3,001,214) 
(5,855,674) 

(19,432,764) 
(6,672,585) 

(135,723) 
(23361 258) 

(249 133 964) 

(249 133 964) 

21,115,662 
240,912,974 

8,152,005 
2165492 

272 346133 
23,212,169 

220604 378 
243816547 

Business-type 
Activities 

$ 21589 
21589 
21589 

21,589 

$ 21589 

See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 

A-2 

Total 

(147,138,411) 

(2,761,089) 
(3,298,419) 

(15,254,119) 
(1,601,685) 
(3,040,911) 

(15,365) 
(2,100,117) 

(11,501,557) 
(3,963,073) 
(3,001,214) 
(5,855,674) 

(19,432,764) 
(6,672,585) 

(135,723) 
(23361258) 

(249 \33 964) 

21589 
21589 

(249 112375) 

21,115,662 
240,912,974 

8,152,005 
2165492 

272 346133 
23,233,758 

220604 378 
243838136 
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Trenton School District 
Governmental Funds 

Balance Sheet 

June 30, 2012 

Major Funds 
Special 

General Revenue 
Fund Fund 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,139,148 
Accounts receivable: 

Federal 175,351 $ 5,154,198 
State 1,193,801 48,035 
Interfund 2,552,650 
Other 30,829 23,433 

Restricted assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 10,000,000 
Cash held by fiscal agents 130,657 

Total assets $ 21222436 $ 5225666 

Liabilities and fund balances 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 2,634,611 $ 1,758,760 
Intergovernmental payables: 

State 6,973 
Federal 97,260 

Interfunds payable 2,340,044 
Deferred revenue 3,751,266 
Accrued liabilities 788,886 
Accrued salaries and wages 379,865 73,561 
Accrued liability for insurance claims 262,538 

Total liabilities 4,065,900 8,027,864 

Fund balances: 
Restricted for: 

Excess surplus - prior year 145,592 
Excess surplus - current year 16,012,868 
Maintenance reserve 10,000,000 

Unassigned (deficit) (9,001,924) (2,802,198} 
Total fund balances 17,156,536 (2,802,198) 
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 21222436 $ 5225666 

Amounts reported for governmental activitiesin the 
statement of net assets (A-I) are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not 
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the 
funds. The cost of the assets is $324,133,944, and 
the accumulated depreciation is $(74,059,320). 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current 
period and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds. 

Other asset is not due to be received in the current 
period and therefore is not reported as an asset in the funds. 

Accrued interest on long-term debt is not due and payable in the 
current period and therefore is not reported as a liability in the funds. 

Net assets of governmental activities 

Capital 
Projects 

Fund 

$ 133,483 

$ 133483 

$ 40,877 

92,606 

133,483 

$ 133483 

See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 

B-1 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 7,139,148 

5,329,549 
1,241,836 
2,552,650 

187,745 

10,000,000 
130,657 

$ 26581 585 

$ 4,434,248 

6,973 
97,260 

2,432,650 
3,751,266 

788,886 
453,426 
262,538 

12,227,247 

145,592 
16,012,868 
10,000,000 

(11,804,122} 
14,354,338 

250,074,624 

(20,484,002) 

47,021 

(175,434) 

$ 243816547 
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B-2 

Trenton School District 
Governmental Funds 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Major Funds 
Special Capital Total 

General Revenue Projects Governmental 
Fund Fund Fund Funds 

Revenues: 
Local sources: 

Local tax levy $ 21,115,662 $ 21,115,662 
Miscellaneous 2,165,492 $ 145,857 $ 247,225 2,558,574 

Total revenues-local sources 23,281,154 145,857 247,225 23,674,236 

State sources 240,9l2,974 27,009,935 1,388,582 269,311,491 
Federal sources 8,152,005 11,523,203 19,675,208 
Total revenues 272,346,133 38,678,995 1,635,807 312,660,935 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Instruction 74,845,396 5,106,510 79,951,906 
Undistributed: 

Instruction 30,609,266 30,609,266 
Attendance/social work 1,801,080 1,801,080 
Health services 2,099,765 2,099,765 
Other support - special 1,310,225 30,712,368 32,022,593 
Speech, OT, PT & related services 1,673,699 1,673,699 
Guidance 3,973,574 3,973,574 
Child study teams 4,419,120 4,419,120 
Improvement of instruction 1,144,627 1,144,627 
Educational/media library services 1,988,093 1,988,093 
Instructional staff training 9,686 9,686 
General administration 1,786,273 1,786,273 
Central services 2,597,170 2,597,170 
Administrative information technology 2,346,022 2,346,022 
School administration 7,247,564 7,247,564 
Required maintenance 4,372,966 4,372,966 
Custodial services l2,749,110 12,749,110 
Care and upkeep of grounds 86,684 86,684 
Security 2,675,356 2,675,356 
Student transportation 6,436,184 6,436,184 
Unallocated employee benefits 46,378,938 46,378,938 
On-behalf payments 13,847,949 13,847,949 
Special schools 86,765 86,765 

Capital outlay 374,806 235,742 1,635,807 2,246,355 
Charter schools - current 23,361,258 23,361,258 

Total expenditures 248,221,576 36,054,620 1,635,807 285,912,003 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 24,124,557 2,624,375 26,748,932 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 2,800,632 2,800,632 
Transfers out {2,800,632} {2,800,632} 

Total other financing sources (uses) 2,800z632 {2,800,632} 
Net change in fund balances 26,925,189 (176,257) 26,748,932 

Fund balances (deficit), July 1, (9,768,653) (2,625,941) (12,394,594) 
Fund balances (deficit), June 30 $ 17,1561536 $ (218021 198} $ $ 14,354,338 

The reconciliation of the fund balances of governmental funds to the net assets of governmental activities in the 
statement of activities is presented in an accompanying schedule (B-3). 

See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 27 



Trenton School District 
Governmental Funds 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities 

Year ended June 30,2012 

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds (B-2) 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement 
of activities (A-2) are different because: 

Capital additions are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. 
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is 
allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. 

Proceeds from sale of assets 
Gain on sale of assets 

Depreciation expense 
Capital additions 

The payment of the District's Early Retirement pension liability (net) was 
recorded as an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the payment 
reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets and is not reported 

$ (6,396,656) 
986,848 

(507,455) 
157,751 

B-3 

$ 26,748,932 

(5,409,808) 

(349,704) 

in the statement of activities. 1,090,000 

The District's repayment of its deferred pension obligation decreases long-term liabilities 
in the statement of net assets and is not reported in the statement of activities. 991,635 

In the statement of activities, interest on debt is accrued, regardless 
of when due. In the governmental funds, interest is reported when due. 91,686 

Expenses reported in the statement of activities (A-2) that do not require the 
use of current financial resources, such as the obligation for postemployment 
benefits other than pensions, are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. 67,288 

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, e.g., 
compensated absences (vacations) are measured by the amounts 
earned during the year. In the governmental funds, however, 
expenditures for these items are reported in the amount of 
financial resources used (paid). (17,860) 

Change in net assets of governmental activities (A-2) $ 23,212,169 

See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 28 



Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable: 

State 
Federal 
Other 

Inventories 
Total current assets 

Capital assets: 
Equipment 
Accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets 
Total assets 

Lia bilities 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Unearned revenue 
Interfund payable 
Purchase agreement payable 

Total current liabilities 

Long-term liabilities: 
Purchase agreement payable 

Total liabilities 

Net assets 
Umestricted 
Total net assets 

Trenton School District 
Proprietary Fund 

Statement of Fund Net Assets 

June 30, 2012 

B-4 

Major Fund 
Food Service 

$ 162,346 

$ 

15,092 
1,048,452 

133,661 
6,456 

1,366,007 

1,154,388 
(820,054) 
334,334 

1,700,341 

1,209,778 
3,404 

120,000 
85,306 

1,418,488 

260,264 

1,678,752 

21,589 
21,589 

See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 29 



Trenton School District 
Proprietary Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Fund Net Assets 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Operating revenues: 
Local sources: 

Daily food sales-reimbursable programs: 
School lunch program 

Total daily sales-reimbursable programs 

Daily sales non-reimbursable programs 
Special functions 
Miscellaneous revenue 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Salaries 
Employee benefits 
Purchased property services 
Supplies and materials 
Depreciation 
Cost of sales 
Management fee 
Other 

Total operating expenses 

Operating loss 

Nonoperating revenues: 
State sources: 

State school lunch program 
Federal sources: 

School breakfast program 
National school lunch program 
Snack program 
Food donation program 

Total nonoperating revenues 

Change in net assets 

Total net assets, beginning of year 
Total net assets, end of year 

B-5 

Major Fund 
Food Service 

$ 138,707 
138,707 

168,929 
177,557 
31,508 

516,701 

2,589,825 
120,144 
366,600 
269,400 
141,627 

2,066,079 
73,030 

255,265 
5,881,970 

(5,365,269) 

78,849 

1,124,538 
3,761,815 

293,621 
128,035 

5,386,858 

21,589 

$ 21,589 

See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 30 



Trenton School District 
Proprietary Fund 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Receipts from customers 
Payments to employees 
Payments for employee benefits 
Payments to suppliers 
Net cash used in operating activities 

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities 
Cash received from state and federal sources 
Payment of interfund 
Cash received from the Board 
Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities 
Acquisition of capital assets 
Issuance of purchase agreement payable 
Payments of purchase agreement payable 
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used in operating activities 
Operating loss 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used 

in operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Change in assets and liabilities: 

Decrease in accounts receivable 
Decrease in inventory 
Increase in deferred revenue 
(Decrease) in accounts payable 

Net cash used in operating activities 

Non-cash non-capital financing activities: 
The District received $115,431 of food commodities from the U.S. Department 
of Agriculture for the year ended June 30, 2012. 

B-6 

Major Fund 
Food Service 

$ 814,234 
(2,589,825) 

(120,144) 
(3,165,240) 
(5,060,975) 

5,510,359 
(1,139,891) 

120,000 
4,490,468 

(56,779) 
56,779 

(80,963) 
(80,963) 

(651,470) 
813,816 

$ 162,346 

$ (5,365,269) 

141,627 

297,533 
21,314 

88 
(156,268) 

$ (5,060,975) 

See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 31 



Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Total assets 

Liabilities 

Trenton School District 
Fiduciary Funds 

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets 

June 30, 2012 

Private-Purpose 
Scholarship Trust Fund 

$ 166,587 
294,267 
460,854 

Payroll deductions and withholdings payable 
Summer escrow payroll payable 
Due to student groups 
Total liabilities 

Net assets 
Held in Trust for scholarships $ 460,854 

Agency 
Fund 

B-7 

$ 3,493,325 

$ 3,493,325 

$ 3,341,411 
26,938 

124,976 
$ 3,493,325 

See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 32 



Trenton School District 
Fiduciary Funds 

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets 

Additions 
Investment earnings: 

Interest 
Total additions 

Deductions 
Scholarship payments 
Unrealized loss on investments 
Miscellaneous 
Total deductions 

Change in net assets 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Net assets-beginning of the year 
Net assets-end of the year 

B-8 

Private-Purpose 
Scholarship 
Trust Fund 

$ 14 
14 

4,500 
5,565 

610 
10,675 

(10,661) 
471,515 

$460,854 

See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 33 



Trenton School District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The financial statements of the Board of Education of the Trenton School District (District) have 
been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
(GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GAS B) 
is the accepted standard-setting' body for establishing governmental accounting and fmancial 
reporting principles. 

The District's significant accounting policies are described below: 

A. Reporting Entity 

The financial reporting entity consists of a) the primary government, b) organizations for 
which the primary government is financially accountable, and c) other organizations for which 
the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that 
exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or 
incomplete. 

The definition of the reporting entity is based primarily on the notion of financial 
accountability. A primary government is financially accountable for the organizations that 
make up its legal entity. It is also financially accountable for legally separate organizations if 
its officials appoint a voting majority of an organization's governing body and either it is able 
to impose its will on that organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide 
specific financial benefits to, or to impose specific financial burdens on, the primary 
government. A primary government may also be financially accountable for governmental 
organizations that are fiscally dependent on it. 

The District, as the primary government for financial reporting entity purposes, has oversight 
responsibility and control over all activities related to the Trenton School District. The District 
receives funding from local, state and federal government sources, and must comply with the 
requirements of these funding source entities. 

The basic financial statements include all funds and accounts of the District over which the 
Board exercises operating control, including preschool, elementary, junior and senior high 
schools located in Trenton. 
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Trenton School District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended June 30,2012 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

The District has no component units that are required to be included within the reporting entity, as set 
forth in Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting 
Standards. 

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of 
changes in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the District. For the 
most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental 
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported 
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for 
support. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who 
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or 
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, the proprietary fund, and fiduciary 
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major 
individual governmental funds and the proprietary fund (major fund) are reported as separate columns 
in the fund financial statements. The New Jersey Department of Education (NJDOE) requires New 
Jersey school districts to treat each governmental and proprietary fund as a major fund and each major 
individual fund to be reported in separate columns in the fund financial statements. The NJDOE 
believes the presentation of all funds as major is important for public interest and to promote 
consistency among district financial reporting. 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial 
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
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Trenton School District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as 
they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. 
F or this purpose, the District considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of 
the end of the current fiscal year. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they 
are levied. State equalization monies are recognized as revenue during the period in which they are 
appropriated. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. A one-year availability period is used for 
revenue recognition for all other governmental fund revenues. Expenditures generally are recorded 
when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, expenditures related to 
compensated absences, pension obligations and claims and judgments, are recorded only when 
payment is due. 

Property taxes, interest, and state equalization monies associated with the current fiscal period are all 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal 
year. 

The District has reported its major governmental funds as follows: 

General Fund: The general fund is the general operating fund of the District and is used to account for 
all expendable financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Special Revenue Fund: The District maintains one special revenue fund, which includes the proceeds 
of specific revenue sources (other than major capital projects) that are restricted or committed to 
expenditures for specified purposes. 

Capital Projects Fund: The capital projects fund is used to account for and report financial resources 
that are restricted, committed, or assigned to an expenditure for capital outlays to be used for the 
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds). 
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Trenton School District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

The District reports its major enterprise fund as follows: 

Food Service Fund: The enterprise fund accounts for all revenues and expenses pertaining to cafeteria 
operations. The food service fund is utilized to account for operations that are financed and operated in 
a manner similar to private business enterprises. The stated intent is that the cost (i.e., expenses 
including depreciation and indirect costs) of providing goods or services to the students on a continuing 
basis are financed or recovered primarily through user charges. 

Additionally, the District reports the following fiduciary fund types: 

Fiduciary Funds of the District include the private purpose scholarship trust fund and agency funds. 
Agency funds are purely custodial (assets equal liabilities) and thus do not involve measurements of 
results of operations. The following is a description of the fiduciary funds of the School District: 

Trust and Agency Funds: The trust and agency funds are used to account for assets held by the 
District on behalf of outside parties, including other governments, or on behalf of other funds within 
the District. 

Trust Fund: The private purpose scholarship fund is utilized to provide scholarships to students and 
to account for the related transactions. The trust fund is reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus. 

Agency Funds (payroll and Student Activity Fund): Agency funds are used to account for the assets 
that the District holds on behalf of others as their agent. Agency funds are custodial in nature and 
do not involve measurement of results of operations. The District maintains two agency funds 
including payroll agency and student activity agency funds. 

In its accounting and fmancial reporting for proprietary fund types, the District follows the 
pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the pronouncements of 
the Financial Accounting Standards Board (F ASB) and its predecessor organizations, issued on or before 
November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The District's 
business-type activities and enterprise fund have elected not to apply the standards issued by the F ASB 
after November 30, 1989. 
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Trenton School District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charged to customers or applicants for goods, services, 
or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. 
Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, 
general revenues include all taxes. 

Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with an enterprise fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues 
of the District's enterprise fund are charges to customers for sales of food. Operating expenses for 
enterprise funds include the cost of sales, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. 
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and 
expenses. 

The District reports deferred. (unearned) revenue on its balance sheets and statements of net assets. 
Deferred (unearned) revenue arises when a potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and 
"available" criteria for recognition in the current period. Deferred (unearned) revenue also arises 
when resources are received by the District before it has legal claim to them, as when federal 
assistance is received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when 
both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the District has a legal claim to the resources, the 
liability for deferred (unearned) revenue is removed from the balance sheet and statement of net assets 
and revenue is recognized. 

Ad Valorem (property) taxes are susceptible to accrual, as under New Jersey State Statute a 
municipality is required to remit to its school district the entire balance of taxes in the amount voted 
upon or certified, prior to the end of the school year. The District records the entire approved tax levy 
as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both measurable and available. 
The District is entitled to receive monies under the established payment schedule and the uncollected 
amount is considered to be an "accounts receivable." 
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The County Board of Taxation is responsible for the assessment of properties and the City Tax 
Collector is responsible for collection of taxes. Assessments are certified and taxes are levied on 
January 1; taxes are due February 1, May 1, August 1 and November 1. Unpaid taxes are considered 
delinquent the following January 1 and are then subject to lien. 

D. BudgetsIBudgetary Control 

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted each year for the general and special revenue funds. 
Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The legal level of budgetary 
control is established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the 
lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts 
referenced in N.J.A.C. 6A:23. All budget amendments must be approved by School Board resolution. 
All budget amendments were approved by School Board Resolution and/or the State of New Jersey 
Department of Education. The over-expenditure in the general fund is due to the inclusion of the non­
budgeted on-behalf payments made by the State of New Jersey as District expenditures. These 
amounts are offset by related revenues and as such do not represent budgetary over-expenditures. 

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device 
during the year. F or governmental funds, there are no substantial differences between the budgetary 
basis of accounting and accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, with the 
exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of the last state aid payment for budgetary 
purposes only and the special revenue fund as noted below. Encumbrance accounting is also 
employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in governmental fund types. Unencumbered 
appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. 

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary 
basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary 
basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the 
GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation of 
GAAP basis financial reports. 
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E. Deposits and Investments 

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, amounts on deposit, and short-term investments with 
original maturities of three months or less. 

Investments are stated at fair value in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for 
External Investment Pools. The District classifies certificates of deposit which have original maturity 
dates of more than three months but less then twelve months from the date of purchase as investments 
and are stated at cost. All other investments are stated at fair value. 

F. Interfund ReceivableslPayables - Fund Statements 

Interfund receivables/payables represent amounts that are owed, other than charges for goods or 
services rendered to/from a particular fund in the District and that are due within one year. 

G. Inventories 

Inventories which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the enterprise fund, are recorded 
as an expenditure during the year of purchase. Enterprise fund inventories are valued at cost, which 
approximates market, using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method and the District uses the consumption 
method for expensing inventory. At June 30, 2012, the unused Food Donation Program commodities 
of $289 are reported as unearned revenue. 

H. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include land and property, plant and equipment, are reported in the applicable 
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide fmancial statements. 
Capital assets are defmed by the District as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $2,000 
and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or 
through estimation procedures performed to determine estimated historical cost. Land was valued at 
assessed value based upon information received from the City of Trenton. Donated capital assets are 
valued at their estimated fair market value on the date of donation. 
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The costs of normal repairs and maintenance that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend the assets lives are not capitalized. 

Property, plant and equipment of the District is depreciated using the straight line method. The 
following estimated useful lives are used to compute depreciation: 

Machinery and equipment 
Buildings 
Building improvements 
Vehicles 

I. Accrued Salaries and Wages 

Years 

2-20 
40 
20 

5-10 

Certain District employees, who provide services to the District over the ten month academic year, 
have the option to have their salaries disbursed during the entire twelve month year. New Jersey 
statutes require that these earned but undisbursed amounts be retained in a separate bank account. As 
of June 30, 2012, $26,938 was earned by these employees but not disbursed. 

J. Compensated Absences 

District employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts under the District's 
personnel policies. In the event of termination, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated vacation. 
Sick leave benefits provide for ordinary sick pay and begin vesting with the employee after four years 
of service. 

The liability for vested compensated absences of the District recorded in the government-wide 
financial statements amounted to $16,864,002 at June 30, 2012. A liability for these amounts is 
reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee 
resignations and retirements. 
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K. Deferred Revenue 

Deferred revenue in the special revenue fund represents cash which has been received but not yet 
earned. 

L. Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and the proprietary fund type in the fund financial 
statements, long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, 
business-type activities, or enterprise fund type statement of net assets. 

M. Fund Balances 

GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions ("GASB 
54") established fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to 
which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in 
governmental funds. Under GASB 54, fund balances in the governmental funds fmancial statements 
are reported under the modified accrual basis of accounting and classified into the following five 
categories, as defined below: 

1) Nonspendable - includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in 
spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Assets 
included in this fund balance category include prepaid assets, inventories, long-term 
receivables, and corpus of any permanent funds. 

2) Restricted - includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by 
constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legislation. 

3) Committed - includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes imposed by a 
formal action of the government's highest level of decision-making authority. The District's 
highest level of decision-making authority is the Board of Education (the "Board") and 
formal action is taken by resolution of the Board at publicly held meetings. Once committed, 
amounts cannot be used for other purposes unless the Board revises or changes the specified 
use by taking the same action (resolution) taken to originally commit these funds. 

4) Assigned - amounts intended to be used by the government for specific purposes but do not 
meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Intent is expressed by either the 
Board or Business Administrator, to whom the Board has delegated the authority to assign 
amounts to be used for specific purposes, including the encumbering of funds. 
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5) Unassigned - includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications in the 
general fund. This classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other 
funds and that has not been restricted, committed or assigned to specific purposes within the 
general fund. The general fund is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund 
balance amount. In the other governmental funds, if expenditures incurred for specific 
purposes exceed the amounts restricted, committed or assigned to those purposes, it may be 
necessary to report a negative unassigned fund balance. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District's policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. For the unrestricted fund 
balance, the District first spends committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally, unassigned funds. 

Of the $17,156,536 of fund balance in the General Fund, $10,000,000 has been restricted in the 
maintenance reserve account, $16,012,868 has been restricted for excess surplus-current year, 
$145,592 of prior year excess surplus has been restricted for subsequent year's expenditures, 
$1,455,412 is assigned to other purposes, $5,239,679 has been classified as assigned fund balance 
designated for subsequent year's expenditures and ($15,697,015) is unassigned. 

N. Net Assets 

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities in the Government-wide fmancial 
statements. Net assets invested in capital assets consist of capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation. Net assets are reported as restricted in the Government-wide financial statement when 
there are limitations imposed on their use through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, 
or laws or regulations of other governments. 

o. Management's Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 
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P.On-BehalfPayments 

Revenues and expenditures of the general fund include payments made by the State of New Jersey for 
social security contributions and post-retirement pension benefits for members of the New Jersey 
Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund. The amounts are not required to be included in the District's 
annual budget. 

Q. Subsequent Events 

Management has reviewed and evaluated all events and transactions that occurred between June 30, 
2012 and November 30, 2012, the date that the financial statements were issued, for possible 
disclosure and recognition in the financial statements, and no items have come to the attention of the 
District that would require disclosure or recognition. 

2. Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the 
Government-wide Statement of Net Assets 

The governmental fund balance sheet include a reconciliation between fund balance - total 
governmental funds and net assets - governmental activities as reported in the government-wide 
statement of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that long-term liabilities, including 
the pension liability and compensated absences are not due and payable in the current period and 
therefore are not reported in the funds. The details of this $20,484,002 difference are as follows: 

Pension liability 
Compensated absences 
Net adjustment to reduce fund balance-total governmental 

funds to arrive at net assets - governmental activities 

3. Deposits and Investments 

$ 3,620,000 
16,864,002 

$20,484,002 

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institutions 
they may invest in. New Jersey statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissable investments that may 
be purchased by New Jersey school districts. 
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Additionally, the District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public funds in 
public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit 
Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Government Units from a loss of 
funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. 

N.J.S.A. 17:9-41 et. seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental units. 
The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public depository unless 
such funds are secured in accordance with the Act. Public depositories include savings and loan 
institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and savings banks, the deposits of which are federally 
insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value at last equal to five 
percent of the average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of Governmental 
Units. If a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public 
depositories, is available to pay the full amount of their deposits to the Governmental Units. 

Deposits 

New Jersey statutes require that school districts deposit public funds in public depositories located in 
New Jersey which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or by any other agency of 
the United States that insures deposits made in public depositories. School districts are also pennitted to 
deposit public funds in the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund, New Jersey Asset and Rebate 
Management Fund and MBIA CLASS. 

New Jersey statutes require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of public funds that 
exceed depository insurance limits as follows: 

The market value of the collateral must equal at least 5% of the average daily balance of collected public 
funds on deposit. 

In addition to the above collateral requirement, if the public funds deposited exceed 75% of the capital 
funds of the depository, the depository must provide collateral having a market value at least equal to 
100% of the amount exceeding 75%. 

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, the Federal Reserve Bank 
of Philadelphia, the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, or a banking institution that is a member of 
the Federal Reserve System and has capital funds of not less than $25,000,000. 
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Operating cash accounts are held in the District's name by several commercial banking institutions. At 
June 30, 2012, the carrying amount of the District's deposits was $19,822,996 and the bank balance was 
$26,157,310. Of the bank balance, $361,216 was covered by federal depository insurance and 
$25,796,094 was covered by a collateral pool maintained by the bank as required by New Jersey statutes 
under the New Jersey Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). 

GASB Statement No. 40, "Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures" ("GASB 40") requires that the 
District disclose whether its deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk (risk that in the event of failure 
of the counterparty, the District would not be able to recover the value of its deposit or investment). 
Deposits are considered to be exposed to custodial credit risk if they are: uncollateralized (securities are 
not pledged to the depositor), collateralized with the securities held by the pledging financial institution, 
or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent but 
not in the name of the District. 

The District does not have a policy for the management of custodial credit risk, other than depositing all 
of its funds in banks covered by GUDP A. At least five percent of the District's deposits were fully 
collateralized by funds held by the fmancial institution, but not in the name of the District. Due to the 
nature of GUDP A, further information is not available regarding the full amount that is collateralized. 

As of June 30, 2012, the District had $130,657 on deposit with a fiscal agent. 

Investments 

New Jersey statutes permit the Board to purchase the following types of securities: 

a. Bonds and other obligations of the United States or obligations guaranteed by the United States. 

b. Bonds of any Federal Intermediate Credit Bank, Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal National 
Mortgage Agency or of any United States Bank which have a maturity date not greater than twelve 
months from the date of purchase. 

c. Bonds or other obligations of the School District. 

d. New Jersey Cash Management Fund (NJCMF), New Jersey Asset and Rebate Management Fund 
(NJARM) and MBIA CLASS. 
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The following presents the components of investments held at June 30, 2012: 

Investment Type 

Mutual Funds 
Money Market Accounts 
New Jersey Cash Management 

Fund 
Total investments 

Less amounts reported as 
cash equivalents 

Total investments 

$ 

Fair 
Value 

294,267 
127,629 

1,010,781 
1,432,677 

(1,138,410) 
$ 294,267 

Investment 
Maturities 

Less than 1 year 

$ 294,267 
127,629 

1,010,781 
$ 1,432,677 

Money market account monies are short-term investments. Monies can be freely added or withdrawn from 
the money market account on a daily basis without penalty. 

The investments in mutual funds, U.S. treasuries, taxable municipal bonds and corporate bonds are recorded 
as investments in the student activity agency fund. These investments were donated to the District several 
years ago and are required by the donor to remain invested in the existing investments. 

New Jersey Cash Management Fund 

In order to maximize liquidity, the District utilizes the New Jersey Cash Management Fund ("NJCMF"). 
The NJCMF is administered by the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury. It invests pooled 
monies from various State and non-State agencies in primarily short-term investments. The pooled shares 
are equal to the value of the District's shares. These investments include: U.S. Treasuries, short-term 
Commercial Paper, U.S. Agency Bonds, Corporate Bonds, and Certificates of Deposit. Agencies that 
participate in the NJCMF typically earn returns that mirror short-term investments rates. Monies can be 
freely added or withdrawn from the NJCMF on a daily basis without penalty. At June 30, 2012, the 
District's balance was $1,010,781. 
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All investments in the Fund are governed by the regulations of the Investment Council, which prescribes 
specific standards designed to ensure the quality of investments and to minimize the risks related to 
investments. In all the years of the Division of Investment's existence, the Division has never suffered a 
default of principal or interest on any short-term security held by it due to the bankruptcy of a securities 
issuer; nevertheless, the possibility always exists, and for this reason a reserve is being accumulated as 
additional protection for the "Other-than-State" participants. In addition to the Council regulations, the 
Division sets further standards for specific investments and monitors the credit of all eligible securities 
issuers on a regular basis. 

Custodial Credit Risk: All of the District's investments are uncollateralized. Pursuant to GASB 40, the 
NJCMF, which is a pooled investment, is exempt from custodial credit risk exposure. The District does not 
have a policy for custodial credit risk for its investments. 

Concentration of Credit Risk: The District places no limit on the amount the District may invest in anyone 
issuer. At June 30, 2012, no more than 5% of the District's investments were in anyone security. 

Credit Risk: The District does not have an investment policy regarding the management of credit risk. 
GASB 40 requires that disclosure be made as to the credit rating of all debt security investments except for 
obligations of the U.S. government or investments guaranteed by the U.S. government. NJCMF, mutual 
funds and money market accounts are not rated by a rating agency. 

Interest Rate Risk: The District does not have a policy to limit interest rate risk, however, its practice is 
typically to invest in investments with short matUrities. 
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The following schedule is a summarization of the governmental activities changes in capital assets for the 
year ended June 30, 2012. 

Beginning Decreases! Ending 
Balance Increases Transfers Balance 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land $ 15,354,677 $ 15,354,677 
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 15,354,677 15,354,677 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Buildings and building improvements 296,503,566 $465,088 296,968,654 
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 12,580,342 521,760 $(1,291,489} 11,810,613 

Total capital assets, being depreciated 309,083,908 986,848 (1,291,489) 308,779,267 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings and building improvements 57,376,191 6,128,715 63,504,906 
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 11,228,258 267,941 (941,785} 10,554,414 

Total accumulated depreciation 68,604,449 6,396,656 (941,785} 74,059,320 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 240,479,459 (5,409,808} (349,704} 234,719,947 
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 255,834,136 $ (5,409,808} $ (349,704} $ 250,074,624 

See Note 12 for additional information. 

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2012 was charged to functions/programs of the 
District as follows: 

Instruction 
Attendance and social work 
Health services 
Other support services 
Improvement of instruction 
School library 
Instructional staff training 
General administration 
School administration 
Central services 
Admin information technology 
Required maintenance 
Operation of plant 
Student transportation 
Total allocated depreciation expense 

$ 3,536,272 
57,607 
67,160 

1,346,206 
36,611 
63,589 

310 
57,134 

231,812 
83,070 
75,037 

139,868 
496,120 
205,860 

$ 6,396,656 
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The following is a summary of business-type activities capital assets at June 30, 2012: 

Business-type activities: 
Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Machinery and equipment 
Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Beginning 
Balance 

$ 1,097,609 $ 

Increases 

56,779 

Ending 
Balance 

$ 1,154,388 

Machinery and equipment 678,427 141,627 820,054 
Total business-type activities capital assets, net $ 419,182 $ (84,848) $ 334,334 

==================~============ 

5. Long-Term Liabilities 

General Obligation Bonds 

The Trenton School District is currently a Type I School District. As mandated by State Statutes, all 
Type I debt service of the District is considered the direct obligation of the City of Trenton and 
therefore, is recorded within the City's financial statements and not on the School District's financial 
statements. 

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the following changes occurred in the long-term liabilities: 

Beginning Ending Due within 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year 

Governmental activities: 
Compensated absences $ 16,846,142 $ 2,748,764 $ 2,730,904 $ 16,864,002 $ 1,148,802 
Pension liability 4,710,000 1,090,000 3,620,000 1,145,000 
Deferred pension obligation 991,635 991,635 
Obligation for postemployment 

benefits other than pensions 20,267 143,640 163,907 
Governmental activities-

long-term liabilities $ 22,568,044 $ 2,892,404 $ 4,976,446 $ 20,484,002 $ 2,293,802 

Business-Type activities: 
Purchase agreement payable $ 369,754 $ 56,779 $ 80,963 $ 345,570 $ 85,306 
Business-Type activities 

long-term liabilities $ 369,754 $ 56,779 $ 80,963 $ 345,570 $ 85,306 
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The General Fund is generally used to liquidate governmental activity long-tenn liabilities. The District 
expects to liquidate the purchase agreement payable with payments made from the District's enterprise 
fund - food service. 

Early Retirement Pension Liability 

In accordance with New Jersey statutes, on March 13, 2003, the City of Trenton (Type I) issued taxable 
pension refimding bonds series 2003 B in the amount of $10,170,000 (interest rates ranging from 1.8% to 
4.9%) in order to fund the District's remaining Early Retirement Incentive Plan liability. The bonds are 
maintained on the records of the City and the District is obligated to make principal and interest payments to 
the City through the 2016 fiscal year. 

The annual requirements of the District are as follows: 

2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
Total payments required 

6. Pension Plans 

Description of Systems 

Fiscal Year Principal 

$ 1,145,000 
1,205,000 
1,270,000 

$ 3,620,000 

Interest Total 

$ 701,735 $ 1,846,735 
647,920 1,852,920 
590,080 1,860,080 
263,925 263,925 

$ 2,203,660 $ 5,823,660 

Substantially all of the Board's employees participate in one of the following contributory defined 
benefit public employee retirement systems which have been established by State statute: the Teachers' 
Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) or the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS). These 
systems are sponsored and administered by the State of New Jersey. The Teachers' Pension and 
Annuity Fund retirement system is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employee plan with a special 
funding situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the State of New 
Jersey on behalf of the Board and the system's other related non-contributing employers. The Public 
Employees' Retirement System is considered a cost sharing multiple-employer plan. 

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund: The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund was established in 
January 1955 under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide coverage, including post-retirement 
health care, to substantially all full-time public school teachers. Membership is mandatory for such 
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employees and vesting occurs after 10 years of service for pension benefits and 25 years for health care 
coverage. Members are eligible for retirement at age 55 with an annual benefit generally determined to 
be 1/55th of the average annual compensation for the highest three fiscal years' compensation for each 
year of membership during years of creditable service. Early retirement is available to those under 
age 55 with 25 or more years of credited service. Anyone who retires early and is under age 55 receives 
retirement benefits as calculated in the above mentioned formula but at a reduced rate (one quarter of 
one percent for each month the member lacks of attaining age 55). 

Public Employees' Retirement System: The Public Employees' Retirement System was established in 
January 1955 under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide coverage, including post-retirement 
health care, to substantially all full-time employees of the State or any county, municipality, school 
district or public agency, provided the employee is not a member of another State-administered 
retirement system. Membership is mandatory for such employees and vesting occurs after 8 to 10 years 
of service and 25 years for health care coverage. Members are eligible for retirement at age 55 with an 
annual benefit generally determined to be 1/55th of the average annual compensation for the highest 
three fiscal years' compensation for each year of membership during years of creditable service. Early 
retirement is available to those under age 55 with 25 or more years of credited service. Anyone who 
retires early and is under age 55 receives retirement benefits as calculated in the above mentioned 
formula, but at a reduced rate (one quarter of one percent for each month the member lacks of attaining 
age 55). 

Funding Policy 

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues publicly 
available fmancial reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary information for 
TPAF and PERS. The financial reports may be obtained by writing to the State of New Jersey, Department 
of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, P.O. Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0295. 

The contribution policy is set by New Jersey State Statutes and contributions are required by active members 
and contributing employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State of New 
Jersey legislation. TP AF and PERS provide for employee contributions of 6.5% of employees' annual 
compensation, as defined. Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both 
TPAF and PERS. The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for cost-of-living adjustments, 
noncontributory death benefits, and post-retirement medical premiums. Under current statute the Board is a 
non-contributing employer of the TP AF. 

The District's actuarially determined contributions to PERS for the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011 and 
2010 were $3,038,195, $3,561,310 and $2,730,507, respectively, for each of the three years equal to the 
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required contributions for each year. 

In 2009, the State of New Jersey permitted school districts to defer up to 50% of their contributions due in 
2009. The District elected this option, resulting in a deferral of $991,635. This amount was repaid in full 
during the year-ended June 30,2012, including interest, resulting in a payment of$1,358,370. 

During the year ended June 30, 2012, in accordance with NJ.S.A. 18A:66-66, the State of New Jersey 
reimbursed the District $5,993,077 for the employer's share of social security contributions for TPAF 
members as calculated on their base salaries and $7,854,872 for post-retirement pension benefits on behalf of 
the District. These amounts have been included in the fund financial statements. 

7. Post-Retirement Benefits 

Other Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pension -
State Health Benefits Program (SHBP) 

Plan Description: 

The District contributes to the New Jersey State Health Benefits Program (the "SHBP"), a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan administered by the State of New 
Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits. SHBP provide medical, prescription drug, mental 
health/substance abuse and Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and their covered dependents. 
The State Health Benefits Program Act is found in New Jersey Statutes Annotated, Title 52, Article 
17.25 et.seq. Rules governing the operation and administration of the program are found in Title 17, 
Chapter 9 of the New Jersey Administrative Code. The State of New Jersey Division of Pension and 
Benefits issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for SHBP. That report may be obtained by writing to Division of Pension 
and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, NJ 08625-0295. 

P.L. 1987, chapter 384 and P.L. 1990, chapter 6 required Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and 
Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS), respectively, to fund post-retirement medical benefits for 
those State employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a disability retirement. 
P.L. 2007, chapter 103 amended the law to eliminate the funding of post-retirement medical benefits through 
the TP AF and PERS. It created separate funds outside of the pension plans for the funding and payment of 
post-retirement medical benefits for retired educational employees. As of June 30, 2011, there were 
93,323 retirees eligible for post-retirement medical benefits. The cost of these benefits is funded through 
contributions by the State in accordance with P .L. 1994, c.62. Funding of post-retirement medical premiums 
changed from a pre-funding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in fiscal year 1994. 
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The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P .L. 1992, c. 126, which provides free health 
benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of education 
or county college with 25 years of service. The State paid $144 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for 
15,709 eligible retired members in Fiscal Year 2011. 

Other Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pension -
State Health Benefits Program (SHBP) (continued) 

Funding Policy: 

The State will set the contribution rate based on the annual required contribution of the employers (ARC), an 
amount actuarially determined in accordance with parameters of GASB 45. The ARC represents the level of 
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any 
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) of the plan over a period not to exceed thirty years. The 
State's contributions to the SHBP Fund for TPAF retirees' post-retirement benefits on behalf of the District 
for the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were $5,245,506, $5,755,823, and $6,077,045 
respectively, which equaled the required contributions for each year. The State's contributions to the SHBP 
Fund for PERS retirees' post-retirement benefits on behalf of the District was not determined or made 
available by the State of New Jersey. 

Other Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions - District Plan 

In addition to the post-employment health benefit plan offered by the State, the District provides a single 
employer post-employment health benefits plan for 55 participants that elected to participate in the 
District's Early Retirement Plan through a single employer defined benefit healthcare plan. The District 
followed the accounting provisions of GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by 
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This statement established guidelines for 
reporting costs associated with "other postemployment benefits" (OPEB). OPEB costs are calculated 
based on plan benefits (other than pensions), that the retired employees and their spouses have accrued 
as a result of their respective years of employment service. 

Plan description. The District's post-employment retirement healthcare benefit plan provides health 
benefits to all retired District employees and their spouses that elected to participate in the Early 
Retirement Plan. The Plan is a comprehensive health benefits plan which pays for hospital services, 
doctor expenses and other medical related necessities which include prescription drugs, and mental 
health/substance abuse services, subject to provisions and limitations. The District administers the Plan 
through the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits and has 
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the authority to establish and amend the benefits provisions offered. The Plan is not a separate entity or 
trust and does not issue stand alone financial statements. 

Other Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions -
District Plan (continued) 

Funding policy. Retiree health care coverage is non-contributory. The District pays 100% of the cost of 
the retirees' healthcare benefit on a pay-as-you-go basis, which amounted to $210,928 for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2012. 

Annual OPEB cost and net OPEB obligation. The District's annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated 
based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount determined in accordance 
the projected unit credit cost method. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing 
basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or 
funding excess) over a period of fifteen years, which represents the estimated remaining life of the Plan. 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the District's annual OPEB cost (expense) of $143,640 was 
equal to the ARC and other minor adjustments. The following table shows the components of the 
District's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the Plan and changes in the 
District's net OPEB obligation (asset) to the Plan: 

Annual Required Contribution 
Interest on unfunded ARC 
Adjustment of the ARC 
Annual OPEB Cost 
Contributions Made 
Increase (decrease) in net 0 PEB 
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 
Net OPEB obligation (asset) - end of year 

$ 143,833 
138 

(331) 
143,640 
210,928 
(67,288) 
20,267 

$ (47,021) 

The District's net OPEB asset is shown as an other asset on the Statement of Net Assets. 
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Other Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions -
District Plan (continued) 

The District's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost, contributed to the Plan, and the net 
OPEB obligation for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010 were as follows: 

Fiscal Percentage of NetOPEB 
Year Annual AnnualOPEB (Asset)1 
Ended OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation 
6/30/2012 $143,640 146.8% $(47,021) 
6/30/2011 236,901 91.4 20,267 
6/30/2010 236,901 140.3 

Funded status and funding progress. As of June 30, 2012, the accrued liability for benefits was $1,493,713 
and was equal to the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) and the actuarial value of assets was $0. 

Valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of occurrence of events far in the future. Examples include assumptions about mortality and the 
healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the Plan and the annual required 
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past 
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as 
required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend 
information that shows whether the value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the 
accrued liabilities for benefits. 

Methods and assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the 
substantive plan (the Plan as understood by the employer and the Plan members) and include the types of 
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of benefit costs paid by the employer 
to that point. The methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of 
short-term volatility in estimated accrued liabilities and the estimated value of assets, consistent with the 
long-term perspective of the calculations. 

In the June 30, 2012 valuation, the projected unit credit cost method was used. The assumptions include a 
discount rate of 4% and an annual healthcare cost trend rate beginning at 5.7% and declining to an ultimate 
rate of3.8%. 

The VAAL is being amortized as a level dollar amount over fifteen years based on the estimated life of the 
participant group. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2012 was twelve years. 
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The District participates in numerous state and federal grant programs, which are governed by various rules 
and regulations of the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the District has not complied with the 
rules and regulations governing the grants, refunds of any money received may be required and the 
collectibility of any related receivable at June 30, 2012 may be impaired. In the opinion of the District, there 
are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the rules and regulations governing the 
respective grants; therefore, no provisions have been recorded in the accompanying basic financial 
statements for such contingencies. 

The District is also involved in several other claims and lawsuits incidental to its operations. In the 
opinion of the administration and legal counsel, the ultimate resolution of these matters will not have a 
materially adverse effect on the financial position of the District. 

9. Risk Management 

The District maintains a risk management program, which self insures worker's compensation claims of the 
District. The District contracts with a third-party administrator, the New Jersey School Boards Association 
Insurance Group, to provide claims administration and payment services. The District is no longer self 
insured for worker's compensation claims. However, the District is responsible for satisfying claims 
outstanding. 

As of June 30, 2012, incurred but not reported (IBNR) worker's compensation claims of$217,538 have been 
accrued as a liability based upon an actuary's estimate. 

In addition, the District has a limited risk management program for its health insurance and prescription 
expenses. This activity is reported in the general fund and includes an accrual for incurred but not reported 
(IBNR) health insurance claims in the amount of $45,000 as of June 30, 2012. 

Changes in the funds incurred but not reported claims liability amount in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010 
were: 

2011-12 
2010-11 
2009-10 

Beginning 
of Year 

Liability 
$273,637 

283,007 
100,278 

Current Year 
Claims and 
Changes in 
Estimates 
$ (5,648) 

2,565 
722,688 

Claim 
Payments 
$ 5,451 

11,935 
539,959 

Balance 
at End 
of Year 

$262,538 
273,637 
283,007 
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In addition, the District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 

Property and Liability Insurance 

The District maintains commercial insurance coverage for property, liability, student accident and surety 
bonds and does not retain risk of loss. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the 
Statistical Section of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. There have been no significant 
reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year and no settlements have exceeded insurance coverage 
over the past three years. 

10. Transfers 

The following presents a reconciliation of transfers during the 2012 fiscal year: 

Transfers Transfers 
Fund In Out 

General Fund $ 2,800,632 
Special Revenue Fund 2,800,632 

$ 2,800,632 $ 2,800,632 

The $2,800,632 transfer between the General Fund and Special Revenue Fund represents the Special 
Revenue Fund contribution to the District's school based budgets. 

11. Interfund Receivables and Pay abies 

Individual fund interfund receivables and payable balances at June 30, 2012 are as follows: 

Interfund Interfund 
Receivables Payables 

General Fund $ 2,552,650 
Special Revenue Fund $ 2,340,044 
Capital Projects Fund 92,606 
Enterprise Fund - Food Service 120,000 

$ 2,552,650 $ 2,552,650 
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The interfunds represent amounts loaned by the General Fund to the Special Revenue Fund, the Capital 
Projects Fund, and the Enterprise Fund - Food Service in order to satisfy current obligations. All 
interfunds are expected to be repaid within one year. 

12. Construction Financing Act 

The District's construction projects are being administered by the New Jersey Schools Development 
Authority (SDA) under the Educational Facilities Construction Financing Act. As of June 30, 2012, 
projects have been approved in the amount of $251,545,127 and $249,520,885 has been expended in 
construction on behalf of the District. The SDA is responsible for the funding and management of the 
projects. The revenues and expenditures associated with these projects are reflected in the Capital 
Projects Fund (F-1 and F-2). 

13. Loan Payable 

In accordance with NJ.S.A. 18A:22-44.2, the District received a short term loan to cover the two deferred 
State aid payments from the State of New Jersey at June 30, 2011 in an amount of $21,459,027 (interest rate 
of 4.00%). The loan was for cash flow needs and was repaid on July 7,2011. No such loan was needed at 
June 30, 2012. 

The following presents the changes from the prior year: 

Beginning 
Balance 

$ 21,459,027 

14. Deficit Fund Balances 

Increases 

$ -

Decreases 

$ 21,459,027 

Ending 
Balance 

$ -

The District has a deficit fund balance of $2,802,198 in the Special Revenue Fund as of June 30, 2012 as 
reported in the fund statements (modified accrual basis). The deficit amount listed above in the Special 
Revenue fund represents a deficit that was incurred as a direct result of the State of New Jersey's deferral of 
the District's [mal two state aid payments. 

P.L. 2003, C.97 provides that in the event a state school aid payment(s) is not made available until the 
following school budget year, districts must record the last state aid payment(s) as revenue, for budget 
purposes only, in the current school budget year. The bill provides legal authority for school districts to 
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recognize this revenue in the current budget year. For intergovernmental transactions, GASB Statement No. 
33 requires that recognition (revenues, expenditure, asset, liability) should be in symmetry, i.e., if one 
government recognizes an asset, the other government recognizes a liability. Since the State is recording the 
last state aid payment(s) in the subsequent fiscal year, the school district cannot recognize the last state aid 
payment(s) on the GAAP fmancial statements until the State records the payable. 

15. Deferred Compensation Plans 

The Board offers its employees deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal 
Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans, which are administered by ten separate administrators, permit 
participants to defer a portion of their salaries until future years. Amounts deferred under the plans are 
not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. All 
amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with the amounts, 
and all income attributable to these amounts are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participating 
employees and their beneficiaries. 
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Trenton School District 

Schedule of Funding Progress 

Post-Employment Retirement Healthcare Benefit Plan 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Actuarial* 
Accrued Accrued 

Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage of 
Actuarial Value of (AAL) Level AAL Funded Covered** Covered 
Valuation Assets Dollar (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 
Date (a} (b} (b-a} (a/b} (c} (b-a}/c 
June 30, 2010 $2,739,314 $2,739,314 0% $0 0% 
June 30, 2011 $2,739,314 $2,739,314 0% $0 0% 
June 30, 2012 $1,493,713 $1,493,713 0% $0 0% 

* The Actuarial Accrued Liability was calculated using the Projected Unit Credit Cost Method as pennitted under GASB 45. 

** Since there are no active employees of the District that are eligible to participate in the plan, as it relates solely to retirees and the 
enrollment period has expired, the covered payroll is $0. 
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Fiscal 
Year 
Ended 
6/30/2010 
6/30/2011 
6/30/2012 

Employer 
Contributions 

$332,264 
216,634 
210,928 
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C-I 
p. I 

(continued) 
Trenton School District 

General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
(Budgetary Basis) 

Year ended June 30,2012 

Variance 
Original Budget Final Final to 
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actual 

Revenues 
LocaJ sources: 

LocaJ tax levy 21,115,662 21,Jl5,662 21,115,662 
Miscellaneous 980.885 980885 2.165.492 1.184.601 

Total - local sources 22,096,541 22,096,541 23,281,154 1,184,601 

State sources: 
Security Aid 5,166,860 (223,055) 4,943,805 4,943,805 
Adjustment Aid 13,215,688 9,324,193 22,599,881 22,599,881 
Equalization Aid 189,406,692 512,243 189,918,935 189,918,935 
Transportation Aid 2,410,306 80,304 2,490,610 2,490,610 
Special education Aid 1,614,913 219,362 1,894,335 1,894,335 
Other 6,928 6,928 
ExtIaordinary Aid 541,915 541,915 848,969 301,054 
Additional Non Public Transportation Aid 32,083 32,083 
Reimbursed TPAF post-retirement 

pension contributions (non-budgeted) 1,854,812 1,854,812 
Reimbursed TPAF social security 

contributions (non-budgeted) 5993.011 5993.011 
Total - state sources 218,422,434 10,033,041 228,455,481 242,643,495 14,188,014 

Federal sources: 
Medicaid reimbursement 369,162 369,162 351,165 (12,591) 
PL 81-814 (Impact Aid) 5,151 5,151 
Education Jobs Fund 1,553,060 236,623 1,189,683 1,189,683 

Total - federal sources 1922822 236623 8.159445 8.152.005 (1.440} 
Total revenues 248,441,803 10,269,610 258,111,413 214,016,654 15,365,181 

Expeoditures 
Current 

Instruction - regular programs: 
Salaries of teachers: 

Kindergarten 3,505,966 191,682 3,103,648 3,385,465 318,183 
Gr.Ides 1-5 20,542,891 1,449,200 21,992,091 20,549,151 1,442,940 
Grades 6-8 1,315,562 (50,026) 1,325,536 6,654,1J1 611,425 
Grades 9-12 14,319,631 (412,816) 13,966,161 12,618,164 1,288,591 

Instruction-home instruction: 
Salaries of teachers 285,895 285,895 241,318 38,511 
Purchased professional educational services 100,000 436,000 536,000 303,362 232,638 

Regular programs - undistributed instruction: 
Other salaries for instruction 1,110,658 246,904 1,951,562 1,162,292 195,210 
Purchased professional educational services 80,160 2,288,315 2,368,535 2,009,159 359,316 
Purchased professional technical services Jl4,668 114,668 Jl4,668 
Other purchased services 585,612 4,348 589,960 412,085 111,815 
General supplies 1,866,416 1,416,138 3,343,214 2,181,919 555,295 
Textbooks 518,806 45,109 563,915 422,521 141,394 
Other objects 5.550 5.550 5.416 14 

Total regular programs 50,951,663 5,801,612 56,153,335 51,391,691 5,361,644 

Special education: 
Cognitive - mild: 

Salaries of teachers 149,383 149,611 299,000 298,294 106 
Other salaries for instruction 19.463 62.531 142000 140.102 1898 

Total cognitive - mild 228,846 212,154 441,000 438,396 2,604 

Learning and/or language disabilities: 
Salaries of teachers 1,994,891 205,109 2,200,000 2,118,411 21,523 
Other salaries for instruction 955.811 205935 1.161146 1.016.661 85.085 

Total Learning and/or language disabilities 2,950,102 411,044 3,361,146 3,255,138 106,608 

Behavioral disabilities: 

Salaries of teachers 95,000 85,000 180,000 151,119 28,821 

Other salaries for instruction 35,000 109,000 144,000 102,601 41,399 
Total behavioral disabilities 130,000 194,000 324,000 253,180 10,220 
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Trenton School District 

General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
(Budgetary Basis) 

Year ended June 30,2012 

Variance 
Original Budget Final Final to 
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actual 

Expenditures (continued) 
Current (continued): 

Special education (continued): 
Multiple disabilities: 

Salaries of teachers 929,017 (149,617) 779,400 691,310 88,090 
Other salaries of instruction 491.846 491.846 369.302 122.544 

Total multiple disabilities 1,420,863 (149,617) 1,271,246 1,060,612 210,634 

Resource room/resource center. 
Salaries of teachers 6,091,940 887,027 6,978,967 6,764,525 214,442 
Other salaries of instruction 212.000 212 000 100.614 111.386 

Total resource room/resource center 6,091,940 1,099,027 7,190,967 6,865,139 325,828 

Autism: 
Salaries of teachers 219,747 48,085 267,832 264,861 2,971 
Other salaries of instruction 215.574 1.709 217.283 217.282 I 

Total autism 435,321 49,794 485,115 482,143 2,972 

Preschool disabilities - full time: 
Salaries of teachers 382,980 143,020 526,000 523,531 2,469 
Other salaries fOT instruction 438.934 144.066 583.000 531208 51.792 

Total preschool handicapped - part/full time 821.914 287.086 1.109.000 1054.739 54.261 
Total special education 12.079586 2.103.488 14183.074 13.409947 773.127 

Bilingual education: 
Salaries 5,506,627 5,506,627 5,062,380 444,247 
Other salaries fOT instruction 328.256 (36.080) 292.176 254349 37.827 

Total bilingual education 5.834.883 (36.080) 5798803 5316729 482.074 

Basic skills/remedial: 
Salaries 270,072 8,812 278,884 278,884 
Other salaries for instruction 112558 2442 115.000 113.901 1099 

Total basic skills/remedial 382.630 11254 393884 392785 1.099 

School sponsored cocunicular activities: 
Salaries 125.000 29.980 154.980 87.723 67.257 

Total school sponsored cocunicular activities 125,000 29,980 154,980 87,723 67,257 

School sponsored athletic activities: 
Salaries 704,652 152,523 857,175 759,736 97,439 
Purchased services 250,000 250,000 77,901 172,099 
Supplies and materials 101,329 107,831 209,160 131,366 77,794 
Other objects 82880 82880 8,555 74325 

Total school sponsored athletic activities 1,138,861 260,354 1,399,215 977,558 421,657 

Other instructional programs: 
Salaries 250,000 (37,192) 212,808 189,481 23,327 
Travel 3,166 3,166 3,166 
Supplies and materials 31,053 31,053 14,039 17,014 
Other objects 5.973 5973 5.973 

Total other instructional programs 250,000 3,000 253,000 209,493 43,507 

Before/after school programs - instruction: 
Salaries 120,000 (120,000) 
Purchased professional & technical services 342.216 (22.000) 320.216 303.877 16.339 

Total before/after school programs - instruction 462.216 (142.000) 320.216 303.877 16.339 

Before/after school programs - support services: 
Salaries 203680 22000 225.680 225.267 413 

Total before/after school programs - support services 203,680 22,000 225,680 225,267 413 

Summer school - instruction: 
Salaries of teachers 60160 60.160 55.530 4.630 

Total summer school - instruction 60,160 60,160 55,530 4,630 

Instructional alternative education program - instruction: 
Salaries of teachers 875,273 875,273 503,097 372,176 
Purchased professional and technical services 351,750 9,004 360,754 9,004 351,750 
Supplies and materials 109,896 109,896 103,625 6,271 
Textbooks 20.000 20000 9.739 10.261 

Total instructional alternative education program - instruction 351,750 1,014,173 1,365,923 625,465 740,458 

Alternative education program - support services: 
Salaries 585,984 585,984 497,499 88,485 
Purchased professional and technical services 35,000 35,000 35,000 
Purchased services 7,760 7,760 5,760 2,000 
Supplies and materials 34,509 34,509 33,701 808 
Other objects 2.903 2.903 2.084 819 

Total alternative education program - support services 666,156 666,156 539,044 127,112 

Other supplemental/at-risk programs - instruction: 
Salaries of teachers 1,516,200 1,516,200 1,310,287 205,913 
Salaries of reading specialists 844 100 (844.100) 

Total other supplemental/at-risk programs - instruction 2.360.300 (844.100) 1.516.200 1.310.287 205.913 
Total- instruction 74,200,729 8,889,897 83,090,626 74,845,396 8,245,230 

64 



C-1 
p.3 

(continued) 

Trenton School District 
General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
(Budgetary Basis) 

Year ended June 30,2012 

Variance 
Original Budget Final Final to 
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actnal 

Expenditures (continued) 
Current (continued): 

Undistributed expenditures: 
Instruction: 

Tuition to other school districts in the state-regular 1,085,215 1,085,215 960,608 124,607 
Tuition to other school districts in the state-special 1,077,290 1,077,290 910,867 166,423 
Tuition to county vocational-regular 1,\31,072 (1,075,259) 55,813 1,944 53,869 
Tuition to county spec. svcs. & rd 17,194,180 1,077,838 18,272,018 18,262,839 9,179 
Tuition to private school - disabled in state 12,093,687 (3,862, lSI) 8,231,506 5,888,613 2,342,893 
Tuition to private school - disabled out state 401,012 401,012 382,807 18,205 
Tuition to state facilities 3,359,286 (1,000,000) 2,359,286 2,318,248 41,038 
Tuition - other 1940000 57.201 1.997201 1.883.340 113.861 

Total undistributed expenditures - instruction 35,718,225 (2,238,884) 33,479,341 30,609,266 2,870,075 

Attendance and social work services: 
Salaries 1,010,295 (54,198) 956,097 925,213 30,884 
Salaries of Family Liaisons/Comm Parent Inv. Specialists 557,207 141,457 698,664 674,067 24,597 
Purchased professional and technical services 365,240 (214,606) 150,634 89,350 61,284 
Other purchased services 135,520 (51,717) 83,803 73,108 10,695 
Supplies and material 25,000 14,458 39,458 36,700 2,758 
Other objects 2.642 2642 2642 

Total attendance and social work services 2,093,262 (161,964) 1,931,298 1,801,080 130,218 

Health services: 
Salaries 2,123,621 164,718 2,288,339 2,005,289 283,050 
Purchased professional and technical services 67,988 (65) 67,923 57,103 10,820 
Other purchased services 2,200 2,200 2,200 
Supplies and materials 39,642 642 40,284 36,573 3,711 

Other objects 800 800 800 

Total health services 2,233,451 166,095 2,399,546 2,099,765 299,781 

Speech, OT, PT & related services: 
Salaries 1,694,540 1,694,540 1,543,539 151,001 
Purchased professional - educational services 149.100 149100 130160 18.940 

Total speech, OT, PT & related services 1,694,540 149,100 1,843,640 1,673,699 169,941 

Other support services students - extra services 
Purchased professional - educational services 500.000 811.225 1.311 225 1.310225 1000 

Total other support services students - extra services 500,000 811,225 1,311,225 1,310,225 1,000 

Guidance: 
Salaries of other professional staff 2,887,191 257,976 3,145,167 2,974,844 170,323 
Other salaries 923.115 237.349 1.160.464 998730 161.734 

Total guidance 3,810,306 495,325 4,305,631 3,973,574 332,057 

Child study teams: 
Salaries of other prof. staff 3,499,337 21,312 3,520,649 3,296,205 224,444 
Salaries secretary/clerical assts. 247,032 247,032 199,944 47,088 

Other salaries 108,607 15,258 123,865 123,865 

Purchased prof. ed. services 492,248 580,164 1,072,412 687,019 385,393 
Other purchased professional and technical services 21,317 50,000 71,317 69,197 2,120 
Other purchased services 10,000 6,497 16,497 2,906 13,591 
Supplies and materials 25,000 12,584 37,584 37,584 

Other objects 2,400 2,400 2,400 

Total child study teams 4,403,541 688,215 5,091,756 4,419,120 672,636 

Improvement of instructional services: 
Salaries of supervisors of instruction 821,473 (197,100) 624,373 461,371 163,002 
Salaries of other professional staff 345,195 (245,000) 100,195 98,515 1,680 
Salaries of secretarial and clerical assistants 56,100 21,347 77,447 77,251 196 
Salaries of Facilitators, Math & Literacy Coaches 804,000 804,000 108,000 696,000 
Purchased prof. ed. services 50,000 349,500 399,500 374,526 24,974 
Other purchased services 150,000 (150,000) 
Supplies and materials 16,508 101,358 117,866 19,007 98,859 

Other objects 5,957 5,957 5,957 

Total improvement of instructional services 1,439,276 690,062 2,129,338 1,144,627 984,711 

Educational media/library services: 
Salaries 1,893,177 112,988 2,006,165 1,753,160 253,005 
Supplies and materials 256.443 16.824 273.267 234933 38.334 

Total educational media/library services 2,149,620 129,812 2,279,432 1,988,093 291,339 

Instructional staff training services: 
Other salaries 46,180 46,180 9,514 36,666 
Other purchased services 1.172 1.172 172 1.000 

Total instructional staff training services 47,352 47,352 9,686 37,666 

Support services - general administration: 
Salaries 323,606 170,907 494,513 454,954 39,559 
Legal services 450,000 400,000 850,000 472,702 377,298 
Audit fees 198,000 2,000 200,000 172,000 28,000 
Other purchased professional services 20,000 20,000 20,000 
Purchased tech. services 10,000 10,000 750 9,250 
Communicationsltelephone 630,000 630,000 515,496 114,504 
BOE other purchased services 3,000 3,000 2,808 192 
Other purchased services 10,000 22,800 32,800 10,252 22,548 
General supplies 8,000 5,000 13,000 9,974 3,026 
BOE in-house training/meeting supplies 9,000 (2,000) 7,000 4,412 2,588 
Miscellaneous expenditures 17,000 4,500 21,500 1l,745 9,755 
Judgments against the school district 100,000 100,000 84,517 15,483 
BOE membership dues and fees 30.000 30.000 26.663 3.337 

Total support services - general administration 1,775,606 636,207 2,411,813 1,786,273 625,540 65 
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(continued) 

Trenton School District 
General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
(Budgetary Basis) 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Variance 

Original Budget Final Final to 

Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actual 

Expenditures (continued) 
Current (continued): 

Undistributed expenditures (continued): 
Centrnl services: 

Salaries 2,326,083 220,888 2,546,911 2,213,491 213,414 
Purchased professional services 40,000 231,400 211,400 61,136 203,664 
Purchased technical services 95,000 43,800 138,800 101,612 31,128 
Miscellaneous purchased services 95 65,800 65,895 42,738 23,157 
Supplies and materials 65,000 67,000 132,000 84,868 47,132 
Miscellaneous expenditures 116.000 {2.0oo) 114.000 20.659 93.341 

Total central services 2,642,178 626,888 3,269,066 2,597,170 611,896 

Admin. Infonnation technology: 
Salaries 860,563 174,712 1,035,215 1,028,179 7,096 
Purchased professional services 802,542 (306,000) 496,542 477,369 19,173 
Purchased technical services 110,000 102,116 212,116 50,455 161,661 
Other purchased services 8,800 128,219 137,019 736,811 208 
Supplies and materials 15,000 6,078 81,078 50,808 30,210 
Other obj ects 2400 2400 2400 

Total admin. Information technology 1,856,905 701,525 2,564,430 2,346,022 218,408 

Support services - school administJation: 
Salaries of principals!asst. principals!prgm. directors 4,812,672 815,896 5,688,568 5,212,165 476,403 
Salaries secretary/clerical assts. 1,874,362 212,232 2,086,594 1,906,117 180,477 
Other salaries 10,080 10,080 10,021 59 
Other purchased services 87,070 8,344 95,414 49,125 46,289 
Supplies and materials 115.398 {4.172) 111.226 70.136 41.090 

Total support services - school administJation 6,949,502 1,042,380 7,991,882 7,247,564 744,318 

Required maintenance for school facilities: 
Salaries 1,110,354 771,322 2,481,676 2,379,846 101,830 
Cleaning, repair & maint. services 375,000 800,000 1,115,000 998,651 116,349 
General supplies 845,000 391,588 1,236,588 952,114 284,414 
Other objects 48500 48500 42,295 6205 

Total required maintenance for school facilities 2,978,854 1,962,910 4,941,764 4,312,966 568,198 

Custodial services: 
Salaries 495,862 6,421,532 6,917,394 5,984,142 933,252 
Cleaning, repair & maintenance services 4,812,746 (4,311,000) 501,746 340,466 161,280 
Other purchased property services 640,000 (63,604) 516,396 536,000 40,396 
Insurance 1,879,329 (15,000) 1,864,329 1,317,803 546,526 
Misc. purchased services 150,000 1,000 151,000 58,424 92,576 
General supplies 750,000 (350,000) 400,000 396,387 3,613 
Energy (electricity) 6.109.000 (980300) 5.128700 4.115888 1.012812 

Total custodial services 14,836,931 702,628 15,539,565 12,749,110 2,790,455 

Care and upkeep of grounds: 
Salaries 86684 86.684 86.684 

Total care and upkeep of grounds 86,684 86,684 86,684 

Security: 
Salaries 
Purchased prof. & tech. services 3.300.000 {621.648} 2618.352 2.615.356 2.996 

Total security 3,300,000 (621,648) 2,678,352 2,615,356 2,996 

Student transportation services: 
Salaries for pupil trans. - (home to sch.) -Reg 219,148 (160,010) 59,678 54,127 5,551 
Other purchased professional and technical services 100,000 5,410 105,470 105,470 
Cleaning, repair & maint. services 12,697 12,691 2,067 10,630 
Contracted servo (Sp Ed Stds) - vendor 5,000,000 (3,047,898) 1,952,102 1,909,409 42,693 
Contr. servo (between home & sch.) - vendors 512,000 512,000 501,246 10,154 
Contracted serv. (home to sch.) - joint agnnnts 3,379,976 3,379,976 3,323,643 56,333 
Contr. servo Aid in lieu of payments-Non Public 150,000 150,000 143,337 6,663 
Misc. purchased serv. transportation 200,000 200,000 199,990 10 
Supplies and materials 5.000 5000 2.461 2.539 

Total student transportation services 5,779,348 923,082 6,102,430 6,436,184 266,246 

Personnel services - unallocated employee benefits: 
Social security contr. - other 3,000,000 3,000,000 2,590,789 409,211 
Other retirement contr. - PERS 3,196,419 3,196,419 3,038,195 158,224 
Other retirement contributions - ERIP 1,841,875 1,841,875 1,841,875 
Other retirement contributions - deferred PERS payment 151,739 1,206,631 1,358,310 1,358,370 
Unemployment 2,456,142 (600,000) 1,856,142 1,311,752 544,390 
Workers compensation 2,864,911 2,864,911 1,840,153 1,024,758 
Health benefits 31,544,467 1,410,836 32,955,303 28,876,350 4,078,953 
Tuition reimbursement 595,926 595,926 258,491 337,435 
Other employee benefits 4.694183 600.000 5.294183 5.262.963 31.220 

Total personnel services - unallocated employee benefits 50,345,662 2,611,467 52,963,129 46,378,938 6,584,191 
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Expenditures (continued) 
On-behalf payments: 

Reimbursed TPAF post-retirement pension contributions 
Reimbursed TPAF social security contributions 

Total on-behalf payments 
Total undistributed expenditures 

Total expenditures - current 

Capital outlay: 
Equipment: 

Regular programs - instruction: 
Grades 1-5 
Grades 9-12 

Undistributed expenditures: 
Other support services - students special 
Support services - instructional staff 
Central services 

Admin. Information technology 

Required maintenance for school facilities 
Custodial services 
Care and upkeep of grounds 
Athletics 

Total equipment 

Facilities acquisition and construction services: 
Construction services 

Total facilities acquisition and construction svcs. 
Total capital outlay 

Special schools: 
Accredited evening/adult/post grad.- instruction: 

Salaries of teachers 
Total ace. evening/adult/post grad.- instruction 

Total special schools 
Transfer of funds to charter schools 
Total expenditures 
(Deficiency) excess of revenues 
(under) over expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfer in - Contribution to 

school based budgets - GF 
Transfer in - Contribution to 

school based budgets - SRF 
Transfer out - Contribution to 

school based budgets 
Total other financing sources (uses) 
(Deficiency) excess of revenues 

(under) over expenditures and 
other financing sources (uses) 

Fund balances, July I 
Fund balances, June 30 

Recapitulation of fund balance: 
Restricted for: 

E.xcess surolus desil!llated for subseauent Years - restricted 
Excess surolus - current vear - restricted 
Maintenance reserve 

Assigned: 
Year end encumbrances 
Subsequent years expenditures 

Unassigned 
Fund balance (C-I) 

Reconciliation to Government Funds Statements GAAP: 
Last state aid payments not recognized on GAAP basis 

Fund balance per Government Funds (GAAP) (B-2) 
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p. I 

(continued) 
Trenton School District 

General Fund 

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 
(Budgetary Basis) 

Orlsln.1 Budset Budset Transfers Final Budset Ex~cndcd 

Operating Blended Total Operating Blended Totul Operating Blended Total OperaUng Blended Totu! 
Fund Resource Ceneral Fund RC$iource Ceneral Fund Resource General Fund Rc,ollrc:e General 

Fund. 1\-13 and 18 Fund IS Fund Funds 11-13 and 18 Fund IS Fund Fund. 11-13 .nd 18 Fund IS Fund Funds 11-13 and 18 Fund IS Fund 

ReveDI'cs 
Local sourceg: 

Local lax levy 21,115,662 $ 21,115,662 21,115,662 21,115,662 21,115,662 21.115,662 
Miscellaneous 980885 980885 980885 980885 2165492 2 165492 

Total - local ,ource. 22,096,547 22,096,547 22,096,547 22,096,547 23,281,154 23,281,154 

Slole sources: 
Security Aid 5,166,860 5,166,860 (223,055) (223,055) 4,943,805 4,943,805 4,943,805 4,943,805 
Adjustment Aid 13,275,688 13,275,688 9,324,193 9,324,193 22,599,881 22,599,881 22,599,881 22,599,881 
Equnlization Aid 189,406.692 189,406,692 572.243 572.243 189,978,935 189,978,935 189,978.935 18'),978,935 
Transportation Aid 2,410,306 2,410,306 80,304 80,304 2,490,610 2,490,610 2,490,610 2,490.610 
Special education Aid 7,614,973 7,614.973 279,362 279,362 7,894,335 7,894,335 7,894,335 7,894,335 
Other 6,928 6.928 
Extraordinary Aid 547,915 547.915 547,915 547,915 848,969 848,969 
Additional Non Public TrnnspOItation Aid J2,083 32,083 
Reimbursed TP AF post-retirement 

pension contributions (non-budgeted) 7,854,872 7,854,872 
Reimbursed TPAF social security 

contribution. (non-budgeted) 5993077 5993077 
Total- sllltc$ources 2 I 8,422,434 218,422,434 10,033,047 1O,033.(l47 228,455,481 228,455,481 242.643.495 242,643,495 

Federal ~ources: 
Medicaid l'cill1bursemenl 369,762 369.762 369.762 369,762 357.165 357,165 
PL 81-874 (lmpacl Aid) 5,157 5,157 
Education Job. Fund 7553060 7553060 236623 236623 7,789,683 7789683 7789,683 7,789,683 

Total - feclerul sources 7922822 7922822 236623 236623 8159445 8159445 8152005 8152005 
Total revenues 248.44 I .803 248,44 I ,803 10,269.670 10,269,670 258,711.473 258,711,473 274,076,654 274,076,654 

Exp •• dUures 
Current: 

Instruction - regular prognulls: 
Salaries of teachers: 

Kindergarten 3,505,966 3,505,966 197,682 197.682 3.703,648 3,703,648 $ 3,385,465 3,385,465 
Grades 1-5 660,000 19,882,89\ 20,542.891 (5,000) 1,454,200 1,449,200 655,000 21,337,091 21,992,091 618,100 19,931,051 20,549,151 
Grndes6-8 420,000 6.955,562 7,375,562 (325,000) 274,974 (50.026) 95,000 7,230,536 7.325,536 64,826 6,589,285 6,654,11 I 
Grudes9-12 600,000 13,779,637 14,379,637 (378,721) (34,155) (412,876) 221,279 13.745,482 13,966,761 186,375 12.491,789 12,678,164 

Instruction-home imdruclion; 
Salaries of leachers 285,895 285,895 285,895 285.895 247,318 247,318 
Purchosed professional educotional services 100.000 100,000 436,000 436,000 536,000 536,000 303,362 303,362 

Regular programs - undistributed instruction: 
Other snlnries for instruction 1,710,658 1,710,658 100.000 146,904 246,904 100,000 1.857,562 1,957,562 77,OO() 1,(.85,292 1,762,292 
Purchased professional educational services 80,160 80.160 2,203,502 84.873 2,288,375 2,203,502 165,033 2,368,535 1.903,981 105,178 2,009,159 
Purchosed profC.llsional technical services 114,668 114,668 114,668 114,668 114,668 114,668 
Other pun;hased services 585.612 585.612 4,348 4,348 589,960 589,960 472,085 472,085 
General .upplie. 1,866,476 1.866,476 46,316 1,430,422 1,476,738 46,316 3,296,898 3,343,214 46.316 2,741,603 2,787,919 
Textbook. 518,806 518,806 45,109 45,109 563,915 563,915 422,521 422,521 
OU,erobjecls 5550 5550 5550 5550 5476 5476 

Tolal regular programs 2,065,895 48.885,768 50.951,663 2.077,097 3,724.575 5,801,672 4,142,992 52,610.343 56,753,335 3,447,278 47,944,413 51.391,691 
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(continued) 

Trenton School District 
General Fund 

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 
(Budgetary Basis) 

OrlSi.ol Budset Budset Tron.fen Final Budget E.~.ndcd 

Operutl.g Bleaded Total Operotlng Bleaded Total Operating Bleaded Total Operullag Bleaded ToM 
Fund Resource General Fund Relourcc General Fund Resource General Fund RCliourcc Ge.erul 

Funds 11·13 ond 18 Fund IS Fund Funds 11·13 and 18 Fund IS Fund Fund. 1J·13 and 18 Fund IS Fund Fu.d. 11·13 a.d IS Fund 15 Fund 

ExpendUures (conllnued) 
Current (continued): 

Special educalion (conlinued): 
Cognilive· mild: 

299,000 298,294 298,294 Balmes DC teachers 149,383 149,383 149,617 149,617 299,000 
Other salaries for instruction 79463 79463 62537 62537 142000 142000 140102 140102 

Tolal cognitive. mild 228,846 228,846 212,154 212,154 441,000 441,000 438,396 438,396 

Learning anc.llor lungunge disabilities: 
Salaries of teachers 1,994,891 1,994,891 205,109 205,109 2,200,000 2,200,000 2,178,477 2,178,477 
Other salaries of in:.l1uction 955811 955811 205935 205935 I 161746 1161746 1076661 1076661 

Totalleaming andlor longuoge disabilities 2,950,702 2,950,702 411,044 411,044 3,361.746 3,361,746 3,255,138 3,255,138 

Bt!hovioral disobilities: 
Salaries of teachers 95,000 95,000 85,000 85,000 180,000 180,000 151,179 151,179 

Other salaries of instruction 35000 35000 109000 109000 144,000 144000 102,601 102601 

TolDl behavioral disabilities 130,000 130,000 194,000 194,000 324,000 324,000 253,780 253,780 

Multiple disabilities: 
Salarie.'c of leachers 929,017 929,017 (149,617) (149,617) 779,400 779,4011 691,310 691.310 
Other salaries of instruction 491846 491846 491846 491846 369302 369302 

Tolal mUltiple disabilities 1,420,863 1,420,863 (149,617) (149,617) 1,271,246 1,271,246 1,060,612 1,060,612 

Resource room/resource center. 
Salari .. ofteachers 6,091,940 6,091,940 881,027 887,027 6,978,967 6,978,967 6,1<>4,525 6,7<>4,525 
OUler salaries of instruction 212000 212000 212000 212000 100,614 100614 

Total resource room/resource center 6,091,940 6,091,940 1,099,027 1,099,027 7,190,967 7,190,961 6,865,139 6,865,139 

Autism: 
Sohuies of leochers 219,747 219,147 48,085 48,085 267,832 267,832 264,861 264,861 
QU,er salaries of instruction 215514 215514 1709 1709 217283 217283 217282 217282 

Totolnutism 435,321 435,321 49,794 49,794 485,115 485,115 482,143 482,143 

Preschool uisabilities - full tim!:: 
Salariesofleachers 382,980 382,980 143,020 143,020 526,000 526,000 523,531 523,531 
Othcr snlnric., of instruction 438934 438934 144066 144066 5830()0 583000 531208 531208 

Total preschool disabilities· rull time 821914 821914 287086 287086 I 109000 1 109000 1054739 1054739 
Tornl special education 12019586 12079586 2103488 2103488 14183014 14 183014 13 4()9 947 13,409947 

Bilingual educodon: 
Salaries 5,506,621 5,506,627 5,506,627 5,506,627 5,062,380 5,062,380 
Other salarie. of instruction 328256 328256 P6080l (3608Ol 292 176 292 176 254349 254349 

TolDl bilingual education 5,834,883 5,834,883 (36,080) (36,080) 5,798,803 5,198,803 5,316,129 5,316,129 

Basic skills/remedial: 
Salaries of leachen< 270,012 270,072 8,812 8,812 278,884 278,884 218,884 278,884 
Other salaries of instructiol\ 112558 112558 2442 2442 115000 115000 113901 113901 

Total basic .kills/remedial 382,630 382,630 11,254 11,254 393,884 393,884 392,185 392,785 

School sponsoreu cocurricular activities: 
Salari .. 125000 125000 (125000l $ 154980 29980 154980 154980 81123 87123 

Total school spolUlored cocunicular activities 125,000 125,000 (125,000) 154,980 29,980 154,980 154,980 87,723 87,723 

School sponsored atldetic activities: 
Salaries 704,652 704,652 152,523 152,523 857,175 851,115 759,736 759,736 
Purchased services 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 77,901 77,901 
Supplies and material. 101,329 101,329 107,831 107,831 209,160 209,160 131,366 131,366 
OUlerobjects 82880 82880 82880 82880 8,555 8555 

TolBl.chool sponsored aUlIetic activili .. 1,138,861 1,138,861 260,354 260,354 1,399,215 1,399,215 917,558 977,558 

Other instructional programs: 
Salaries 250,000 250,000 (37,192) (31,192) 212,808 212,808 189,481 189,481 
Travel 3,166 3,166 3,166 3,166 
Supplil:S anu materials 31.053 31,053 31,053 31,053 14,039 14,039 
Other object. 5973 5913 5973 5,973 5973 5,973 

Tolal oU,er instructional progmm. 250,000 250,000 3,000 3,000 253,(1)0 253,000 209,493 209,493 
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(continued) 

Trenton School District 
General Fund 

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 
(Budgetruy Basis) 

Orlgln.1 Bud~et Budael Tran.rerl Fln.1 Budget Ex~onded 

Operating Blended Tolal Opera ling Blended Tolal Operallng BleDded Tol.1 Operating Blend.d Tol.1 

Fund Resource General Fund Resource Geheral Fund Re50urC'c GeDeral Fund Resource General 
Fund. 11·13 .nd 18 Fund 15 Fund Funds 11·13 .nd 18 Fund IS Fund Funds 11·13 and 18 Fund IS Fund Fund. 11·13 .nd 18 Fund 15 Fund 

Expenditure, (continued) 
Current (continued): 

Before/after Hchool progrwns .. instruction: 
Salarie. 120,000 120,000 (120,OUO) (120,000) 
Purch ... ed profe •• ional & technical services 342216 342216 {22000l {220001 s 320216 320216 3U3877 303877 

Tolal before/oner school programs .. instruction 462216 462216 {142000l {142000l 320216 32U 216 303877 303877 

Before/aner school progrnm ••• upport services: 
Salaries 203680 203680 22000 22000 2256S0 225680 225267 225267 

Totol before/nner school pmgrams .. support services 20),680 203,680 22,000 22,000 225,680 225,680 225,267 225,267 

SUmmer school .. instl1lction: 
SoJariesofteochers 60160 60160 60160 60160 55530 5S531l 

Total summer Hchool .. lnsullction 60,160 60,160 60,160 60,160 55,530 55,530 

Alternative education program .. instruction: 
Salurie. ofteachers 875,273 875,273 875,273 875,273 503,097 503,097 
Purcha.ed proCessional and lechnicalservice. 351,750 351,750 9,004 9,004 351,750 9,004 360,754 9,004 9,004 

Supplies and material. 109,896 109,896 109,896 109,896 103,625 103,625 

Texlbooks 20000 20000 20000 20000 9739 9739 
Total alternative education progrum .. instnlclion 351,750 351,750 1,014,173 1,014,173 351,750 1,014,173 1,365,923 625,465 625,465 

Alternative education program· support service .. ~: 
Salaries 585,984 585,984 585,984 585,984 497,499 497,499 
Purchased professional and lechnicnl.ervices 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 
Purchased services 7,760 7,760 7,760 7,760 5,760 5,760 
Supplies and material. 34,509 34,509 34,509 34,509 33,701 33,701 
OUler objects 2903 2903 2903 2903 2084 2084 

Totnl allemalive educotion program· .upport service. 666,156 666,156 666,156 666,156 539,044 539,044 

Other supplementol/al.risk program •• in.truction 
Sahuies of teachers 1,516,200 1,516,200 1,516,200 1,516,200 1,310,287 1,310,287 
Snlooies of rending speciolists 844100 844100 !844100l {844100} 

Tolal other supplementollat.risk program •• instruction 2360 300 2360300 {844100l {844100l 1516200 1516200 1310 287 1310287 
Totol - instruction 25,314,961 $ 48,885,768 $ 74,200,729 3,330,013 $ 5,559,8S4 $ 8,889,897 28,644,974 $ 54,445,652 $ 83,090,626 25,648,751 $ 49,196,645 $ 74,845,396 

Undistributed expenditures: 
Instruction: 

Tuition to other school dislricls in the Nwte .. regular 1,085,215 1,085,215 1,085,215 1,085,215 960,608 96IJ,('()8 
Tuition to oUlcr school dililricts in the stDte-lripecial 1,077,290 1,077,290 1,077,290 1,077,290 910,867 910,867 
Tuition to county vocational-regular 1,131',072 1,131,072 (1,075,259) (1,075,259) 55,813 55,813 1,944 1.944 
Tuition to county spec. svcs. & rds 17,194,180 17,194,180 1,077,838 1,077,838 18,272,018 18,272,018 18,262,839 18,262,839 
Tuition to private school .. disobleu in slate 12,093,687 12,093,687 (3,862,181) (3,862,181) 8,231,506 8,231,506 5,888,613 5,888,613 
Tuilion to private school- disabled oul slate 401,012 401,012 401,012 401,012 382,B07 382,so7 
Tuition to slate facilitics 3,359,286 3,359,286 (1,000,000) ( 1,000,000) 2,359,286 2,359,286 2,318,248 2,318,248 
Tuition - other I 940000 I 940000 57201 57201 1997201 1997201 1883340 1.883340 

Totol undistributed eXP'o'Ddilure •• instruction 35,718,225 35,718,225 (2,238,884) (2,238,884) 33,479,341 33,479,341 30,609,266 30,609,266 

Allendance anu l'iOciol work services: 
Salaries 866,888 143,407 1,010,295 7,802 (62,000) (54,198) 874,690 81,407 956,097 844,327 BO,8S6 925,213 
Salaries of Family Liaison./Comm Parent Inv, Speciali.ts 49,596 507,61/ 557,207 67,000 74,457 141,457 116,596 582,068 698,664 1117,171 566,896 674,067 
Purcha.ed profes.ional ond teclmical service. 260,240 1115,000 365,240 (199,606) (15,000) (214,606) 60,634 90,000 150,634 54,350 3S,OIXI 89,350 
Other purchased services 135,520 135,520 (51,717) (51,717) 83,803 83,81l3 73,1118 73,1118 
Supplic!i and materials 25,000 25,000 14,458 14,458 39,458 39,458 36,700 36,700 
QU,er objects 2642 2642 2642 2642 2642 2642 

Tolal allendnnce and social work serviceN 1,337,244 756,018 2,093,262 (159,421) (2,543) (161,964) 1,177,823 753,475 1,931,298 1,IIB,298 682,782 1,801,080 

Health_ervices: 
Sularie. 186,122 1,937,499 2,123,621 100,000 64,718 164,718 286,122 2,002,217 2,288,339 200,638 1,804,651 2,005,289 
Purchased professional Dnd teclmical services 67,988 67,988 (65) (65) 67,923 67,923 57,103 57,1113 
OUler purchased services 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200 
Supplie., and materials 25,000 14,642 39,642 (735) 1.377 642 24,265 16,019 40,284 24,263 12,3111 36,573 
OUler object. 800 800 800 800 SOO 800 

Total health service. 281,310 1,952,141 2,233,451 100,000 66,Il95 166,095 381,310 2,018,236 2,399,546 282,81l4 1,816,961 2,099,765 

Speech, OT, PT & related .ervice.: 
Salaries 1,694,540 1,694,540 1,694,540 1.694,540 1,543,539 1,543,539 
Purchasecl profess.ional - educational services 149100 149100 149100 149100 130160 130160 

Tolal .peech, OT, PT & related services 1,694,540 1,694,540 149,100 149,100 1,843,640 1,843,640 1,673,699 1,673,699 

QUler support services students - extra services 
Purchased professional - educational services 500000 500000 811225 811225 1311225 1311225 1310225 1310225 

Totol oU,er .upport .ervice. studenls • exlrn .ervices 500,000 500,000 811,225 811,225 1,311,225 1,311,225 1,310,225 1,3111,225 

GuidiUlce: 
Salaries of other professional _toIT 2,887,191 2,887,191 257,976 257,976 3,145,167 3,145,167 2,974,844 2,974,844 
Olhersnlaries 923115 923 liS 237349 237349 I 160464 I 160464 998730 998731l 

Tolal guidance 3,810,306 3,810,306 495,325 495,325 4,305,631 4,305,631 3,973,574 3,973,574 
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ExpeaditureJl (continued) 
Currenl (conlinued); 

Undistribuled expenditures (continued); 
Child sludy learns: 

Salaries of other prof. slolT 
Salaries sccrclnJy/clenco.l nsslx. 
Other.alari .. 
Purchased professional educational services 
Other purchwred professional and teciUlical services 
Miscelllll1eous purchased services 
Supplies and materials 
OtherobjecL. 

Total child .Iudy leam. 

Improvement of instructional service..,: 
Salaries of supervisors of instruction 
Solaries of other professionol stalT 
Salaries of secrelnrial and clerical assistants 
Salaries of Facilitators, Math & Literacy Coaches 
Purcha.~ed pmfes!donal educational services 
Other purchased services 
Supplies and malerials 
Olherobjeclll 

Tolal improvement of instnlctional services 

Educational mediollibrary services: 
Salaries 
Supplies and onalerial. 

TolDl educational mcdiollibrW)' services 

Instructional sluff training services: 
OUlersalaries 
Other purchosed services 

Total in!dJ.1Jctional staff lrnining services 

Support services - general administration; 
Salaries 
Legalservic .. 
Audilfee. 
Other purchased professional services 
PurclUl. .. d lech. services 
Communications/telephone 
BOE oU,er purchased .ervices 
Miscellaneous purchased services 
General supplies 
BOE in-hoWle traininghneeting supplies 
Miscellaneous expenditures 
Judgments against the school districi 
BOE membership dues and fee. 

Total support .ervices - generol administration 

Centrolservices: 
Salaries 
Purchased professional services 
Purchased lechnical services 
Miscellaneous purchased services 
Supplies and malerials 
Miscellaneou. expenditures 

Total central services 

Admin. Information lechnology; 
Salaries 
Purcha.ed professional service. 
Purchased lechnical services 
Olher purchased service.~ 
Supplies and materials 
OUler objecls 

Tolal odmin. Informalion technology 

Trenton School District 
General Fund 

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30,2012 
(Budgetary Basis) 

Orlslnal Budsel Budset TrBUferJ Flaal Budsel 

Ope .. tlng Blended Total Ope .. tlng Blended Tolal Operating Blended 
Fund Resource Ce.eral Fund Resource Ceneral Fund Resource 

Fund. 11-13 a.d 18 Fund 15 Fund Fund. 11-13 and 18 Fu.d 15 Fund Fund. 11-13 B.d 18 Fund 15 

3,499,337 3,499,337 21,312 21,312 3,520,649 
247.032 247,032 247,032 
108,607 108,607 15,258 15,258 123,865 
492,248 492,248 580,164 580,164 1,072,412 

21,317 21,317 50,000 50,000 71,317 
10,000 10,000 6,497 6,497 16,497 
25,000 25,000 12,584 12,584 37,584 

2400 2400 2400 
4,403,541 4,403,541 688,215 688,215 5,091,756 

821,473 821,473 (197,100) (197,100) 624,373 
145,000 200,195 345,195 (145,000) $ (100,Oot) (245,000) IUO,I95 
56,100 56,100 21,347 21,347 77,447 

804,000 804,000 804,Oot) 
50,Oot) 50,000 349,500 349,500 399,500 

150,000 150,000 (150,Oot) (150,000) 
16,508 16,508 101,358 101,358 117,866 

5957 5957 5957 
1,239,081 200,195 1,439,276 790,062 (100,1100) 690,062 2,029,143 100,195 

1,893,177 1,893,177 112,988 112,988 2,006,165 
256443 256443 16824 16824 273267 

2,149,620 2,149,620 129,812 129,812 2,279,432 

35,000 11,180 46,180 35,000 11,180 
1172 1172 1172 

35,000 12,352 47,352 35,000 12,352 

323,606 323,606 170,907 170,907 494,513 
450,000 450,000 400,000 400,000 850,000 
198,000 198,000 2,000 2,000 200,000 

20,000 20,000 20,000 
10,000 10,000 10,000 

630,000 630,000 630,000 
3,000 3,000 3,000 

10,000 10,000 22,800 22,800 32,800 
8,000 8,000 5,000 5,000 13,000 
9,000 9,000 (2,000) (2,000) 7,000 

17,000 17,000 4,500 4,500 21,500 
100,000 100,000 100,000 
30000 30000 30000 

1,775,606 1,775,606 636,207 636,207 2,411,813 

2,326,083 2,326,083 220,888 220,888 2,546,971 
40,000 40,000 231.400 231,400 271,4ot) 
95,otlO 95,000 43,800 43,800 138,8110 

95 95 65,800 65,800 65,895 
65,000 65,000 67,000 67,000 132,0110 

116000 1161100 {2OOOl {20ot)l 11400U 
2,642,178 2,642,178 626,888 626,888 3,269,066 

860,563 860,563 174,712 174,712 1,035,275 
802,542 802,542 (306,000) (306,000) 496,542 
110,000 110,000 102,116 102,116 212,116 

8,800 8,800 728,219 728,219 737.019 
75,000 75,000 6,078 6,078 81,078 

2400 24110 2,400 
1,856,905 1,856,905 707,525 707,525 2,564,430 

ToM Operating 
Ceneral Fund 

Fund Funds 11-13 and 18 

3,520,649 3,296,205 
247,032 199,944 
123,865 123,865 

1,072,412 687,019 
71,317 69,197 
16,497 2,906 
37,584 37,584 
2400 2400 

5,091,756 4,419,120 

624,373 461,371 
100,195 
77,447 77,251 

804,000 108,000 
399,500 374,526 

117,866 19,007 
5957 S957 

2,129,338 1,046,112 

2,006,165 
273267 

2,279,432 

46,180 
1172 

47,352 

494,513 454,954 
850,000 472,702 
200,000 172,000 

20,000 20,000 
IU,OUO 75U 

630,000 515,496 
3,000 2,808 

32,800 10,252 
13,000 9,974 
7,000 4,412 

21,500 11,745 
100,000 84,517 
30000 26663 

2,411,813 1,786,273 

2,546,971 2,273,497 
271,400 67,736 
138,800 107,672 
65,895 42,738 

132,000 84,868 
11400U 20659 

3,269,066 2,597,170 

1,035,275 1,028,179 
496,542 477,369 
212,116 50,455 
737,019 736,811 

81,Q78 50,808 
2400 2400 

2,564,430 2,346,022 

Ex~end.d 
Blended 
Resource 
Fund 15 

98,515 

98,515 

1,753,160 
234933 

1,988,093 

9,514 
172 

9,686 

Cola 
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(continued) 

ToM 
General 

Fund 

3.296,205 
199,944 
123,865 
687,019 
69,197 

2,906 
37,584 
2400 

4,419,120 

461,371 
98,515 
77,251 

108,000 
374,526 

19,007 
5957 

1,144,627 

1,753,160 
234933 

1,988,093 

9,514 
172 

9,686 

454,954 
472,702 
I 72,otlO 
2(),OOO 

750 
515,496 

2,8U8 
10,252 
9,974 
4,412 

11,745 
84,517 
26663 

1,786,273 

2,273,497 
67,736 

1U7,672 
42,738 
84,868 
20659 

2,597,170 

1.028,179 
477,369 

50,455 
736,811 

50,808 
2400 

2,346,022 
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p.5 
(continued) 

Trenton School District 
General Fund 

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 
(Budgetary Basis) 

Orlsln.1 Budset Budget Transfers Final Budset El~e.ded 

Operating Blended Total Operating Blended Total Operating Blended Total Operating Blended Tlltal 

Fund Resource Genenl Fund Resource General Fund Resource G.neral Fund RCliource General 
Fund. 11-13 and 18 Fund IS Fund Fund, 11-13 and 18 Fund IS Fund Fund. 11-13 and 18 Fund IS Fund Fund. 11-13 and 18 Fund IS Fund 

Expe.dlture. (eontlnued) 
CUlTent (continued): 

Undis!ributed expenditures (continued): 
Support services - school administration: 

Salaries of principals/asst. principals/prgm. directors $ 4,872,672 $ 4,872,672 446,762 369,134 $ 815,896 446,762 $ 5,241,806 $ 5,688,568 379,918 $ 4,832,247 S 5,212,165 

Salaries secrelm:y/clerical assts. 1,874,362 1,874,362 52,412 159,820 212,232 52,412 2,034,182 2,086,594 41,167 1,864,950 1.906,117 

Othersataries 10,080 10,080 to,080 10,080 10,021 10,021 

Other purchased services 87,070 87,070 8,344 8,344 95,414 95,414 49,125 49,125 

Supplies and materiats 115398 tt5398 (4172l (4172l ttl 226 lit 226 70136 70136 

Total support services - school odministrotion 6,949,502 6,949,502 509,254 533,126 1,042,380 509,254 7,482,628 7,991,882 431,106 6,816,458 7,247,564 

Required mnintenance for .chool facilities: 
Salaries $ 1,710,354 1,710,354 771,322 771,322 2,481,676 2,481,676 2,379,846 2,379,846 

Cleaning. repair & maintenance servicc:J 375,000 375,000 800,000 800,000 1,175,000 1,175,000 998,651 998,651 

General Hupplie., 845,000 845,000 391,588 391,588 1,236,588 1,236,588 952,174 952,174 

OU,erobjects 48500 48500 48500 48 SUO 42295 42295 

Tolal required maintenance for lichool facHitics 2,978,854 2,978,854 1,962,910 1,962,910 4,941,764 4,941,764 4,372,966 4.372,966 

Custodiol !U!rviccs: 
Salaries 495,862 495,862 6,421,532 6,421,532 6,917,394 6,917,394 5,984,142 5,984,142 

Cleaning. repair &. maintenance services 4,812,746 4,812,746 (4,311,000) (4,311,000) 501,746 501,746 340,466 340,466 

OU,er purchased property services 640,000 640,000 (63,6()4) (63,604) 576,396 576.396 536,000 536,1H)O 

Insurnnce 1,879,329 1,879,329 (15,000) (15,000) 1,864,329 1,864,329 1,317,803 1,317,803 

Miscellaneous purchn."icd services 150,000 150,000 1,000 I,OIH) 151,(XJO 151,OOU 58,424 58,424 

Geneml supplies 750,000 750,000 (350,UOO) (350,000) 400,000 400,000 396,387 396,387 

Energy (electricily) 6109000 6109000 (980300l (980300l 5128700 5 128700 4115888 4115888 

Total cuslodial services 14,836,937 14,836,937 702,628 702,628 15,539,565 15,539,565 12,749,110 12,749,110 

Care and upkeep of grounds: 
Salaries 86684 86684 86684 86684 86684 86684 

Total care and upkeep of grounds 86,684 86,684 86,684 86,684 86,684 86,684 

Secarity: 
Purchased prof. & tech. service. 3300000 3300 000 (621648l (621648l 2678352 2678352 2675356 2675,356 

Totals .. urily 3,300,000 3,300,000 (621,648) (621,648) 2,678,352 2,678,352 2,675,356 2,675,356 

Student transportation services: 
Salaries for pupil trans. - (hon,e to sch.) -Reg 219,748 219,748 (160,070) (16U,070) 59,678 59,678 54,127 54,127 
DUler purcha.,ed professional and technical services 100,000 100,000 5,470 5,470 105,470 105,470 105,470 105,47U 
Cleaning, repair &. maintenance services 12,697 12,697 12,697 12,697 2,067 2,067 
Contracted servo (Sp Ed SId.) - vendor 5,000,000 5,000,000 (3,(J47,898) (3,047,898) 1,952,102 1,952,102 1,9U9,409 1.909,4tJ9 
Contr. servo (between home & sch.) - vendors 512,000 512,000 512,UOO 512,000 501,246 501,246 
Contracled servo (Sp Ed Std.) - joint agm'"t. 3,379,976 3,379.976 3,379,976 3,379,976 3.323,643 3,323,643 
Contr. servo (other U,an between home & .ch.). vendol~ 104,600 104,600 203,161 17,746 220,907 203,161 122,346 325,507 116,333 78,101 194,434 
Conlr. servo Aid in lieu oCpaymentsaNonPuhlic 150,OIH) 150,UOO 150,000 150,OIX) 143,337 143,337 
Misc. purchnsed servo transportation 200,0(1) 200,000 200,000 200,000 199,990 199,990 
Geneml supplies 5000 5000 50UO 5000 2461 2461 

Tolal student lrlUlsportation services 5,674,748 104,600 5,779,348 905,336 17,746 923,082 6,580,084 122,346 6,702,430 6,358,083 78,101 6,436,184 

Unallocated employee benelils: 
Social security con!ribution. 3,000,000 3,000,(1)0 3,000,000 3,000,000 2,590,789 2,590,789 
OUler retirement contributions - PERS 3,196,419 3,196,419 3,196.419 3,196,419 3,038,195 3,038,195 
Other retirement con!ributions - ERlP 1,841,875 1,841,875 1,841,875 1,841,875 1,841,875 1,841,875 
Other retirement con!ributions - defelTed PERS payment 151,739 151,739 1,206,631 1.206,631 1,358,370 1,358,370 1,358,370 1,358,370 
Unemploymenl compensation 2,456,142 2,456,142 (600,000) (600,000) 1,856,142 1,856,142 1,311.752 1,311,752 
Workmen's compensation 2,864,9\1 2,864,911 2,864,911 2,864,911 1,840,153 1,840,153 
Heallhbenefits 10,553,588 20,990,879 31,544,467 966,923 443,913 1,410,836 11,520,511 21.434,792 32,955,303 10,701,914 18,174,436 28,876.350 
Tuition reimbursement 595,926 595,926 595,926 595,926 258,491 258,491 
OU,er employee benefits 4694183 4694183 600000 600000 5294183 5294183 5262963 5262963 

Tolal unallocated employee benefits 29,354,783 20,99U,879 50,345,662 2,173,554 443,913 2,617,467 31,528,337 21,434,792 52,963,129 28,204,502 18,174.436 46,378,938 
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Expenditure. (continued) 
CUlTent (continued): 

Undistributed expenditure. (continued): 
On-behalf payment.: 

Reimbursed TPAF post-retirement medical contributions 
Reimbursed TPAF social security contributions 

Totaloll-hehalfpayment. 

Totul undistribuled expenditures 
Total expenditure. - CWTent expense 
Capital outlay: 

Equipment: 
Regular programs - instruction: 

Grad .. 1-5 
Gmd .. 9-12 

Undistributed expenditures: 
Other support .ervices - students special 
Support services - instructional staff 
Cenlml service. 
Admin. Information technology 
Rcquired mainlenance for school facilitie. 
Custodialservic .. 
Care and upkeep of grounds 
AUuetics 

Total equipment 

Facilities acquisition and construction services: 
Construction services 

Total racHitie:; acquisition and construction svcs. 
Total capital ouUay 

Accredited eveninglndulVpost gr8d.~ instruction: 
Salaries of leachers 

Total accredited evening/adulVpost gmd.- instruction 
Total special .chools 
Tmn.fer of funds to charter schools 
Total expenditures 
Exc .. s (deficiency) of revenue. 

oVer (under) expenditures 

Olber financing sourc .. (u .... ): 
Tmnsfer in - contribution to .chool based budgets - GF 
Tran.,fer in - contribution to school based budgets - SRF 
Tmnsfer out- Contribution to school b .. ed budgets 

Total other financing sources (uses) 
(Deficiency) excess of revenues 

(under) over expenditur.s and 
oU1er financing sources (uses) 

Fund balanc .. (deficit), July I 
Fund balances (deficit), June 30 

RecapltulatloD or (dendeDCY) exce •• or 
reve .. e. (UDder) over expeDdltures 
BDd other nosociag sources (uscs) 

Adjustment for prior year encumbmnces 
Budgeted fund balance 
Total 

Trenton School District 
General Fund 

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 
(Budgetary Basis) 

OrlGln.1 BudGe' BudGe, Trun.rer, Final BudGe, 

Operadng Blended Total Operallng Ble.ded Total Operating Blended 
Fund Resource General Fund Ruourcc Generul Fund Resource 

Fund, 11-13 .nd 18 Fund 15 Fund Fund. 11-13 and 18 Fund 15 Fund Fund. 11-13 .nd 18 Fund 15 

107593952 $ 36913261 $ 144507213 7864635 S 1595826 S 9460461 115458587 S 38509087 
132,908,913 85,799,029 218,707,942 11,194,648 7,155,710 18,350,358 144,103,561 92,954,739 

30,000 30,000 30,000 
10,000 10,000 3,210 3,210 13,210 

65,259 65,259 65,259 
10,000 10,000 10,000 
22,000 22,000 22,000 

55,135 55,135 55,135 
28,860 28,860 178,400 178,400 207,260 

50,000 50,000 50,000 
19,200 19,200 19,200 
2213 2213 2213 

60,860 40,000 100,860 370,207 3,21U 373,417 431,067 43,210 

987711 987711 987711 
987711 987711 987711 

60860 40000 100860 1357918 321U 1361128 1418778 43210 

94000 94000 94000 
94000 94000 94000 
94000 94000 94000 

36137819 36,\37,819 ,91180891 ,91180891 270197311 
169201592 85839029 255040621 3434477 7158,920 10 593 397 172 636069 92 997,949 

79,240,211 (85,839,029) (6,598,818) 6,835,193 (7,158,920) (323,727) 86,075,404 (92,997,949) 

83,017,378 83,017,378 6,835,193 6,835,193 89,852,571 
2,821,651 2,821,651 323,727 323,727 3,145,378 

,830173781 ,830173781 ,6835193l ,68351931 ,89852571l 
,83017378) 85839029 2,821651 168351931 7158920 323727 189852,5711 92,997949 

(3,777,167) (3,777,167) (3,777,167) 

9,162438 9162438 9,162,438 
5385271 $ 5385271 5385271 S 

(358,328) S (358,328) $ (358,328) $ 
P418839) P 418 839) {3418,8391 
p 777 1671 s $ P 777 1671 $ ,37771671 $ 

Exeendcd 
Total Operating Blended 

General Fund Resource 
Fund Fund, II-IJ .nd 18 Fund 15 

7,854,872 
5993077 

13847949 

$ 153967674 liS 914 745 $ 33 638 606 
237,058,300 141,563,496 82,835,251 

30,000 9,108 
13,210 5,085 

65,259 65,259 
10,000 
22,000 
55,135 55,135 

207,260 171,574 
50,000 43,140 
19,200 15,880 
2213 2213 

474,277 353,201 14,193 

987711 7412 
987711 7412 

1461988 360613 14193 

94000 86.765 
94.000 86765 
94,000 86765 

27019730 23361258 
265634018 165372 132 82.849.444 

(6,922,545) 1U8,7tl4,S22 (82,849,444) 

89,852,571 8tl,048,812 
3,145,378 2,800,632 

,89852571l ,80,(1488121 
3,145378 18011488121 82849,444 

(3,777,167) 28,655,710 

9.162,438 9,162438 
5385271 37818148 $ 

(358,328) $ (358,328) $ 
P 418 8391 29tll4,1138 
P 7771671 S 28655710 $ 

$ 

$ 

Cola 
p.6 

Tutal 
General 

Fund 

7,854,872 
5993077 

I.l 847949 

149553351 
224,398,747 

9,108 
5,085 

65.259 

55,135 
171,574 
43,140 
15,880 
2,213 

367,394 

7412 
7412 

374806 

86,765 
86765 
86,765 

23.361,258 
248221,576 

25,855,1178 

SO,048,812 
2,8110,632 

,80,048,812) 
2800.632 

28,655,710 

9.162,438 
37818148 

(358,328) 
29014038 
28655710 
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Revenues: 
Federal Sources: 
Education Jobs Fund 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Undistributed expenditures: 

Unallocated employee benefits: 
Health benefits 

Trenton Board of Education 
General Fund 

Education Jobs Fund Program - Budget and Actual 
(Budgetary Basis) 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

$ 

Original 
Budget 

7,553,060 
7,553,060 

7,553060 

$ 

Budget 
Transfers 

236,623 
236,623 

236623 

$ 

Final 
Budget 

7,789,683 
7,789683 

7,789,683 
Total unallocated employee benefits 7,553,060 236,623 7,789683 

Total undistributed expenditures 7,553,060 236,623 7,789,683 
Total expenditures - current expense 7,553,060 236,623 7,789,683 
Total expenditures $ 7553060 ~ 236623 ~ 7789683 

Actual 

$ 7,789,683 
7,789,683 

7,789,683 
7,789,683 
7,789,683 
7,789,683 

~ 7789683 $ 

C-lh 

Variance 
Final to 
Actual 
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C-2 

Trenton Board of Education 
Special Revenue Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
(Budgetary Basis) 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Variance 
Original Budget Final Final to 
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actual 

Revenues: 
Local Sources $ 41,200 $ 159,402 $ 200,602 $ 104,838 $ (95,764) 
State Sources 27,310,493 1,285,206 28,595,699 27,612,240 (983,459) 
Federal Sources 15,426,380 6,942,138 22,368,518 11,687,396 (1O,681,122} 

Total Revenues 42,778,073 8,386,746 51,164,819 39,404,474 (11,760,345} 

Expenditures: 
Instruction: 

Salaries of teachers 12,724,917 (9,095,498) 3,629,419 1,260,534 2,368,885 
Other salaries for instruction 513,851 90,868 604,719 458,818 145,901 
Purchased professional and technical services 397,364 397,364 223,715 173,649 
Other purchased services 7,313 3,063,688 3,071,001 2,492,708 578,293 
General supplies 26,000 1,049,293 1,075,293 657,404 417,889 
Textbooks 2,786 2,786 2,192 594 
Other objects 48,294 48,294 11,139 37,155 

Total instruction 13,272,081 (4,443,205) 8,828,876 5,106,510 3,722,366 

Support services: 
Salaries of supervisors of instruction 202,828 (15,000) 187,828 173,045 14,783 
Salaries of program directors 152,363 152,363 126,969 25,394 
Salaries of other professional staff 2,719,170 (257,417) 2,461,753 1,615,413 846,340 
Salaries of secretarial and clerical assistants 175,146 74,488 249,634 222,993 26,641 
Other salaries 128,716 1,695,611 1,824,327 773,952 1,050,375 
Salaries offacilitators, math coaches, literacy 

coaches, and master teachers 699,990 699,990 646,827 53,163 
Personal services--employee benefits 1,206,133 714,776 1,920,909 1,478,224 442,685 
Purchased professional-educational services 399,987 399,987 264,196 135,791 
Purchased educational services - contracted Pre-K 21,315,913 1,026,298 22,342,211 21,880,352 461,859 
Other purchased professional services 143,664 1,591,695 1,735,359 1,364,256 371,103 
Purchased technical services 4,291,316 4,291,316 1,255,940 3,035,376 
Rentals 7,680 7,680 7,680 
Contracted services transportation 2,586 2,586 2,021 565 
Travel 3,000 132,210 135,210 7,220 127,990 
Other purchased services 7,313 443,915 451,228 262,792 188,436 
Supplies and materials 18,588 1,093,358 I,ll 1,946 669,781 442,165 
Miscellaneous expenditures 56,200 290.766 346.966 85.360 261,606 

Total support services 26,684,341 11,636,952 38,321,293 30,837,021 7,484,272 

Facilities acquisition and construction services: 
Instructional equipment 532,070 532,070 445,116 86,954 
NoninstructionaI equipment 337,202 337.202 215,195 122,007 

Total facilities acquisition and construction services 869,272 869,272 660,311 208,961 

Other financing uses: 
Contribution to school based budgets 2,821,651 323,727 3,145,378 2,800,632 344,746 

Total other financing uses 2,821,651 323,727 3,145,378 2,800,632 344,746 
T otaI expenditures and other financing uses 42,778,073 8,386746 51,164,819 39,404,474 11,760,345 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures and other financing uses $ ~ ~ ~ ~ 
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C-3 

Trenton School District 
Note to Required Supplementary Information 

Budget to GAAP Reconciliation 
Year ended June 30, 2012 

Note A - Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and 
GAAP Revenues and Expenditures 

Sources/inflows of resources 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue" 

from the budgetary comparison schedule [C-l, C-2] 
Difference - budget to GAAP: 

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that 
encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the related 
revenue is recognized. 

Current Year 
Prior Year 

The last State aid payments are recognized as revenue for 
budgetary purposes, and differs from GAAP which does not 
recognize this revenue until the subsequent year when the 
State recognizes the related expense (GASB 33). 

The prior year's last State aid payment is recognized for GAAP 
statements, not recognized for budgetary purposes. 

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures 
and changes in fund balances - governmental funds. [B-2] 

Uses/outflows of resources 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from the budgetary 

comparison schedule [C-l, C-2] 

Differences - budget to GAAP: 
Encumbrances (net) for supplies and equipment ordered but not received are 
reported in the year the order is placed for budgetary purposes, but in the 
year the supplies are received for financial reporting purposes. 

Transfers to other funds are presented as outflows of 
budgetary resources but are not expenditures 
for financial reporting purposes 

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds [B-2] 

General 
Fund 

Special 
Revenue 

Fund 

$ 274,076,654 $ 39,404,474 

(20,661,612) 

18,931,091 

(590,241) 
41,019 

(2,802,198) 

2,625,941 

$ 272,346,133 $ 38,678,995 

$ 248,221,576 $ 39,404,474 

(549,222) 

(2,800,632) 

$ 248,221,576 $ 36,054,620 
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Trenton School District 
General Fund 

(Budgetary Basis) 

Combining Balance Sheet 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Interfunds receivable 
Intergovernmental accounts receivable - Federal 
Intergovernmental accounts receivable - State 
Other accounts receivable 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash held by fiscal agents 

Total assets 

Liabilities and fund balances 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued salaries and wages 
Accrued liabilities 
Accrued liability for insurance claims 

Total liabilities 

Fund balances: 
Excess surplus - current year - restricted 

June 30, 2012 

Excess surplus designated for subsequent years - restricted 
Restricted for maintenance reserve 
Assigned to subequent year's expenditures 
Assigned to year end encumbrances 
Unassigned 

Total fund balances 
Total liabilities and fund balances 

Operating 
Fund 

Fund 11-13 

$ 6,921,794 $ 
2,552,650 

175,351 
21,855,413 

30,829 

10,000,000 
130,657 

$ 41,666,694 $ 

$ 2,516,679 $ 
280,443 
788,886 
262,538 

3,848,546 

16,012,868 
145,592 

10,000,000 
5,239,679 
1,455,412 
4,964,597 

37,818,148 
$ 41,666,694 $ 

Blended 
Resource 
Fund 15 

D-l 

Total 
General 

Fund 

217,354 $ 7,139,148 
2,552,650 

175,351 
21,855,413 

30,829 

10,000,000 
130,657 

217,354 $ 41,884,048 

117,932 $ 2,634,611 
99,422 379,865 

788,886 
262,538 

217,354 4,065,900 

16,012,868 
145,592 

10,000,000 
5,239,679 
1,455,412 
4,964,597 

37,818,148 
217,354 $ 41,884,048 
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Trenton School District 
Blended Resource Fund 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

District-wide 
Total 

Expenditures 
Blended % Allocated as a 

Resource of Total % of Total 
Resources Amount Resources Resources 

General Fund contribution $ 89,852,571 96.62% $ 80,048,812 

Restricted Federal Resources: 
Title I, Part A 3,145,378 3.38 2,800,632 

Restricted Federal Resources Total 3,145,378 3.38 2,800,632 

Total $ 92,997,949 100.00% $ 82,849,444 

D-2 

Total 
Surplusl 

Carryover 

$ 9,803,759 

344,746 
344,746 

$ 10,148,505 
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Trenton School District 
Blended Resource Fund 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Cadwalader 
Total 

Expenditures 
Blended % Allocated as a 

Resource of Total % of Total 
Resources Amount Resources Resources 

General Fund contribution $ 2,678,428 96.57% $ 2,493,222 

Restricted Federal Resources: 
Title I, Part A 95,016 3.43 88,445 

Restricted Federal Resources Total 95,016 3.43 88,445 

Total $ 2,773,444 100.00% $ 2,581,667 

D-2a 

Total 
Surplus! 

Carryover 

$ 185,206 

6,571 
6,571 

$ 191,777 
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Trenton School District 
Blended Resource Fund 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Columbus 
Total 

Expenditures 
Blended % Allocated as a 

Resource of Total % of Total 
Resources Amount Resources Resources 

General Fund contribution $ 2z326,276 94.98% $ 2,110,382 

Restricted Federal Resources: 
Title I, Part A 123,025 5.02 111,607 

Restricted Federal Resources Total 123,025 5.02 111,607 

Total $ 2,449,301 100.00% $ 2,221,989 

D-2b 

Total 
Surplus! 

Carryover 

$ 215,894 

11,418 
11,418 

$ 227,312 
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Trenton School District 
Blended Resource Fund 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual 

Year ended June 30,2012 

Dunn 
Total 

Expenditures 
Blended % Allocated as a 

Resource of Total % of Total 

Resources Amount Resources Resources 

General Fund contribution $ 5,205,733 95.68% $ 428122504 

Restricted Federal Resources: 
Title I, Part A 235,067 4.32 217,311 

Restricted Federal Resources Total 235,067 4.32 217,311 

Total $ 5,440,800 100.00% $ 5,029,815 

D-2c 

Total 
Surplus/ 

Carryover 

$ 393,229 

17,756 
17,756 

$ 410,985 
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Trenton School District 
Blended Resource Fund 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual 

Year ended June 30,2012 

Franklin 
Total 

Expenditures 
Blended % Allocated as a 

Resource of Total % of Total 
Resources Amount Resources Resources 

General Fund contribution $ 2,962,374 94.33% $ 22667,725 

Restricted Federal Resources: 
Title I, Part A 177,948 5.67 160,249 

Restricted Federal Resources Total 177,948 5.67 160,249 

Total $ 3,140,322 100.00% $ 2,827,974 

D-2d 

Total 
Surplus/ 

Carryover 

$ 294,649 

17,699 
17,699 

$ 312,348 
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Trenton School District 
Blended Resource Fund 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual 

Year ended June 30,2012 

Grant 
Total 

Expenditures 
Blended % Allocated as a 

Resource of Total % of Total 
Resources Amount Resources Resources 

General Fund contribution $ 2,841 2992 92.69% $ 2,4832409 

Restricted Federal Resources: 
Title I, Part A 224,081 7.31 195,808 

Restricted Federal Resources Total 224,081 7.31 195,808 

Total $ 3,066,073 100.00% $ 2,679,217 

D-2e 

Total 
Surplus! 

Carryover 

$ 358,583 

28,273 
28,273 

$ 386,856 
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Trenton School District 
Blended Resource Fund 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual 

Year ended June 30,2012 

Gregory 
Total 

Expenditures 
Blended % Allocated as a 

Resource of Total % of Total 

Resources Amount Resources Resources 

General Fund contribution $ 3,595,403 95.49% $ 3,041 2148 

Restricted Federal Resources: 
Title I, Part A 169,705 4.51 143,544 

Restricted Federal Resources Total 169,705 4.51 143,544 

Total $ 3,765,108 100.00% $ 3,184,692 

D-2f 

Total 
Surplusl 

Carryover 

$ 554,255 

26,161 
26,161 

$ 580,416 
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Trenton School District 
Blended Resource Fund 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Hedgeueth-Williams 
Total 

Expenditures 
Blended % Allocated as a 

Resource of Total % of Total 
Resources Amount Resources Resources 

General Fund contribution $ 5,669,987 94.75% $ 5,222,397 

Restricted Federal Resources: 
Title I, Part A 314,155 5.25 289,356 

Restricted Federal Resources Total 314,155 5.25 289,356 

Total $ 5,984,142 100.00% $ 5,511,753 

D-2g 

Total 
Surplusl 

Carryover 

$ 4472590 

24,799 
24,799 

$ 472,389 
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Trenton School District 
Blended Resource Fund 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Hill 
Total 

Expenditures 
Blended % Allocated as a 

Resource of Total % of Total 
Resources Amount Resources Resources 

General Fund contribution $ 42280,032 95.85% $ 325882849 

Restricted Federal Resources: 
Title I, Part A 185,086 4.15 1552196 

Restricted Federal Resources Total 185,086 4.15 155,196 

Total $ 4,465,118 100.00% $ 3,744,045 

D-2h 

Total 
Surplus! 

Carryover 

$ 691,183 

29,890 
29,890 

$ 721,073 

86 



Trenton School District 
Blended Resource Fund 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Jefferson 
Total 

Expenditures 
Blended % Allocated as a 

Resource of Total % of Total 
Resources Amount Resources Resources 

General Fund contribution $ 3,616,546 100.00% $ 2,773,386 

Total $ 3,616,546 100.00% $ 2,773,386 

D-2i 

Total 
Surplusl 

Carryover 

$ 843,160 

$ 843,160 
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Trenton School District 
Blended Resource Fund 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Kilmer 
Total 

Expenditures 
Blended % Allocated as a 

Resource of Total % of Total 

Resources Amount Resources Resources 

General Fund contribution $ 4,636,762 96.11% $ 4,135,129 

Restricted Federal Resources: 
Title I, Part A 187,834 3.89 167,513 

Restricted Federal Resources Total 187,834 3.89 167,513 

Total $ 4,824,596 100.00% $ 4,302,642 

D-2j 

Total 
Surplus/ 

Carryover 

$ 501,633 

20,321 
20,321 

$ 521,954 
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Trenton School District 
Blended Resource Fund 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

MLK 
Total 

Expenditures 
Blended % Allocated as a 

Resource of Total % of Total 
Resources Amount Resources Resources 

General Fund contribution $ 5,476,687 95.88% $ 4,850,887 

Restricted Federal Resources: 
Title I, Part A 235,067 4.12 208,207 

Restricted Federal Resources Total 235,067 4.12 208,207 

Total $ 5,711,754 100.00% $ 5,059,094 

D-2k 

Total 
Surplusl 

Carryover 

$ 625,800 

26,860 
26,860 

$ 652,660 
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Trenton School District 
Blended Resource Fund 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Monument 
Total 

Expenditures 
Blended % Allocated as a 

Resource of Total % of Total 

Resources Amount Resources Resources 

General Fund contribution $ 32092,295 94.70% $ 2,923,401 

Restricted Federal Resources: 
Title I, Part A 173,004 5.30 163,555 

Restricted Federal Resources Total 173,004 5.30 163,555 

Total $ 3,265,299 100.00% $ 3,086,956 

D-2l 

Total 
Surplus! 

Carryover 

$ 168,894 

9,449 
9,449 

$ 178,343 
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Trenton School District 
Blended Resource Fund 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Mott 
Total 

Expenditures 
Blended % Allocated as a 

Resource of Total % of Total 
Resources Amount Resources Resources 

General Fund contribution $ 32°79,171 94.73% $ 2,8582890 

Restricted Federal Resources: 
Title I, Part A 171,356 5.27 159,097 

Restricted Federal Resources Total 171,356 5.27 159,097 

Total $ 3,250,527 100.00% $ 3,017,987 

D-2m 

Total 
Surplusl 

Carryover 

$ 220,281 

12,259 
12,259 

$ 232,540 

91 



Trenton School District 
Blended Resource Fund 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Parker 
Total 

Expenditures 
Blended % Allocated as a 

Resource of Total % of Total 
Resources Amount Resources Resources 

General Fund contribution $ 3,109,684 93.16% $ 2,7802743 

Restricted Federal Resources: 
Title I, Part A 228,475 6.84 204,307 

Restricted Federal Resources Total 228,475 6.84 204,307 

Total $ 3,338,159 100.00% $ 2,985,050 

D-2n 

Total 
Surplus/ 

Carryover 

$ 328,941 

24,168 
24,168 

$ 353,109 
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Trenton School District 
Blended Resource Fund 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Robbins 
Total 

Expenditures 
Blended % Allocated as a 

Resource of Total % of Total 
Resources Amount Resources Resources 

General Fund contribution $ 2,6102894 93.56% $ 22278,946 

Restricted Federal Resources: 
Title I, Part A 179,595 6.44 156,761 

Restricted Federal Resources Total 179,595 6.44 156,761 

Total $ 2,790,489 100.00% $ 2,435,707 

D-20 

Total 
Surplus/ 

Carryover 

$ 331,948 

22,834 
222834 

$ 354,782 
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Trenton School District 
Blended Resource Fund 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Stokes 
Total 

Expenditures 
Blended % Allocated as a 

Resource of Total % of Total 

Resources Amount Resources Resources 

General Fund contribution $ 2,011,435 96.37% $ 1,691,974 

Restricted Federal Resources: 
Title I, Part A 75,792 3.63 63,755 

Restricted Federal Resources Total 75,792 3.63 63,755 

Total $ 2,087,227 100.00% $ 1,755,729 

D-2p 

Total 
Surplus/ 

Carryover 

$ 319,461 

12,037 
12,037 

$ 331,498 
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Trenton School District 
Blended Resource Fund 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Washington 
Total 

Expenditures 
Blended % Allocated as a 

Resource of Total % of Total 
Resources Amount Resources Resources 

General Fund contribution $ 2)77,615 92.17% $ 12871 2°48 

Restricted Federal Resources: 
Title I, Part A 185,086 7.83 159,029 

Restricted Federal Resources Total 185,086 7.83 159,029 

Total $ 2,362,701 100.00% $ 2,030,077 

D-2q 

Total 
Surplusl 

Carryover 

$ 3062567 

26,057 
26,057 

$ 332,624 
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Trenton School District 
Blended Resource Fund 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Wilson 
Total 

Expenditures 
Blended % Allocated as a 

Resource of Total % of Total 
Resources Amount Resources Resources 

General Fund contribution $ 2,368,352 92.75% $ 2,007,578 

Restricted Federal Resources: 
Title I, Part A 185,086 7.25 156,892 

Restricted Federal Resources Total 185,086 7.25 1562892 

Total $ 2,553,438 100.00% $ 2,164,470 

D-2r 

Total 
Surplus! 

Carryover 

$ 360,774 

28,194 
28,194 

$ 388,968 
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Trenton School District 
Blended Resource Fund 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual 

Year ended June 30,2012 

Trenton Central High School 
Total 

Expenditures 
Blended % Allocated as a 

Resource of Total % of Total 
Resources Amount Resources Resources 

General Fund contribution $ 21,651,998 100.00% $ 20,178,572 

Total $ 21,651,998 100.00% $ 20,178,572 

D-2s 

Total 
Surplusl 

Carryover 

$ 1,473,426 

$ 1,473,426 
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Trenton School District 
Blended Resource Fund 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Daylight-Twilight High School 
Total 

Expenditures 
Blended % Allocated as a 

Resource of Total % of Total 
Resources Amount Resources Resources 

General Fund contribution $ 4,780,578 100.00% $ 4,114,113 

Total $ 4,780,578 100.00% $ 4,114,113 

D-2t 

Total 
Surplus! 

Carryover 

$ 666,465 

$ 666,465 
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Trenton School District 
Blended Resource Fund 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Alternative Middle School 
Total 

Expenditures 
Blended % Allocated as a 

Resource of Total % of Total 
Resources Amount Resources Resources 

General Fund contribution $ 1,680,329 100.00% $ 1,164,509 

Total $ 1,680,329 100.00% $ 1,164,509 

D-2u 

Total 
Surplus! 

Carryover 

$ 515,820 

$ 515,820 
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D-3 
p. I 

(continued) 
Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

District-wide 

Original Final 
Expenditures Budget Transfers Budget Exeenditures Variance 
Current: 

Instruction - regular programs: 

Salaries of Teachers: 

Kindergarten $ 3,505,966 $ 197,682 $ 3,703,648 $ 3,385,465 $ 318,183 
Grades 1- 5 19,882,891 1,454,200 21,337,091 19,931,051 1,406,040 
Grades 6-8 6,955,562 274,974 7,230,536 6,589,285 641,251 
Grades 9-12 13,779,637 (34,155) 13,745,482 12,491,789 1,253,693 

Undistributed Instruction: 

Other Salaries of Instruction 1,710,658 146,904 1,857,562 1,685,292 172,270 
Purchased Professional & Educational Services 80,160 84,873 165,033 105,178 59,855 
Purchased Technical Services 114,668 114,668 114,668 
Other Purchased Services 585,612 4,348 589,960 472,085 117,875 
General Supplies 1,866,476 1,430,422 3,296,898 2,741,603 555,295 
Textbooks 518,806 45,109 563,915 422,521 141,394 
Other Objects 5,550 5,550 5,476 74 

Total Regular Programs 48,885,768 3,724,575 52,610,343 47,944,413 4,665,930 

Instruction - Special Education: 

School Sponsored Co-curricular Activities: 

Salaries 154,980 154,980 87,723 67,257 
Total School Sponsored Co-curricular Activities 154,980 154,980 87,723 67,257 

Alternative Education Programs - Instruction: 

Salaries of Teachers 875,273 875,273 503,097 372,176 
Purchased Services 9,004 9,004 9,004 
Supplies and Materials 109,896 109,896 103,625 6,271 
Telctbooks 20,000 20,000 9,739 10,261 

Total Alternative Education Programs - Instruction 1,014,173 1,014,173 625,465 388,708 

Alternative Education Programs - Support Services: 

Salaries 585,984 585,984 497,499 88,485 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 35,000 35,000 35,000 
Purchased Services 7,760 7,760 5,760 2,000 
Telctbooks 34,509 34,509 33,701 808 
Other Objects 2,903 2,903 2,084 819 

Total Alternative Education Programs - Support Services 666,156 666,156 539,044 127,112 
Total Instruction 48,885,768 5,559,884 54,445,652 49,196,645 5,249,007 

Undistributed Expenditures: 

Attendance and Social Work Services: 

Salaries 143,407 (62,000) 81,407 80,886 521 
Salaries of Family Liaisons/Comrn Parent Inv. Specialists 507,611 74,457 582,068 566,896 15,172 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 105,000 {15,ODO} 90,000 35,000 55,000 

Total Attendance and Social Work Services 756,018 (2,543) 753,475 682,782 70,693 

Health Services: 

Salaries 1,937,499 64,718 2,002,217 1,804,651 197,566 
Supplies and Materials 14,642 1,377 16,019 12,310 3,709 

Total Health Services 1,952,141 66,095 2,018,236 1,816,961 201,275 

Guidance: 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 2,887,191 257,976 3,145,167 2,974,844 170,323 
Other Salaries 923,1l5 237,349 1,160,464 998,730 161,734 

Total Guidance 3,810,306 495,325 4,305,631 3,973,574 332,057 

Improvement of Instruction Services: 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 200,195 {100,000} 100,195 98,515 1,680 
Total Improvement of Instruction Services 200,195 (100,000) 100,195 98,515 1,680 
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D-3 
p.2 

Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

District-wide 

Original Final 
Expenditures Budget Transfers Budget Ex~enditures Variance 

Educational MedialLibrary Services: 

Salaries $ 1,893,177 $ 112,988 $ 2,006,165 $ 1,753,160 $ 253,005 
Supplies and Materials 256,443 16,824 273,267 234,933 38,334 

Total Educational MediaILibrary Services 2,149,620 129,812 2,279,432 1,988,093 291,339 

Instructional Staff Training Services: 

Salaries 11,180 11,180 9,514 1,666 
Other Purchased Services 1,172 1,172 172 1,000 

Total Instructional Staff Training Services 12,352 12,352 9,686 2,666 

Support Services - School Administration: 

Salaries of Principals! Assistant PrincipalslProgram Directors 4,872,672 369,134 5,241,806 4,832,247 409,559 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 1,874,362 159,820 2,034,182 1,864,950 169,232 
Other Purchased Services 87,070 8,344 95,414 49,125 46,289 
Supplies and Materials 115,398 {4,172~ 111,226 70,136 41,090 

Total Support Services - School Administration 6,949,502 533,126 7,482,628 6,816,458 666,170 

Student Transportation Services: 

Contracted Services -Transportation (Other than 

Between Home and School) - Vendors 104,600 17z746 122,346 78,101 44,245 
Total Student Transportation Services 104,600 17,746 122,346 78,101 44,245 

Unallocated Benefits: 

Health Benefits 20,990,879 443,913 21,434,792 18,174,436 3,260,356 
Total Unallocated Benefits 20,990,879 443,913 21,434,792 18,174,436 3,260,356 

Total Undistributed Expenditures 36,913,261 1,595,826 38,509,087 33,6381606 4,870,481 
Total Expenditures - Current 85,799,029 7,155,710 92,954,739 82,835,251 10,119,488 

Capital Outlay 

Equipment: 

Regular Programs - Instruction: 

Grades 1-5 30,000 30,000 9,108 20,892 
Grades 9-12 10,000 3,210 13,210 5,085 8,125 

Total Equipment 40,000 3,210 43,210 14,193 29,017 
Total Expenditures - School Based 85,839,029 7,158,920 92,997,949 82,849,444 10,148,505 

Other Financing Sources: 

Transfers In 85,839,029 7,158,920 92,997,949 82,849,444 10,148,505 
Total Other Financing Sources 85,839,029 7,158,920 92,997,949 82,849,444 10,148,505 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources 

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balances, July 1 

Fund Balances, June 30 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 
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D-3a 

Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

School: Cadwalader 
Original Final 

Expenditures BUdget Transfers Budget Ex(!enditures Variance 
Current: 

Instruction - regular programs: 
Salaries of Teachers: 

Kindergarten $ 246,435 $ 246,435 $ 246,358 $ 77 
Grades 1- 5 896,780 $ 112,754 1,009,534 959,272 50,262 

Undistributed Instruction: 
Other Salaries of Instruction 115,086 (4,000) 111,086 79,435 31,651 
Other Purchased Services 7,685 7,685 5,460 2,225 
General Supplies 37,623 40,987 78,610 76,217 2,393 
Textbooks 11,450 1,774 13,224 13,224 

Total Regular Programs 1,315,059 151,515 1,466,574 1,379,966 86,608 
Total Instruction 1,315,059 151,515 1,466,574 1,379,966 86,608 

Undistributed Expenditures: 
Attendance and Social Work Services: 

Salaries of Family Liaisons/Comm Parent Inv. Specialists 28,447 14,505 42,952 42,952 
Total Attendance and Social Work Services 28,447 14,505 42,952 42,952 

Health Services: 
Salaries 67,831 5,070 72,901 72,901 
Supplies and Materials 500 500 51 449 

Total Health Services 68,331 5,070 73,401 72,952 449 

Guidance: 
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 91,067 {320} 90,747 90,356 391 

Total Guidance 91,067 (320) 90,747 90,356 391 

Educational Media/Library Services: 
Salaries 94,950 94,950 94,292 658 
Supplies and Materials 5,725 481 6,206 6,201 5 

Total Educational MedialLibrary Services 100,675 481 101,156 100,493 663 

Support Services - School Administration: 
Salaries of Principals/ Assistant PrincipaislProgram Directors 122,269 747 123,016 123,016 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 43,555 9,047 52,602 51,271 1,331 
Other Purchased Services 2,540 2,540 1,035 1,505 
Supplies and Materials 1,832 1,832 1,832 

Total Support Services - School Administration 170,196 9,794 179,990 175,322 4,668 

Student Transportation Services: 
Contracted Services -Transportation (Other than 

Between Home and School) - Vendors 1,500 1,500 1,500 
Total Student Transportation Services 1,500 1,500 1,500 

Unallocated Benefits: 
Health Benefits 839,574 {22,450} 817,124 719,626 97,498 

Total Unallocated Benefits 839,574 {22,450} 817,124 719,626 97,498 
Total Undistributed Expenditures 1,299,790 7,080 1,306,870 1,201,701 105,169 

Total Expenditures - Current 2,614,849 158,595 2,773,444 2,581,667 191,777 
Total Expenditures - School Based 2,614,849 158,595 2,773,444 2,581,667 191,777 

Other Financing Sources: 
Transfers In 2,614,849 158,595 2,773,444 2,581,667 191,777 

Total Other Financing Sources 2,614,849 158,595 2,773,444 2,581,667 191,777 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources 
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balances, July 1 
Fund Balances, June 30 $ $ - $ - $ - $ 
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D-3b 

Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

School: Columbus 

Original Final 
Expenditures Budget Transfers Budget Ex~enditures Variance 
Current: 

Instruction - regular programs: 

Salaries of Teachers: 

Kindergarten $ 168,128 $ 168,128 $ 166,982 $ 1,146 
Grades 1- 5 1,006,978 $ 12,188 1,019,166 965,830 53,336 

Undistributed Instruction: 

Other Salaries of Instruction 91,337 91,337 74,077 17,260 
Other Purchased Services 7,435 6,509 13,944 13,089 855 
General Supplies 44,000 54,986 98,986 91,088 7,898 
Textbooks 10,000 {500} 9,500 9,500 

Total Regular Programs 1,327,878 73,183 1,401,061 1,311,066 89,995 
Total Instruction 1,327,878 73,183 1,401,061 1,311,066 89,995 

Undistributed Expenditures: 

Attendance and Social Work Services: 

Salaries of Family LiaisonslComrn Parent Inv. Specialists 28,447 486 28,933 28,933 
Total Attendance and Social Work Services 28,447 486 28,933 28,933 

Health Services: 

Salaries 83,355 83,355 82,796 559 
Supplies and Materials 500 500 498 2 

Total Health Services 83,855 83,855 83,294 561 

Guidance: 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 94,484 94,484 93,706 778 
Total Guidance 94,484 94,484 93,706 778 

Educational MedialLibrary Services: 

Salaries 102,648 (13,637) 89,011 60,528 28,483 
Supplies and Materials 7,500 7,500 7,339 161 

Total Educational MedialLibrary Services 110,148 (13,637) 96,511 67,867 28,644 

Support Services - School Administration: 

Salaries of Principals/Assistant PrincipalslProgram Directors 128,861 (1,688) 127,173 115,962 11,211 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 60,113 2,651 62,764 60,715 2,049 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 2,540 2,540 2,540 
Supplies and Materials 1,500 1,500 1,500 

Total Support Services - School Administration 193,014 963 193,977 176,677 17,300 

Student Transportation Services: 

Contracted Services -Transportation (Other than 

Between Home and School) - Vendors 2,400 {600} 1,800 1,790 10 
Total Student Transportation Services 2,400 (600) 1,800 1,790 10 

Unallocated Benefits: 

Health Benefits 586,623 {37,943} 548,680 458,656 90,024 
Total Unallocated Benefits 586,623 {37,943} 548,680 458,656 90,024 

Total Undistributed Expenditures 1,098,971 {50,731} 1,048,240 910,923 137,317 
Total Expenditures - Current 2,426,849 22,452 2,449,301 2,221,989 227,312 
Total Expenditures - School Based 2,426,849 22,452 2,449,301 2,221,989 227,312 

Other Financing Sources: 

Transfers In 2,426,849 22,452 2,449,301 2,221,989 227,312 
Total Other Financing Sources 2,426,849 22,452 2,449,301 2,221,989 227,312 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources 

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balances, July 1 

Fund Balances, June 30 $ $ - $ - $ - $ 
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D-3c 
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(continued) 

Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

School: Dunn 
Original Final 

Expenditures Budget Transfers Budget EXI!enditures Variance 

Current: 

Instruction - regular programs: 

Salaries of Teachers: 

Grades 6-8 $ 2,736,179 $ 187,706 $ 2,923,885 $ 2,849,021 $ 74,864 

Undistributed Instruction: 

Purchased Professional & Educational Services 40,000 40,000 39,675 325 

Other Purchased Services 14,853 5,251 20,104 17,914 2,190 

General Supplies 145,618 32,179 177,797 158,029 19,768 

Textbooks 20,000 20,000 15,156 4,844 

Total Regular Programs 2,916,650 265,136 3,181,786 3,079,795 101,991 

Total Instruction 2,916,650 265,136 3,181,786 3,079,795 101,991 

Undistributed Expenditures: 

Attendance and Social Work Services: 

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 35,000 {15,000} 20,000 20,000 

Total Attendance and Social Work Services 35,000 (15,000) 20,000 20,000 

Health Services: 

Salaries 137,556 137,556 53,363 84,193 

Supplies and Materials 1,000 1,000 492 508 

Total Health Services 138,556 138,556 53,855 84,701 

Guidance: 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 189,464 189,464 186,824 2,640 

Other Salaries 59,952 53,444 113,396 66,006 47,390 

Total Guidance 249,416 53,444 302,860 252,830 50,030 

Educational MedialLibrary Services: 

Salaries 60,407 21,242 81,649 81,649 

Supplies and Materials 19,250 19,250 19,230 20 

Total Educational MedialLibrary Services 79,657 21,242 100,899 100,879 20 

Instructional Staff Training Services: 

Other Purchased Services 172 172 172 

Total Instructional Staff Training Services 172 172 172 

Support Services - School Administration: 

Salaries of Principals! Assistant PrincipalslProgram Directors 372,563 2,388 374,951 374,951 

Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 82,891 82,891 79,100 3,791 

Other Purchased Services 6,600 6,600 3,126 3,474 

Supplies and Materials 12,000 {I 72) 11,828 11,090 738 

Total Support Services - School Administration 474,054 2,216 476,270 468,267 8,003 
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School: Dunn 

Expenditures 
Student Transportation Services: 

Contracted Services -Transportation (Other than 

Between Horne and School) - Vendors 

Total Student Transportation Services 

Unallocated Benefits: 

Health Benefits 

Total Unallocated Benefits 

Total Undistributed Expenditures 

Total Expenditures - Current 

Total Expenditures - School Based 

Other Financing Sources: 

Transfers In 

Total Other Financing Sources 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources 

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balances, July I 

Fund Balances, June 30 

Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Original 
Budget Transfers 

$ 6,400 $ 
6,400 

1,213,857 
1,213,857 
2,196,940 $ 62,074 
5,113,590 327,210 
5,113,590 327,210 

5,113,590 327,210 

5,113,590 327,210 

$ - $ - $ 

D-3c 
p.2 

Final 
Budget Expenditures Variance 

6,400 $ 4,541 $ 1,859 
6,400 4,541 1,859 

1,213,857 1,069,476 144,381 
1,213,857 1,069,476 144,381 
2,259,014 1,950,020 308,994 
5,440,800 5,029,815 410,985 
5,440,800 5,029,815 410,985 

5,440,800 5,029,815 410,985 
5,440,800 5,029,815 410,985 

- $ - $ 
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D-3d 

Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

School: Franklin 
Original Final 

Expenditures Budget Transfers Budget EXl!enditures Variance 
Current: 

Instruction - regular programs: 
Salaries of Teachers: 

Kindergarten $ 248,883 $ (1,415) $ 247,468 $ 247,228 $ 240 
Grades 1- 5 1,384,170 (7,706) 1,376,464 1,231,086 145,378 

Undistributed Instruction: 
Other Salaries of Instruction 113,562 2,605 116,167 112,373 3,794 
Other Purchased Services 17,010 17,010 11,802 5,208 
General Supplies 91,570 24,035 115,605 105,227 10,378 
Textbooks 5,000 3,691 8,691 8,691 

Total Regular Programs 1,860,195 21,210 1,881,405 1,716,407 164,998 
Total Instruction 1,860,195 21,210 1,881,405 1,716,407 164,998 

Undistributed Expenditures: 
Attendance and Social Work Services: 

Salaries of Family LiaisonslComm Parent Inv. Specialists 35,383 450 35,833 35,833 
Total Attendance and Social Work Services 35,383 450 35,833 35,833 

Healili Services: 
Salaries 84,314 84,314 83,736 578 
Supplies and Materials 500 500 488 12 

Total Healili Services 84,814 84,814 84,224 590 

Guidance: 
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 84,314 84,314 83,736 578 

Total Guidance 84,314 84,314 83,736 578 

Educational MedialLibrary Services: 
Salaries 97,133 97,133 95,804 1,329 
Supplies and Materials 6,000 6,000 5,483 517 

Total Educational MedialLibrary Services 103,133 103,133 101,287 1,846 

Support Services - School Administration: 
Salaries ofPrincipals/Assistant Principals/Program Directors 143,287 616 143,903 143,903 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 60,113 5,450 65,563 64,060 1,503 
Oilier Purchased Services 2,540 1,472 4,012 2,376 1,636 
Supplies and Materials 4,300 {I,472} 2,828 1,732 1,096 

Total Support Services - School Administration 210,240 6,066 216,306 212,071 4,235 

Student Transportation Services: 
Between Home and School) - Vendors 1,000 1,000 631 369 

Total Student Transportation Services 1,000 1,000 631 369 

Unallocated Benefits: 
Healili Benefits 750,550 {l7,033} 733,517 593,785 139,732 

Total Unallocated Benefits 750,550 {17,033} 733,517 593,785 139,732 
Total Undistributed Expenditures 1,269,434 {1O,517} 1,258,917 1,111,567 147,350 

Total Expenditures - Current 3,129,629 10,693 3,140,322 2,827,974 312,348 
Total Expenditures - School Based 3,129,629 10,693 3,140,322 2,827,974 312,348 

Other Financing Sources: 
Transfers In 3,129,629 10,693 3,140,322 2,827,974 312,348 

Total Other Financing Sources 3,129,629 10,693 3,140,322 2,827,974 312,348 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources 
Over (Under) Expenditures and Oilier Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balances, July I 
Fund Balances, June 30 $ - $ - $ $ - $ 
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D-3e 
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(continued) 
Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

School: Grant 
Original Final 

Expenditures Budget Transfers Budget Ex~enditures Variance 
Current: 

Instruction - regular programs: 

Salaries of Teachers: 

Kindergarten $ 153,364 $ 843 $ 154,207 $ 154,207 
Grades 1- 5 904,111 147,781 1,051,892 1,002,433 $ 49,459 
Grades 6-8 367,326 (196,495) 170,831 170,831 

Undistributed Instruction: 

Other Salaries ofInstruction 77,977 700 78,677 76,057 2,620 
Purchased Professional & Educational Services 2,750 2,750 1,156 1,594 
Purchased Technical Services 2,250 2,250 2,250 
Other Purchased Services 13,663 (1,421) 12,242 10,728 1,514 
General Supplies 96,665 33,233 129,898 127,260 2,638 
Textbooks 25,000 25,000 10,581 14,419 

Total Regular Programs 1,638,106 {1O,359} 1,627,747 1,384,672 243,075 
Total Instruction 1,638,106 (10,359) 1,627,747 1,384,672 243,075 

Undistributed Expenditures: 

Attendance and Social Work Services: 

Salaries of Family Liaisons!Comm Parent Inv. Specialists 43,240 43,240 42,704 536 
Total Attendance and Social Work Services 43,240 43,240 42,704 536 

Health Services: 

Salaries 81,407 81,407 80,886 521 
Supplies and Materials 500 777 1,277 1,238 39 

Total Health Services 81,907 777 82,684 82,124 560 

Guidance: 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 94,331 94,331 93,556 775 
Total Guidance 94,331 94,331 93,556 775 

Educational MedialLibrary Services: 

Salaries 94,889 94,889 94,232 657 
Supplies and Materials 13,275 13,275 12,939 336 

Total Educational MedialLibrary Services 108,164 108,164 107,171 993 

Support Services - School Administration: 

Salaries of Principals! Assistant Principals/Program Directors 116,648 83,296 199,944 194,348 5,596 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 60,113 7,601 67,714 66,753 961 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 4,540 4,540 1,035 3,505 
Supplies and Materials 4,248 4,248 4,245 3 

Total Support Services - School Administration 185,549 90,897 276,446 266,381 10,065 

Student Transportation Services: 

Contracted Services -Transportation (Other than 

Between Home and School) - Vendors 5,400 1,421 6,821 6,147 674 
Total Student Transportation Services 5,400 1,421 6,821 6,147 674 
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School: Grant 

Expenditures 
Unallocated Benefits: 

Health Benefits 

Total Unallocated Benefits 

Total Undistributed Expenditures 

Total Expenditures - Current 

Capital Outlay 

Equipment: 

Regular Programs - Instruction: 

Grades 1-5 

Total Equipment 

Total Expenditures - School Based 

Other Financing Sources: 

Transfers In 

Total Other Financing Sources 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources 

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balances, July 1 

Fund Balances, June 30 

Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Original 
Budget Transfers 

$ 836,887 $ (15,2472 $ 
836,887 {15,2472 

1,355,478 77,848 
2,993,584 67,489 

5,000 
5,000 

2,998,584 67,489 

2,998,584 67,489 
2,998,584 67,489 

$ - $ - $ 

Final 
Budget 

821,640 $ 
821,640 

1,433,326 
3,061,073 

5,000 
5,000 

3,066,073 

3,066,073 
3,066,073 

- $ 

Exeenditures 

691,892 $ 
691,892 

1,289,975 
2,674,647 

4,570 
4,570 

2,679,217 

2,679,217 
2,679,217 

- $ 

D-3e 
p.2 

Variance 

129,748 
129,748 
143,351 
386,426 

430 
430 

386,856 

386,856 
386,856 
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(continued) 
Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

School: Gregory 
Original Final 

Expenditures Budget Transfers Budget Exeenditures Variance 
Current: 

Instruction - regular programs: 

Salaries of Teachers: 

Kindergarten $ 167,119 $ 167,119 $ 100,440 $ 66,679 
Grades 1- 5 1,398,758 1,398,758 1,267,533 131,225 
Grades 6-8 470,384 470,384 343,883 126,501 

Undistributed Instruction: 

Other Salaries of Instruction 75,553 75,553 69,890 5,663 
Other Purchased Services 15,248 $ 450 15,698 14,956 742 
General Supplies 60,415 15,680 76,095 65,968 10,127 
Textbooks 25,000 25,000 17,900 7,100 
Other Objects 5,550 5,550 5,476 74 

Total Regular Programs 2,212,477 21,680 2,234,157 1,886,046 348,111 
Total Instruction 2,212,477 21,680 2,234,157 1,886,046 348,111 

Undistributed Expenditures: 

Attendance and Social Work Services: 

Salaries of Family Liaisons/Carom Parent Inv. Specialists 39,854 39,854 36,745 3,109 
Total Attendance and Social Work Services 39,854 39,854 36,745 3,109 

Health Services: 

Salaries 82,937 82,937 82,386 551 
Supplies and Materials 500 500 470 30 

Total Health Services 83,437 83,437 82,856 581 

Guidance: 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 85,895 85,895 54,295 31,600 
Other Salaries 50,445 50,445 27,656 22,789 

Total Guidance 85,895 50,445 136,340 81,951 54,389 

Educational MedialLibrary Services: 

Salaries 96,492 (53,182) 43,310 3,928 39,382 
Supplies and Materials 11,350 11,350 1,397 9,953 

Total Educational MedialLibrary Services 107,842 (53,182) 54,660 5,325 49,335 

Support Services - School Administration: 

Salaries of Principals! Assistant PrincipalslProgram Directors 245,996 (2,600) 243,396 220,781 22,615 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 63,334 5,337 68,671 68,620 51 
Other Purchased Services 4,400 4,400 2,054 2,346 
Supplies and Materials 7,140 7,140 1,295 5,845 

Total Support Services - School Administration 320,870 2,737 323,607 292,750 30,857 

Student Transportation Services: 

Contracted Services -Transportation (Other than 

Between Home and School) - Vendors 5,000 5,000 2,175 2,825 
Total Student Transportation Services 5,000 5,000 2,175 2,825 
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School: Gregory 

Expenditures 
Unallocated Benefits: 

Health Benefits 

Total Unallocated Benefits 

Total Undistributed Expenditures 

Total Expenditures - Current 

Total Expenditures - School Based 

Other Financing Sources: 

Transfers In 

Total Other Financing Sources 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources 

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balances, July 1 

Fund Balances, June 30 

Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Original 
Budget Transfers 

$ 909,733 $ {21,680} 
909,733 {21,680} 

1,552,631 {21,680} 
3,765,108 
3,765,108 

3,765,108 
3,765,108 

$ 

$ - $ - $ 

Final 
Budget Exeenditures 

888,053 $ 796,844 $ 
888,053 796,844 

1,530,951 1,298,646 

3,765,108 3,184,692 

3,765,108 3,184,692 

3,765,108 3,184,692 

3,765,108 3,184,692 

- $ - $ 

D-3f 
p.2 

Variance 

91,209 
91,209 

232,305 
580,416 
580,416 

580,416 
580,416 
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D-3g 
p. 1 

(continued) 
Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

School: Hedgepeth-Williams 
Original Final 

Expenditures Budget Transfers Budget Exeenditures Variance 
Current: 

Instruction - regular programs: 

Salaries of Teachers: 

Kindergarten $ 334,084 $ 334,084 $ 303,680 $ 30,404 
Grades 1- 5 2,083,981 $ (187,246) 1,896,735 1,826,978 69,757 
Grades 6-8 840,246 840,246 808,887 31,359 

Undistributed Instruction: 

Other Salaries ofInstruction 188,317 3,938 192,255 189,791 2,464 
Purchased Professional & Educational Services 5,000 5,000 5,000 
Other Purchased Services 16,634 1,966 18,600 10,925 7,675 
General Supplies 176,821 57,240 234,061 224,533 9,528 
Textbooks 20,000 20,000 2,420 17,580 

Total Regular Programs 3,660,083 {119,102} 3,540,981 3,372,214 168,767 
Total Instruction 3,660,083 (119,102) 3,540,981 3,372,214 168,767 

Undistributed Expenditures: 

Attendance and Social Work Services: 

Salaries of Family Liaisons/Comm Parent Inv. Specialists 28,447 12,585 41,032 41,032 
Total Attendance and Social Work Services 28,447 12,585 41,032 41,032 

Health Services: 

Salaries 161,407 (24,483) 136,924 64,868 72,056 
Supplies and Materials 1,000 1,000 878 122 

Total Health Services 162,407 (24,483) 137,924 65,746 72,178 

Guidance: 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 171,120 171,120 157,420 13,700 
Other Salaries 84,457 4,399 88,856 88,856 

Total Guidance 255,577 4,399 259,976 246,276 13,700 

Educational MedialLibrary Services: 

Salaries 68,676 2,702 71,378 71,378 
Supplies and Materials 4,500 4,500 4,497 3 

Total Educational MedialLibrary Services 73,176 2,702 75,878 75,875 3 

Support Services - School Administration: 

Salaries of Principals/Assistant PrincipalslProgram Directors 368,243 368,243 364,132 4,111 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 61,337 61,337 55,667 5,670 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 6,600 6,600 3,112 3,488 
Supplies and Materials 9,000 9,000 4,551 4,449 

Total Support Services - School Administration 445,180 445,180 427,462 17,718 

Student Transportation Services: 

Between Home and School) - Vendors 6,000 6,000 3,174 2,826 
Total Student Transportation Services 6,000 6,000 3,174 2,826 
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School: Hedgepeth-Williams 

Expenditures 
Unallocated Benefits: 

Health Benefits 

Total Unallocated Benefits 

Total Undistributed Expenditures 

Total Expenditures - Current 

Capital Outlay 

Equipment: 

Regular Programs - Instruction: 

Grades 1-5 

Total Equipment 

Total Expenditures - School Based 

Other Financing Sources: 

Transfers In 

Total Other Financing Sources 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources 

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balances, July 1 

Fund Balances, June 30 

Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Original 
Budget Transfers 

$ 1,467,171 
1,467,171 
2,437,958 $ {4,797} 
6,098,041 (123,899) 

10,000 
10,000 

6,108,041 (l23,899} 

6,108,041 (l23,899} 
6,108,041 (123,899) 

$ 

$ - $ - $ 

Final 
Budget 

1,467,171 $ 
1,467,171 
2,433,161 
5,974,142 

10,000 
10,000 

5,984,142 

5,984,142 
5,984,142 

- $ 

Ex~enditures 

1,279,974 $ 
1,279,974 
2,139,539 
5,511,753 

5,511,753 

5,511,753 
5,511,753 

- $ 

D-3g 
p.2 

Variance 

187,197 
187,197 
293,622 
462,389 

10,000 
10,000 

472,389 

472,389 
472,389 
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School: Hill 

Expenditures 
Current: 

Instruction - regular programs: 

Salaries of Teachers: 

Kindergarten 

Grades 1- 5 

Grades 6-8 

Undistributed Instruction: 

Other Salaries of Instruction 

Other Purchased Services 

General Supplies 

Textbooks 

Total Regular Programs 

Total Instruction 

Undistributed Expenditures: 

Attendance and Social Work Services: 

Salaries ofFami1y Liaisons/Comm Parent Inv. Specialists 

Total Attendance and Social Work Services 

Health Services: 

Salaries 

Supplies and Materials 

Total Health Services 

Guidance: 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 

Other Salaries 

Total Guidance 

Educational MedialLibrary Services: 

Salaries 

Supplies and Materials 

Total Educational MedialLibrary Services 

Support Services - School Administration: 

Salaries of Principals! Assistant PrincipalslProgram Directors 

Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 

Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 

Supplies and Materials 

Total Support Services - School Administration 

Student Transportation Services: 

Contracted Services -Transportation (Other than 

Between Home and School) - Vendors 

Total Student Transportation Services 

Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Original 
Budget Transfers 

$ 251,473 
1,504,050 $ (23,802) 

728,246 (120,451) 

109,151 9,614 
28,859 4,000 
70,391 23,670 
25,000 

2,717,170 {106,969} 
2,717,170 (106,969) 

28,447 5,647 
28,447 5,647 

82,091 705 
500 

82,591 705 

142,330 6,506 
84,457 

226,787 6,506 

85,783 
13,950 
99,733 

254,275 (8,500) 
37,669 9,830 
4,400 
3,000 

299,344 1,330 

8,000 {4,0001 
8,000 (4,000) 

Final 
Budget 

$ 251,473 $ 
1,480,248 

607,795 

118,765 
32,859 
94,061 
25,000 

2,610,201 
2,610,201 

34,094 
34,094 

82,796 
500 

83,296 

148,836 
84,457 

233,293 

85,783 
13,950 
99,733 

245,775 
47,499 

4,400 
3,000 

300,674 

4,000 
4,000 

Ex~eDditures 

188,050 $ 
1,315,414 

518,232 

118,765 
20,301 
86,474 
12,444 

2,259,680 
2,259,680 

34,094 
34,094 

82,796 

82,796 

148,836 
71,071 

219,907 

232,128 
47,407 

2,798 
3,000 

285,333 

3,575 
3,575 

D-3h 
p.l 

(continued) 

Variance 

63,423 
164,834 
89,563 

12,558 
7,587 

12,556 
350,521 
350,521 

500 
500 

13,386 
13,386 

85,783 
13,950 
99,733 

13,647 
92 

1,602 

15,341 

425 
425 
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School: Hill 

Expenditnres 
Unallocated Benefits: 

Health Benefits 

Total Unallocated Benefits 

Total Undistributed Expenditures 

Total Expenditures - Current 

Capital Outlay 

Equipment: 

Regular Programs - Instruction: 

Grades 1-5 

Total Equipment 

Total Expenditures - School Based 

Other Financing Sources: 

Transfers In 

Total Other Financing Sources 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources 

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balances, July 1 

Fund Balances, June 30 

Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Original 
Budget Transfers 

$ 1,104,586 $ {l4,7592 
1,104,586 {14,7592 
1,849,488 {4,5712 
4,566,658 (111,540) 

10,000 
10,000 

4,576,658 {111,5402 

4,576,658 {111,5402 
4,576,658 {111,5402 

$ 

$ - $ - $ 

Final 
Budget Exeenditures 

1,089,827 $ 854,122 $ 
1,089,827 854,122 
1,844,917 1,479,827 
4,455,118 3,739,507 

10,000 4,538 
10,000 4,538 

4,465,118 3,744,045 

4,465,118 3,744,045 
4,465,118 3,744,045 

- $ - $ 

D-3h 
p.2 

Variance 

235,705 
235,705 
365,090 
715,611 

5,462 
5,462 

721,073 

721,073 
721,073 
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School: Jefferson 

Expenditures 
Current: 

Instruction - regular programs: 

Salaries of Teachers: 

Kindergarten 

Grades 1- 5 

Grades 6-8 

Undistributed Instruction: 

Other Salaries of Instruction 

Other Purchased Services 

General Supplies 

Textbooks 

Total Regular Programs 

Total Instruction 

Undistributed Expenditures: 

Attendance and Social Work Services: 

Salaries of Family Liaisons/Comm Parent Inv. Specialists 

Total Attendance and Social Work Services 

Heal1h Services: 

Salaries 

Supplies and Materials 

Total Heal1h Services 

Guidance: 

Salaries of 01her Professional Staff 

Other Salaries 

Total Guidance 

Educational MediafLibrary Services: 

Salaries 

Supplies and Materials 

Total Educational MediafLibrary Services 

Support Services - School Administration: 

Salaries ofPrincipalsfAssistant PrincipalsfPrograrn Directors 

Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 

Other Purchased Services 

Supplies and Materials 

Total Support Services - School Administration 

Student Transportation Services: 

Contracted Services -Transportation (Other 1han 

Between Home and School) - Vendors 

Total Student Transportation Services 

Unallocated Benefits: 

Heal1h Benefits 

Total Unallocated Benefits 

Total Undistributed Expenditures 

Total Expenditures - Current 

Total Expenditures - School Based 

01her Financing Sources: 

Transfers In 

Total Other Financing Sources 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources 

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balances, July I 

Fund Balances, June 30 

Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Original 
Budget Transfers 

$ 165,874 
1,082,693 

407,693 

107,919 
11,163 

291,088 
86,770 

2,153,200 
2,153,200 

42,000 
42,000 

80,000 
600 

80,600 

59,139 
35,000 
94,139 

80,000 
12,800 
92,800 

232,350 
42,000 

4,400 
3,360 

282,110 

2,500 
2,500 

869,197 
869,197 

1,463,346 
3,616,546 
3,616,546 

3,616,546 
3,616,546 

$ - $ -

D-3i 

Final 
Budget EXI!enditures Variance 

$ 165,874 $ 67,519 $ 98,355 
1,082,693 865,101 217,592 

407,693 357,953 49,740 

107,919 35,775 72,144 
11,163 6,359 4,804 

291,088 281,643 9,445 
86,770 86,216 554 

2,153,200 1,700,566 452,634 
2,153,200 1,700,566 452,634 

42,000 34,814 7,186 
42,000 34,814 7,186 

80,000 53,650 26,350 
600 556 44 

80,600 54,206 26,394 

59,139 55,653 3,486 
35,000 23,693 11,307 
94,139 79,346 14,793 

80,000 80,000 
12,800 12,800 
92,800 12,800 80,000 

232,350 150,621 81,729 
42,000 32,817 9,183 

4,400 2,077 2,323 
3,360 3,241 119 

282,110 188,756 93,354 

2,500 1,372 1,128 
2,500 1,372 1,128 

869,197 701,526 167,671 
869,197 701,526 167,671 

1,463,346 1,072,820 390,526 
3,616,546 2,773,386 843,160 
3,616,546 2,773,386 843,160 

3,616,546 2,773,386 843,160 
3,616,546 2,773,386 843,160 

$ - $ - $ 
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(continued) 
Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

School: Kilmer 
Original Final 

Expenditures Budget Transfers Budget Ex~enditures Variance 
Current: 

Instruction - regular programs: 

Salaries of Teachers: 

Kindergarten $ 215,219 $ 33,669 $ 248,888 $ 248,888 
Grades 1- 5 1,650,232 (172,287) 1,477,945 1,324,698 $ 153,247 
Grades 6-8 733,208 733,208 664,256 68,952 

Undistributed Instruction: 

Other Salaries ofInstruction 107,919 107,919 104,083 3,836 
Purchased Professional & Educational Services 2,335 2,335 2,335 
Other Purchased Services 13,663 7,051 20,714 16,173 4,541 
General Supplies 118,431 46,030 164,461 156,261 8,200 
Textbooks 25,000 2,600 27,600 27,506 94 

Total Regular Programs 2,863,672 {80,602} 2,783,070 2,544,200 238,870 
Total Instruction 2,863,672 (80,602) 2,783,070 2,544,200 238,870 

Undistributed Expenditures: 

Attendance and Social Work Services: 

Salaries of Family LiaisonslCornm Parent Inv. Specialists 36,587 387 36,974 36,974 
Total Attendance and Social Work Services 36,587 387 36,974 36,974 

Health Services: 

Salaries 82,784 82,784 82,236 548 
Supplies and Materials 500 500 412 88 

Total Health Services 83,284 83,284 82,648 636 

Guidance: 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 143,484 143,484 138,981 4,503 
Other Salaries 84,457 84,457 48,236 36,221 

Total Guidance 227,941 227,941 187,217 40,724 

Educational Media/Library Services: 

Salaries 75,971 25,868 101,839 101,839 
Supplies and Materials 14,175 {1,000} 13,175 9,671 3,504 

Total Educational Media/Library Services 90,146 24,868 115,014 111,510 3,504 

Instructional Staff Training Services: 

Other Purchased Services 1,000 1,000 1,000 
Total Instructional Staff Training Services 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Support Services - School Administration: 

Salaries of Principals! Assistant Principals/Prograrn Directors 264,000 (7,000) 257,000 193,555 63,445 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 36,560 8,350 44,910 43,474 1,436 
Other Purchased Services 4,400 (1,500) 2,900 2,070 830 
Supplies and Materials 5,000 5,000 1,125 3,875 

Total Support Services - School Administration 309,960 (150) 309,810 240,224 69,586 
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School: Kilmer 

Expenditures 
Student Transportation Services: 

Contracted Services -Transportation (Other than 

Between Home and School) - Vendors 

Total Student Transportation Services 

Unallocated Benefits: 

Health Benefits 

Total Unallocated Benefits 

Total Undistributed Expenditures 

Total Expenditures - Current 

Total Expenditures - School Based 

Other Financing Sources: 

Transfers In 

Total Other Financing Sources 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources 

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balances, July 1 

Fund Balances, June 30 

Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30,2012 

Original 
Budget Transfers 

$ 10,000 $ 3,000 $ 
10,000 3,000 

1,287,393 {32,8902 
1,287,393 {J2,890} 
2,045,311 {J,785} 
4,908,983 {84,387} 
4,908,983 (84,387) 

4,908,983 {84,387} 
4,908,983 {84,387} 

$ - $ - $ 

D-3j 
p.2 

Final 
Budget Expenditures Variance 

13,000 $ 3,021 $ 9,979 
13,000 3,021 9,979 

1,254,503 1,096,848 157,655 
1,254,503 1,096,848 157,655 
2,041,526 1,758,442 283,084 
4,824,596 4,302,642 521,954 
4,824,596 4,302,642 521,954 

4,824,596 4,302,642 521,954 
4,824,596 4,302,642 521,954 

- $ - $ 
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D-3k 

Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

School: King 

Original Final 
Expenditures Budget Transfers Budget Ex~enditures Variance 
Current: 

Instruction - regular programs: 

Salaries of Teachers: 

Kindergarten $ 335,492 $ (5,730) $ 329,762 $ 314,533 $ 15,229 
Grades 1- 5 1,794,404 84,165 1,878,569 1,850,551 28,018 
Grades 6-8 709,857 709,857 692,130 17,727 

Undistributed Instruction: 

Other Salaries of Instruction 154,609 9,615 164,224 161,724 2,500 
Other Purchased Services 20,734 9,678 30,412 20,687 9,725 
General Supplies 88,131 360,836 448,967 118,895 330,072 
Textbooks 20,000 20,000 11,305 8,695 

Total Regular Programs 3,123,227 458,564 3,581,791 3,169,825 411,966 
Total Instruction 3,123,227 458,564 3,581,791 3,169,825 411,966 

Undistributed Expenditures: 

Health Services: 

Salaries 82,937 799 83,736 83,736 
Supplies and Materials 500 500 500 

Total Health Services 83,437 799 84,236 84,236 

Guidance: 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 140,493 140,493 139,981 512 
Other Salaries 49,345 86,200 135,545 134,831 714 

Total Guidance 189,838 86,200 276,038 274,812 1,226 

Educational MedialLibrary Services: 

Salaries 59,880 132 60,012 60,012 
Supplies and Materials 10,000 3,935 13,935 9,902 4,033 

Total Educational MedialLibrary Services 69,880 4,067 73,947 69,914 4,033 

Support Services - School Administration: 

Salaries ofPrincipaislAssistant Principals/Program Directors 351,165 351,165 270,061 81,104 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 101,224 2,929 104,153 102,153 2,000 
Other Purchased Services 6,600 6,600 2,070 4,530 
Supplies and Materials 5,352 5,352 2,259 3,093 

Total Support Services - School Administration 464,341 2,929 467,270 376,543 90,727 

Student Transportation Services: 

Contracted Services -Transportation (Other than 

Between Home and School) - Vendors 7,000 7,000 3,596 3,404 
Total Student Transportation Services 7,000 7,000 3,596 3,404 

Unallocated Benefits: 

Health Benefits 1,262,517 {41,045} 1,221,472 1,080,168 141,304 
Total Unallocated Benefits 1,262,517 {41,045) 1,221,472 1,080,168 141,304 

Total Undistributed Expenditures 2,077,013 52,950 2,129,963 1,889,269 240,694 
Total Expenditures - Current 5,200,240 511,514 5,711,754 5,059,094 652,660 
Total Expenditures - School Based 5,200,240 511,514 5,711,754 5,059,094 652,660 

Other Financing Sources: 

Transfers In 5z200,240 511,514 5,711z754 5,059,094 652,660 
Total Other Financing Sources 5,200,240 511,514 5,711,754 5,059,094 652,660 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources 

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balances, July I 

Fund Balances, June 30 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 
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(continued) 
Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

School: Monument 
Original Final 

Expenditures Budget Transfers Budget EXEenditures Variance 
Current: 

Instruction - regular programs: 

Salaries of Teachers: 

Kindergarten $ 170,780 $ 170,780 $ 170,243 $ 537 
Grades 1- 5 1,108,595 $ (2,524) 1,106,071 1,098,559 7,512 
Grades 6-8 370,1l6 (3,479) 366,637 354,923 11,714 

Undistributed Instruction: 

Other Salaries of Instruction 74,654 586 75,240 73,464 1,776 
Purchased Professional & Educational Services 9,004 9,004 9,004 
Other Purchased Services 16,146 16,146 10,392 5,754 
General Supplies 54,600 19,990 74,590 65,539 9,051 
Textbooks 15,000 {7,109} 7,891 7,891 

Total Regular Programs 1,809,891 16,468 1,826,359 1,790,015 36,344 
Total Instruction 1,809,891 16,468 1,826,359 1,790,015 36,344 

Undistributed Expenditures: 

Attendance and Social Work Services: 

Salaries of Family LiaisonslComm Parent Inv. Specialists 41,426 (15,000) 26,426 23,725 2,701 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 35,000 35,000 35,000 

Total Attendance and Social Work Services 76,426 (15,000) 61,426 58,725 2,701 

Health Services: 

Salaries 82,784 82,784 82,236 548 
Supplies and Materials 500 500 434 66 

Total Health Services 83,284 83,284 82,670 614 

Guidance: 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 90,546 90,546 89,846 700 
Other Salaries 75,000 7,861 82,861 82,861 

Total Guidance 165,546 7,861 173,407 172,707 700 

Educational MedialLibrary Services: 

Salaries 84,893 5,503 90,396 90,396 
Supplies and Materials 9,000 9,000 8,629 371 

Total Educational MediaILibrary Services 93,893 5,503 99,396 99,025 371 

Instructional Staff Training Services: 

Salaries 3,988 3,988 2,322 1,666 
Total Instructional Staff Training Services 3,988 3,988 2,322 1,666 

Support Services - School Administration: 

Salaries of PrincipalslAssistant Principals/Program Directors 119,431 78,796 198,227 187,881 10,346 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 51,216 14,365 65,581 65,222 359 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 2,540 2,540 2,077 463 
Supplies and Materials 3,500 3,500 2,126 1,374 

Total Support Services - School Administration 176,687 93,161 269,848 257,306 12,542 
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School: Monument 

Expenditures 
Student Transportation Services: 

Contracted Services -Transportation (Other than 

Between Home and School) - Vendors 

Total Student Transportation Services 

Unallocated Benefits: 

Health Benefits 

Total Unallocated Benefits 

Total Undistributed Expenditures 

Total Expenditures - Current 

Total Expenditures - School Based 

Other Financing Sources: 

Transfers In 

Total Other Financing Sources 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources 

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balances, July 1 

Fund Balances, June 30 

Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Original 
Budget Transfers 

$ 3,000 $ 1,900 $ 
3,000 1,900 

754,595 {11,904} 
754,595 {11,904} 

1,353,431 85,509 
3,163,322 101,977 
3,163,322 101,977 

3,163,322 101,977 
3,163,322 101,977 

$ - $ - $ 

D-31 
p.2 

Final 
Budget Expenditures Variance 

4,900 $ 3,118 $ 1,782 
4,900 3,118 1,782 

742,691 621,068 121,623 
742,691 621,068 121,623 

1,438,940 1,296,941 141,999 
3,265,299 3,086,956 178,343 
3,265,299 3,086,956 178,343 

3,265,299 3,086,956 178,343 
3,265,299 3,086,956 178,343 

- $ - $ 
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D-3m 

Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

School: Mott 
Original Final 

Expenditures Budget Transfers Budget EXl!enditures Variance 
Current 

Instruction - regular programs: 

Salaries of Teachers: 

Kindergarten $ 221,572 $ 26,256 $ 247,828 $ 247,828 
Grades 1- 5 1,194,795 240,466 1,435,261 1,419,477 $ 15,784 

Undistributed Instruction: 

Other Salaries of Instruction 112,189 112,189 109,429 2,760 
Other Purchased Services 16,324 (3,360) 12,964 10,944 2,020 
General Supplies 55,280 24,236 79,516 75,373 4,143 
Textbooks 20,000 20,000 20,000 

Total Regular Programs 1,620,160 287,598 1,907,758 1,883,051 24,707 
Total Instruction 1,620,160 287,598 1,907,758 1,883,051 24,707 

Undistributed Expenditures: 

Attendance and Social Work Services: 

Salaries of Family LiaisonslComm Parent Inv. Specialists 29,296 478 29,774 29,774 
Total Attendance and Social Work Services 29,296 478 29,774 29,774 

Health Services: 

Salaries 86,650 86,650 81,556 5,094 
Supplies and Materials 500 500 500 

Total Health Services 87,150 87,150 82,056 5,094 

Guidance: 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 92,087 92,087 91,356 731 
Total Guidance 92,087 92,087 91,356 731 

Educational MedialLibrary Services: 

Salaries 94,248 94,248 93,604 644 
Supplies and Materials 5,500 5,500 5,500 

Total Educational MedialLibrary Services 99,748 99,748 99,104 644 

Support Services - School Administration: 

Salaries ofPrincipalsiAssistant Principals/Program Directors 264,012 (39,750) 224,262 139,281 84,981 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 65,983 9,757 75,740 75,717 23 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 4,400 4,400 1,035 3,365 
Supplies and Materials 4,500 1,084 5,584 5,320 264 

Total Support Services - School Administration 338,895 (28,909) 309,986 221,353 88,633 

Student Transportation Services: 

Contracted Services -Transportation (Other than 

Between Home and School) - Vendors 4,000 3,525 7,525 7,397 128 
Total Student Transportation Services 4,000 3,525 7,525 7,397 128 

Unallocated Benefits: 

Health Benefits 720,291 P,792} 716,499 603,896 112,603 
Total Unallocated Benefits 720,291 {3,792} 716,499 603,896 112,603 

Total Undistributed Expenditures 1,371,467 (28,698} 1,342,769 1,134,936 207,833 
Total Expenditures - Current 2,991,627 258,900 3,250,527 3,017,987 232,540 
Total Expenditures - School Based 2,991,627 258,900 3,250,527 3,017,987 232,540 

Other Financing Sources: 

Transfers In 2,991,627 258,900 3,250,527 3,017,987 232,540 
Total Other Financing Sources 2,991,627 258,900 3,250,527 3,017,987 232,540 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources 

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balances, July 1 

Fund Balances, June 30 $ $ - $ - $ - $ 
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D-3n 

Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

School: Parker 
Original Final 

Expenditures Budget Transfers Budget Exeenditures Variance 
Current: 

Instruction - regular programs: 

Salaries of Teachers: 

Kindergarten $ 276,305 $ 4,410 $ 280,715 280,712 $ 3 
Grades 1- 5 1,290,429 23,602 1,314,031 1,264,589 49,442 

Undistributed Instruction: 

Other Salaries of Instruction 146,379 14,897 161,276 151,611 9,665 
Other Purchased Services 18,006 18,006 10,941 7,065 
General Supplies 77,754 53,504 131,258 115,271 15,987 
Textbooks 25,000 25,000 24,118 882 

Total Regular Programs 1,833,873 96,413 1,930,286 1,847,242 83,044 
Total Instruction 1,833,873 96,413 1,930,286 1,847,242 83,044 

Undistributed Expenditures: 

Attendance and Social Work Services: 

Salaries of Family Liaisons/Comm Parent Inv. Specialists 37,206 571 37,777 37,777 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 35,000 35,000 35,000 

Total Attendance and Social Work Services 72,206 571 72,777 37,777 35,000 

Health Services: 

Salaries 86,558 86,558 85,936 622 
Supplies and Materials 500 500 500 

Total Health Services 87,058 87,058 85,936 1,122 

Guidance: 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 88,139 88,139 87,486 653 
Total Guidance 88,139 88,139 87,486 653 

Educational MedialLibrary Services: 

Salaries 94,236 (5,600) 88,636 74,874 13,762 
Supplies and Materials 10,000 10,000 9,860 140 

Total Educational MedialLibrary Services 104,236 (5,600) 98,636 84,734 13,902 

Support Services - School AdministIation: 

Salaries ofPrincipalsiAssistant PrincipalsIProgram Directors 239,264 2,477 241,741 241,741 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 59,501 6,013 65,514 63,465 2,049 
Other Purchased Services 4,800 4,800 2,735 2,065 
Supplies and Materials 4,000 4,000 3,219 781 

Total Support Services - School AdministIation 307,565 8,490 316,055 311,160 4,895 

Student Transportation Services: 

Contracted Services -Transportation (Other than 

Between Home and School) - Vendors 2,000 2,000 2,000 
Total Student Transportation Services 2,000 2,000 2,000 

Unallocated Benefits: 

Health Benefits 772,949 {29,741} 743,208 530,715 212,493 
Total Unallocated Benefits 772,949 {29,741} 743,208 530,715 212,493 

Total Undistributed Expenditures 1,434,153 {26,280} 1,407,873 I, 137z808 270,065 
Total E.xpenditures - Current 3,268,026 70,133 3,338,159 2,985,050 353,109 
Total E.xpenditures - School Based 3,268,026 70,133 3,338,159 2,985,050 353,109 

Other Financing Sources: 

Transfers In 3,268,026 70,133 3,338,159 2,985,050 353,109 
Total Other Financing Sources 3,268,026 70,133 3,338,159 2,985,050 353,109 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources 

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balances, July I 

Fund Balances, June 30 $ - $ $ - $ - $ 
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School: Robbins 

Expenditures 
Cunent: 

Instruction - n:gular programs: 

Salaries of Teachers: 

Kindergarten 

Grades 1- 5 

Undistributed Instruction: 

Other Salaries of Instruction 

Purchased Professional & Educational Services 

Other Purchased Services 

General Supplies 

Textbooks 

Total Regular Programs 

Total Instruction 

Undistributed Expenditun:s: 

Attendance and Social Work Services: 

Salaries of Family Liaisons/Comm Parent Inv. Specialists 

Total Attendance and Social Work Services 

Health Services: 

Salaries 

Supplies and Materials 

Total Health Services 

Guidance: 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 

Total Guidance 

Educational MedialLibrary Services: 

Salaries 

Supplies and Materials 

Total Educational MedialLibrary Services 

Support Services - School AdministIation: 

Salaries ofPrincipalslAssistant PrincipalsIProgram Din:ctors 

Salaries of Secn:tarial and Clerical Assistants 

Other Purchased Services 

Supplies and Materials 

Total Support Services - School Administration 

Student Transportation Services: 

Contracted Services -Transportation (Other than 

Between Home and School) - Vendors 

Total Student Transportation Services 

Unallocated Benefits: 

Health Benefits 

Total Unallocated Benefits 

Total Undistributed Expenditun:s 

Total Expenditun:s - Curn:nt 

Total Expenditun:s - School Based 

Other Financing Sources: 

Transfers In 

Total Other Financing Sources 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources 

Over (Under) Expenditun:s and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balances, July I 

Fund Balances, June 30 

Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Original 
Budget Transfers 

$ 163,498 
1,119,504 $ 78,386 

66,871 1,007 
9,004 

19,006 
82,550 5,941 
15,000 8,277 

1,466,429 102,615 
1,466,429 102,615 

27,359 8,474 
27,359 8,474 

88,007 
1,416 

89,423 

62,502 2,389 
62,502 2,389 

170,830 19,677 
9,275 

180,105 19,677 

146,864 603 
51,216 9,915 

2,250 
3,550 

203,880 10,518 

1,500 
1,500 

632,898 (17,280} 
632,898 {17,280} 

1,197,667 23,778 
2,664,096 126,393 
2,664,096 126,393 

2,664,096 126,393 
2,664,096 126,393 

- $ -

D-30 

Final 
Budget Ex~enditures Variance 

$ 163,498 $ 148,287 $ 15,211 
1,197,890 1,151,290 46,600 

67,878 65,678 2,200 
9,004 9,004 

19,006 16,887 2,119 
88,491 83,306 5,185 
23,277 21,992 1,285 

1,569,044 1,496,444 72,600 
1,569,044 1,496,444 72,600 

35,833 35,833 
35,833 35,833 

88,007 87,356 651 
1,416 1,408 

89,423 88,764 659 

64,891 64,891 
64,891 64,891 

190,507 190,507 
9,275 9,183 92 

199,782 199,690 92 

147,467 147,467 
61,131 59,071 2,060 

2,250 1,035 1,215 
3,550 2,922 628 

214,398 210,495 3,903 

1,500 763 737 
1,500 763 737 

615,618 338,827 276,791 
615,618 338,827 276,791 

1,221,445 939,263 282,182 
2,790,489 2,435,707 354,782 
2,790,489 2,435,707 354,782 

2,790,489 2,435,707 354,782 
2,790,489 2,435,707 354,782 

$ $ $ 
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Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

School: Stokes 

Original Final 
Expenditures Budget Transfers Budget EXEenditures Variance 
Current: 

Instruction - regular programs: 

Salaries ofTeachel3: 

Kindergarten $ 170,000 170,000 $ 166,152 $ 3,848 
Grades 1-5 823,584 $ (28,844) 794,740 660,495 134,245 

Undistributed Instruction: 

Other Salaries of Instruction 77,565 23 77,588 75,588 2,000 
Other Purchased Services 9,680 9,680 9,572 108 
General Supplies 28,423 132,282 160,705 153,047 7,658 
Textbooks 5,000 5,000 4,594 406 

Total Regular Programs 1,114,252 103,461 1,217,713 1,069,448 148,265 
Total Instruction 1,114,252 103,461 1,217,713 1,069,448 148,265 

Undistributed Expenditures: 

Attendance and Social Work Services: 

Salaries of Family Liaisons/Comm Parent Inv. Specialists 27,595 1,338 28,933 28,933 
Total Attendance and Social Work Services 27,595 1,338 28,933 28,933 

Health Services: 

Salaries 83,355 83,355 80,886 2,469 
Supplies and Materials 500 500 495 5 

Total Health Services 83,855 83,855 81,381 2,474 

Guidance: 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 85,895 85,895 42,643 43,252 
Total Guidance 85,895 85,895 42,643 43,252 

Educational MedialLibnuy Services: 

Salaries 49,345 24,340 73,685 73,685 
Supplies and Materials 4,725 4,725 4,687 38 

Total Educational MedialLibnuy Services 54,070 24,340 78,410 78,372 38 

Support Services - School Administration: 

Salaries ofPrincipalslAssistant Principals/Program Directol3 142,301 612 142,913 142,913 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 37,448 2,531 39,979 37,979 2,000 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 2,540 2,540 1,035 1,505 
Supplies and Materials 1,512 1,512 566 946 

Total Support Services - School Administration 183,801 3,143 186,944 182,493 4,451 

Student Transportation Services: 

Contracted Services -Transportation (Other than 

Between Home and School) - Vendors 1,500 1,500 400 1,100 
Total Student Transportation Services 1,500 1,500 400 1,100 

Unallocated Benefits: 

Health Benefits 499,179 {100,202} 398,977 272,059 126,918 
Total Unallocated Benefits 499,179 (100,202} 398,977 272,059 126,918 

Total Undistributed E.xpenditures 935,895 {71,38Q 864,514 686,281 178,233 
Total E.xpenditures - Current 2,050,147 32,080 2,082,227 1,755,729 326,498 

Capital Outlay 

Equipment: 

Regular Programs - Instruction: 

Grades 1-5 5,000 5,000 5,000 
Total Equipment 5,000 5,000 5,000 

Total Expenditures - School Based 2,055,147 32,080 2,087,227 1,755,729 331,498 

Other Financing Sources: 

Transfers In 2,055,147 32,080 2,087,227 1,755,729 331,498 
Total Other Financing Sources 2,055,147 32,080 2,087,227 1,755,729 331,498 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources 

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balances, July 1 

Fund Balances, June 30 $ - $ $ - $ - $ 
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(continued) 
Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

School: Washington 
Original Final 

Expenditures Budget Transfers Budget Ex~enditures Variance 
Current: 

Instruction - regular programs: 

Salaries of Teachers: 

Kindergarten $ 239,989 $ 1,844 $ 241,833 $ 241,833 
Grades J- 5 731,340 96,674 828,014 793,293 $ 34,721 

Undistributed Instruction: 

Other Salaries ofInstruction 119,165 119,165 109,930 9,235 
Other Purchased Services 20,506 (5,000) 15,506 5,040 10,466 
General Supplies 64,986 30,226 95,212 87,087 8,125 
Textbooks 32,000 {15,223} 16,777 16,777 

Total Regular Programs 1,207,986 108,521 1,316,507 1,253,960 62,547 
Total Instruction 1,207,986 108,521 1,316,507 1,253,960 62,547 

Undistributed Expenditures: 

Attendance and Social Work Services: 

Salaries of Family Liaisons/Comm Parent Inv. Specialists 32,698 436 33,134 33,134 
Total Attendance and Social Work Services 32,698 436 33,134 33,134 

Health Services: 

Salaries 83,621 83,621 83,056 565 
Supplies and Materials 500 500 400 100 

Total Health Services 84,121 84,121 83,456 665 

Guidance: 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 83,355 83,355 82,796 559 
Total Guidance 83,355 83,355 82,796 559 

Educational MedialLibrary Services: 

Salaries 100,098 100,098 99,339 759 
Supplies and Materials 11,550 11,550 10,506 1,044 

Total Educational MedialLibrary Services 111,648 111,648 109,845 1,803 

Instructional Staff Training Services: 

Salaries 7,192 7,192 7,192 
Total Instructional Staff Training Services 7,192 7,192 7,192 

Support Services - School Administration: 

Salaries of Principals! Assistant PrincipalslProgram Directors 142,301 1,312 143,613 143,613 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 43,555 10,747 54,302 54,248 54 
Other Purchased Services 2,540 1,472 4,012 2,514 1,498 
Supplies and Materials 5,019 {1,472} 3,547 3,275 272 

Total Support Services - School Administration 193,415 12,059 205,474 203,650 1,824 
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School: Washington 

Expenditures 
Student Transportation Services: 

Contracted Services -Transportation (Other than 

Between Home and School) - Vendors 

Total Student Transportation Services 

Unallocated Benefits: 

Health Benefits 

Total Unallocated Benefits 

Total Undistributed Expenditures 

Total Expenditures - Current 

Total Expenditures - School Based 

Other Financing Sources: 

Transfers In 

Total Other Financing Sources 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources 

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balances, July 1 

Fund Balances, June 30 

Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Original 
BUdget Transfers 

$ 2,000 $ 
2,000 

524,584 $ ~5,314} 
524,584 (5,314} 

1,031,821 14,373 
2,239,807 122,894 
2,239,807 122,894 

2,239,807 122,894 
2,239,807 122,894 

$ - $ - $ 

D-3q 
p.2 

Final 
Budget Expenditures Variance 

2,000 $ 1,888 $ 112 
2,000 1,888 112 

519,270 254,156 265,114 
519,270 254,156 265,114 

1,046,194 776,117 270,077 
2,362,701 2,030,077 332,624 
2,362,701 2,030,077 332,624 

2,362,701 2,030,077 332,624 
2,362,701 2,030,077 332,624 

- $ - $ 
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School: Wilson 

Expenditures 
CWTent: 

Instruction - regular programs: 

Salaries of Teachers: 

Kindergarten 

Grades 1- 5 

Undistributed Instruction: 

Other Salaries ofinstruction 

Purchased Professional & Educational Services 

Other Purchased Services 

General Supplies 

Textbooks 

Total Regular Programs 

Total Instruction 

Undistributed Expenditures: 

Attendance and Social Work Services: 

Salaries of Family LiaisonsiComm Parent Inv. Specialists 

Total Attendance and Social Work Services 

Health Services: 

Salaries 

Supplies and Materials 

Total Health Services 

Guidance: 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 

Total Guidance 

Educational Media/Library Services: 

Salaries 

Supplies and Materials 

Total Educational Media/Library Services 

Support Services - School Administration: 

Salaries of Principals! Assistant PrincipalslProgram Directors 

Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 

Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 

Supplies and Materials 

Total Support Services - School Administration 

Student Transportation Services: 

Contracted Services -Transportation (Other than 

Between Home and School) - Vendors 

Total Student Transportation Services 

Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Original 
Budget Transfers 

$ 143,625 $ (28,069) 
991,180 (2,100) 

80,324 
14,004 

34,784 
102,785 35,644 
30,356 {5,000} 

1,383,054 14,479 
1,383,054 14,479 

43,179 2,100 
43,179 2,100 

84,885 
1,226 

86,111 

92,648 
92,648 

100,098 
11,118 

111,216 

116,648 28,069 
64,152 
2,540 
7,625 

190,965 28,069 

3,900 
3,900 

Final 
Budget EXl:!enditures 

$ 115,556 $ 92,525 
989,080 934,452 

80,324 77,622 
14,004 9,004 
34,784 18,275 

138,429 127,180 
25,356 10,570 

1,397,533 1,269,628 
1,397,533 1,269,628 

45,279 43,639 
45,279 43,639 

84,885 84,296 
1,226 1,226 

86,111 85,522 

92,648 91,906 
92,648 91,906 

100,098 99,339 
11,118 9,952 

111,216 109,291 

144,717 144,717 
64,152 63,532 

2,540 1,035 
7,625 1,402 

219,034 210,686 

3,900 1,354 
3,900 1,354 

$ 

D-3r 
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(continued) 

Variance 

23,031 
54,628 

2,702 
5,000 

16,509 
11,249 
14,786 

127,905 
127,905 

1,640 
1,640 

589 

589 

742 
742 

759 
1,166 
1,925 

620 
1,505 
6,223 
8,348 

2,546 
2,546 
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School: Wilson 

Expenditures 
Unallocated Benefits: 

Health Benefits 

Total Unallocated Benefits 

Total Undistributed Expenditures 

Total Expenditures - Current 

Total Expenditures - School Based 

Other Financing Sources: 

Transfers In 

Total Other Financing Sources 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources 

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balances, July 1 

Fund Balances, June 30 

Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30,2012 

Original 
Budget Transfers 

$ 606,721 $ {9,004} 
606,721 {9,004} 

1,134,740 21,165 
2,517,794 35,644 
2,517,794 35,644 

2,517,794 35,644 
2,517,794 35,644 

$ 

$ - $ - $ 

Final 
Budget 

597,717 $ 
597,717 

1,155,905 
2,553,438 
2,553,438 

2,553,438 
2,553,438 

- $ 

Exeenditures 

352,444 $ 
352,444 
894,842 

2,164,470 
2,164,470 

2,164,470 
2,164,470 

- $ 

D-3r 
p.2 

Variance 

245,273 
245,273 
261,063 
388,968 
388,968 

388,968 
388,968 
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(continued) 

Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

School: Trenton Central High School 
Original Final 

Expenditures Budget Transfers Budget Ex~enditures Variance 

Current: 

Instruction - regular programs: 

Salaries of Teachers: 

Grades 9-12 $ 11,470,009 $ (44,235) $ 11,425,774 $ 10,576,280 $ 849,494 

Undistributed Instruction: 

Purchased Professional & Educational Services 30,000 12,856 42,856 42,856 

Purchased Technical Services 112,418 112,418 112,418 

Other Purchased Services 281,302 (31,939) 249,363 230,976 18,387 

General Supplies 348,492 148,635 497,127 429,422 67,705 

Textbooks 170,000 PO,171} 139,829 91,830 47,999 

Total Regular Programs 12,299,803 167,564 12,467,367 11,440,926 1,026,441 

School Sponsored Co-curricular Activities: 

Salaries 124,980 124,980 57,723 67,257 

Total School Sponsored Co-curricular Activities 124,980 124,980 57,723 67,257 

Total Instruction 12,299,803 292,544 12,592,347 11,498,649 1,093,698 

Undistributed Expenditures: 

Attendance and Social Work Services: 

Salaries 62,000 {62,000} 
Total Attendance and Social Work Services 62,000 (62,000) 

Health Services: 

Salaries 312,929 2,627 315,556 314,419 1,137 

Supplies and Materials 3,500 3,500 2,264 1,236 

Total Health Services 316,429 2,627 319,056 316,683 2,373 

Guidance: 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 905,228 165,455 1,070,683 1,031,582 39,101 

Other Salaries 485,447 485,447 455,520 29,927 

Total Guidance 1,390,675 165,455 1,556,130 1,487,102 69,028 

Improvement of Instruction Services: 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 200,195 {100,000} 100,195 98,515 1,680 

Total Improvement of Instruction Services 200,195 (100,000) 100,195 98,515 1,680 

Educational MedialLibrary Services: 

Salaries 260,972 5,943 266,915 266,915 

Supplies and Materials 64,550 608 65,158 62,541 2,617 

Total Educational MedialLibrary Services 325,522 6,551 332,073 329,456 2,617 

Support Services - School Administration: 

Salaries of Principals! Assistant Principals/Program Directors 960,582 (4,580) 956,002 925,228 30,774 

Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 616,500 40,090 656,590 632,534 24,056 

Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 14,400 14,400 12,652 1,748 

Supplies and Materials 27,320 (3,000} 24,320 16,329 7,991 

Total Support Services - School Administration 1,618,802 32,510 1,651,312 1,586,743 64,569 
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School: Trenton Central High School 

Expenditures 
Student Transportation Services: 

Contracted Services -Transportation (Other than 

Between Home and School) - Vendors 

Total Student Transportation Services 

Unallocated Benefits: 

Health Benefits 

Total Unallocated Benefits 

Total Undistributed Expenditures 

Total Expenditures - Current 

Capital Outlay 

Equipment: 

Regular Programs - Instruction: 

Grades 9-12 

Total Equipment 

Total Expenditures - School Based 

Other Financing Sources: 

Transfers In 

Total Other Financing Sources 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources 

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balances, July 1 

Fund Balances, June 30 

Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Original 
Budget Transfers 

$ 33,000 $ 10,000 
33,000 10,000 

5,089,675 (45,000) 
5,089,675 (45,000) 
9,036,298 10,143 

21,336,101 302,687 

10,000 3,210 
10,000 3,210 

21,346,101 305,897 

21,346,101 305,897 
21,346,101 305,897 

$ 

$ - $ - $ 

Final 
Budget 

43,000 $ 
43,000 

5,044,675 
5,044,675 
9,046,441 

21,638,788 

13,210 
13,210 

21,651,998 

21,651,998 
21,651,998 

- $ 

Expenditures 

32,482 $ 
32,482 

4,823,857 
4,823,857 
8,674,838 

20,173,487 

5,085 
5,085 

20,178,572 

20,178,572 
20,178,572 

- $ 

D-3s 
p.2 

Variance 

10,518 
10,518 

220,818 
220,818 
371,603 

1,465,301 

8,125 
8,125 

1,473,426 

1,473,426 
1,473,426 
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(continued) 
Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

School: Daylight-Twilight High School 

Original Final 
Expenditures Budget Transfers Budget EXl!enditures Variance 
Current: 

Instruction - regular programs: 

Salaries of TeacheTS: 

Grades 9-12 $ 2,309,628 $ 10,080 $ 2,319,708 $ 1,915,509 $ 404,199 
Undistributed Instruction: 

Purchased Professional & Educational Services 50,160 (10,080) 40,080 30,000 10,080 
Other Purchased Services 14,074 14,074 10,664 3,410 
General Supplies 121,941 121,941 113,783 8,158 
Textbooks 20,000 20,000 19,306 694 

Total Regular Programs 2,515,803 2,515,803 2,089,262 426,541 

School Sponsored Co-cumcular Activities: 

Salaries 30,000 30,000 30,000 
Total School Sponsored Co-cumcular Activities 30,000 30,000 30,000 

Total Instruction 2,515,803 30,000 2,545,803 2,119,262 426,541 

Undistributed Expenditures: 

Attendance and Social Work Services: 

Salaries 81,407 81,407 80,886 521 
Total Attendance and Social Work Services 81,407 81,407 80,886 521 

Health Services: 

Salaries 82,091 82,091 81,556 535 
Total Health Services 82,091 82,091 81,556 535 

Guidance: 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 149,809 24,807 174,616 148,994 25,622 
Total Guidance 149,809 24,807 174,616 148,994 25,622 

Educational MedialLibraxy Services: 

Salaries 101,628 101,628 100,839 789 
Supplies and Materials 25,000 25,000 24,616 384 

Total Educational MedialLibraxy Services 126,628 126,628 125,455 1,173 

Support Services - School Administration: 

Salaries of Principals! Assistant Principals/Program Directors 373,962 1,986 375,948 375,948 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 277,882 (26,793) 251,089 141,145 109,944 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 5,900 2,500 8,400 3,254 5,146 
Supplies and Materials 5,000 {2,500} 2,500 2,439 61 

Total Support Services - School Administration 662,744 (24,807) 637,937 522,786 115,151 

Student Transportation Services: 

Contracted Services -Transportation (Other than 

Between Home and School) - Vendors 1,000 1,000 677 323 
Total Student Transportation Services 1,000 1,000 677 323 
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School: Daylight-Twilight High School 

Expenditures 
Unallocated Benefits: 

Health Benefits 

Total Unallocated Benefits 

Total Undistributed Expenditures 

Total Expenditures - Current 

Total Expenditures - School Based 

Other Financing Sources: 

Transfers In 

Total Other Financing Sources 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources 

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balances, July 1 

Fund Balances, June 30 

Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Original 
BUdget Transfers 

$ 1,131,096 
1,131,096 
2,234,775 
4,750,578 $ 30,000 
4,750,578 30,000 

4,750,578 30,000 
4,750,578 30,000 

$ 

$ - $ - $ 

Final 
Budget 

1,131,096 $ 
1,131,096 
2,234,775 
4,780,578 
4,780,578 

4,780,578 
4,780,578 

- $ 

Ex~enditures 

1,034,497 $ 
1,034,497 
1,994,851 
4,114,113 
4,114,113 

4, 114,1l3 
4,1l4,113 

- $ 

D-3t 
p.2 

Variance 

96,599 
96,599 

239
1
924 

666,465 
666,465 

666,465 
666,465 
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School: Alternative Middle School 

Expenditures 
Current: 

Alternative Education Programs - Instruction: 

Salaries of Teachers 

Purchased Services 

Supplies and Materials 

Textbooks 

Total Alternative Education Programs - Instruction 

Alternative Education Programs - Support Services: 

Salaries 

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 

Purchased Services 

Supplies and Materials 

Other Objects 

Total Alternative Education Programs - Support Services 

Total Instruction 

Total Expenditures - Current 

Total Expenditures - School Based 

Other Financing Sources: 

Transfers In 

Total Other Financing Sources 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources 

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balances, July I 

Fund Balances, June 30 

Trenton School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Original 
Budget Transfers 

$ 875,273 $ 
9,004 

109,896 
20,000 

1,014,173 

585,984 
35,000 

7,760 
34,509 
2,903 

666,156 
1,680,329 
1,680,329 
1,680,329 

1,680,329 
1,680,329 

$ - $ - $ 

D-3u 
p. I 

Final 
Budget Expenditures Variance 

875,273 $ 503,097 $ 372,176 
9,004 9,004 

109,896 103,625 6,271 
20,000 9,739 10,261 

1,014,173 625,465 388,708 

585,984 497,499 88,485 
35,000 35,000 

7,760 5,760 2,000 
34,509 33,701 808 

2,903 2,084 819 
666,156 539,044 127,112 

1,680,329 1,164,509 515,820 
1,680,329 1,164,509 515,820 
1,680,329 1,164,509 515,820 

1,680,329 1,164,509 515,820 
1,680,329 1,164,509 515,820 

- $ - $ 
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Trenton School District 
Special Revenue Fund 

Combining Schedule of Program Revenues and Expenditures - Budgetary Basis 
Year ended June 30, 2012 

Title I Title II-A 

Regular 2010-2011 2009-2010 2008-2009 2009-2010 2010-2011 ARRASIA Regular 2010-2011 2009-10 2008-09 

Program Car!:!over ARRA Carrl:0ver SIA SIA SIA Car!:!over Program Car!:!over Car!:!over Cnr!:!over 
Revenues: 

Federal sources 4,024,921 126,780 618,430 147,510 36,261 25,618 278,190 28,718 109,844 380,410 18,907 51,218 

State sources 
Other sources 

Total revenues 4024921 126
1
780 618!430 147,510 36261 25

1
618 278,190 28718 109,844 380,410 18907 $ 51,218 

Expenditures: 
Instructi on: 

Salaries of teachers 2,342 $ 6,048 $ 100,176 11,002 
Salaries of other professional staff 3,336 
Other salaries for instruction 528 482 

Purchased professional and technical services 1,800 
Other purchased services 
General supplies 93 3,845 4,231 1,445 31,669 1,040 
Textbooks 
Other objects 468 6386 

Total instruction 1,089 3.845 6,573 7,493 143,367 12,042 482 

Support services: 
Salaries of supervisors of instruction 
Salaries of program directors 126,969 
Salaries of other professional staff 119,534 20,578 26,039 83.156 
Salaries of secretarial and clerical assistants 53,206 10,641 
Other salaries 530 185,561 29.688 15,125 32,066 9,121 18,344 23,472 342 
Salaries of facilitators, math coaches, 

literacy coaches, and master teachers 
Personal services-employee benefits 64.347 1,841 4,049 
Purchased professional-educational services 40,867 
Purch. educational servo - contracted Pre-K 
Other purchased professional services 
Purchased professional and technical services 804,170 36,184 144,433 3,000 100,460 5,714 46,200 44,400 18,000 9,500 
Rentals 
Contracted services transportation 
Other purchased services 604 36,399 211,146 1,419 
Travel 747 
Other purchased services 
Supplies and materials 9,461 5,956 55,918 1,658 2,297 41,251 227,807 565 369 
Miscellaneous expenditures 44162 10472 1,575 

Total support services 1,223,200 110,119 489,305 147.510 29,688 18,125 134,823 16,676 109,844 380,410 18,907 50,736 

Facilities acquisition and construction services: 
Instructional equipment 
Noninstructional equipment 12,816 129,125 

Total facilities acquisition and construction services 12,816 129,125 

Contribution to school based budgets 2800632 
Total expenditures 4,024,921 126,780 618!430 1471510 361261 25,618 278,190 28,718 109,844 380,410 181907 51,218 
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(continued) 

Trenton School District 
Special Revenue Fund 

Combining Schedule of Program Revenues and Expenditures - Budgetary Basis 
Year ended June 30,2012 

Small Small Small 
Title ill Learning Learning Learning 

Immigrant Communi!):: Communitr Communitr 
Regular 2010-2011 2009-10 2008-09 2010-2011 Regular 2010-11 2009-10 
Program Carr:rover Caraover Carrrover Caraover Program Carrrover Carrrover 

Revenues: 
Federal sources 17,152 125,784 12,394 6,567 770 285,385 87,439 22,912 
State sources 
Other sources 

Total revenues 17,152 125,784 12394 6567 $ 770 285,385 87439 $ 22,912 

Expenditures: 
Instruction: 

Salaries of teachers 48,533 $ 69,489 $ 22,512 
Salaries of other professional staff 
Other salaries for instruction 5,136 12,150 
Purchased professional and technical services 1,500 

Other purchased services 
General supplies 3,325 50,264 244 6,567 770 12,813 
Textbooks 
Other objects 576 

Total instruction 3,325 56,900 12,394 6,567 770 61,922 69,489 22,512 

Support services: 
Salaries of supervisors of instruction 
Salaries of program directors 
Salaries of other professional staff 16,934 
Salaries of secretarial and clerical assistants 
Other salaries 6,153 1,152 3,320 400 

Salaries offacilitators, math coaches, 
literacy coaches, and master teachers 

Personal services-employee benefits 14,303 
Purchased professional-educational services 
Purch. educational servo - contracted Pre-K 
Other purchased professional services 30,000 20,700 
Purchased professional and technical services 
Rentals 
Contracted services transportation 2,021 
Other purchased services 

Travel 1,936 
Other purchased services 7,505 
Supplies and materials 6,322 1,494 189,795 14,630 
Miscellaneous expenditures 

Total support services 13,827 68,884 215,604 17,950 400 

Facilities acquisition and construction services: 
Instructional equipment 
Noninstructional equipment 7859 

Total facilities acquisition and construction services 7,859 

Contribution to school based budgets 
Total expenditures 17,152 125,784 12394 $ 6

1
567 770 285

1
385 87439 $ 22912 
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(continued) 
Trenton School District 
Special Revenue Fund 

Combining Schedule of Program Revenues and Expenditures - Budgetary Basis 
Year ended June 30, 2012 

IDEIA Safe Carl 
Preschool Preschool Schools Perkins 

Regular 2010-2011 IDEAARRA 2009-10 Regular Preschool ARRA Regular Regular 
Program Carr;rover Caraover Caraover Program Caraover Program Program 

Revenues: 
Federal sources 3,046,051 371,139 2,379 911 26,790 43,540 1,072,733 171,648 
State sources 
Other sources 

Total revenues 3,046,051 371,139 2,379 911 $ 26,790 43,540 1,072,733 171,648 

Expenditures: 
Instruction: 

Salaries of teachers 7,140 
Salaries of other professional staff 
Other salaries for instruction 
Purchased professional and technical services 179,250 26,790 14,375 
Other purchased services 2,466,802 19,612 
General supplies 330,488 911 4,478 99,280 
Textbooks 
Other objects 2,806 

Total instruction 2,646,052 330,488 911 26,790 24,090 123,601 

Support services: 
Salaries of supervisors of instruction 
Salaries of program directors 
Salaries of other professional staff 101,687 
Salaries of secretarial and clerical assistants 
Other salaries 269,117 16,692 

Salaries of facilitators, math coaches, 
literacy coaches, and master teachers 

Personal services-employee benefits 156,039 1,277 
Purchased professional-educational services 3,794 
Purch. educational servo - contracted Pre-K 
Other purchased professional services 399,999 23,625 529,449 
Purchased professional and technical services 2,379 19,000 
Rentals 
Contracted services transportation 
Other purchased services 5,097 
Travel 807 1,091 
Other purchased services 
Supplies and materials 17,026 15,634 
Miscellaneous expenditures 

Total support services 399,999 40,651 2,379 3,794 1,072,733 43,157 

Facilities acquisition and construction services: 
Instructional equipment 15,656 4,890 
Noninstructional equipment 

Total facilities acquisition and construction services 15,656 4,890 

Contribution to school based budgets 
Total expenditures 3046051 $ 3711139 2,379 911 $ 26,790 43,540 1,072,733 171,648 
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(continued) 
Trenton School District 
Special Revenue Fund 

Combining Schedule of Program Revenues and Expenditures - Budgetary Basis 
Year ended June 30, 2012 

SBYSP SBYSP 
McKinney Walt Walt Walt ARRA Text- i3 Reading Preschool SHP TCHS 
Homeless Whitman Whitman Whitman SIG Nursing books RecoverJ:: Education Aid Tornado Tornado 

Regular 2010-2011 2009-10 2010-2011 Regular Regular Regular Regular 2010-2011 Regular Regular Regular 
Program Car!:J::over Car!:J::over Car!:J::over Program Program Program Program CarrJ::over Program Program Program 

Revenues: 
Federal sources 166,398 3,431 13,673 $ 63,202 $ 284,377 $ 15,914 
State sources 3,742 $ 2,192 22,500 $ 27,150,751 5,000 428,055 
Other sources 

Total revenues 166,398 3!431 13!673 $ 63!202 284,377 $ 15,914 3!742 $ 2,192 22,500 $ 27,150,751 5!000 428055 

Expenditures: 
Instruction: 

Salaries of teachers 989,495 
Salaries of other professional staff 437,186 
Other salaries for instruction 
Purchased professional and technical services 
Other purchased services 6,294 
General supplies 102,585 1,589 
Textbooks $ 2,192 
Other obj ects 

Total instruction ---z:T92 1,535,560 1,589 

Support services: 
Salaries of supervisors of instruction 173,045 
Salaries of program directors 
Salaries of other professional staff $ 7,768 $ 44,262 $ 63,918 1,043,537 88,000 
Salaries of secretarial and clerical assistants 159,146 
Other salaries $ 12,884 149,985 

Salaries of facilitators, math coaches, 
literacy coaches, and master teachers 646,827 

Personal services-employee benefits 400 4,856 1,737 3,030 1,206,133 20,212 
Purchased professional-educational services $ 165,000 54,535 
Purch. educational servo - contracted Pre-K 159,018 21,721,334 
Other purchased professional services 53,956 1,662 304,865 
Purchased professional and technical services 22,500 
Rentals 7,680 
Contracted services transportation 
Other purchased services 
Travel 129 1,352 71 1,087 
Other purchased services 
Supplies and materials 1,398 3,431 5,376 12,732 5,098 16,292 10,064 
Miscellaneous expenditures 3,742 11,599 1,749 4,914 

Total support services 166,398 3,431 13,673 63,202 284,377 15,914 3,742 22,500 25,190,621 3,411 428,055 

Facilities acquisition and construction services: 
Instructional equipment 424,570 
Noninstructional equipment 

Total facilities acquisition and construction services 424,570 

Contribution to school based budgets 
Total expenditures 166,398 3,431 13,673 $ 63,202 $ 284377 $ 15

1
914 3,742 $ 2,192 22500 $ 27,150,751 5,000 428,055 
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Trenton School District 
Special Revenue Fund 

Combining Schedule of Program Revenues and Expenditures - Budgetary Basis 
Year ended June 30, 2012 

TCHS 
Art Club Art Club NJSBAIG NJSBAIG Robotics Other 
Regular 2010-2011 2009-10 Regular Regular 
Program Car!I0ver Carr;r:over Program Car!Iover Program Totals 

Revenues: 
Federal sources 11,687,396 
S tate sources 27,612,240 
Other sources 4,518 985 41961 50,000 6361 1,013 104838 

Total revenues 4
1
518 985 41 1961 50,000 6,361 1,013 39,404,474 

Expenditures: 
Instruction: 

Salaries of teachers 2,852 $ 945 1,260,534 
Salaries of other professional staff 440,522 
Other salaries for instruction 18,296 
Purchased professional and technical services 223,715 
Other purchased services 2,492,708 
General supplies 408 1,359 657,404 
Textbooks 2,192 
Other objects 903 II 139 

Total instruction 3,260 945 1,359 903 5,106,510 

Support services: 
Salaries of supervisors of instruction 173,045 
Salaries of program directors 126,969 
Salaries of other professional staff 1,615,413 
Salaries of secretarial and clerical assistants 222,993 
Other salaries 773,952 

Salaries of facilitators, math coaches, 
literacy coaches, and master teachers 646,827 

Personal services-employee benefits 1,478,224 
Purchased professional-educational services 264,196 
Purch. educational servo - contracted Pre-K 21,880,352 
Other purchased professional services 1,364,256 
Purchased professional and technical services 1,255,940 
Rentals 7,680 
Contracted services transportation 2,021 
Other purchased services 472 40 110 255,287 
Travel 7,220 
Other purchased services 7,505 
Supplies and materials 25,207 669,781 
Miscellaneous expenditures 786 6,361 85,360 

Total support services 1,258 40 25,207 6,361 110 30,837,021 

Facilities acquisition and construction services: 
Instructional equipment 445,116 
Noninstructional equipment 15,395 50,000 215,195 

Total facilities acquisition and construction services 15,395 50,000 660,311 

Contribution to school based budgets 2,800632 
Total expenditures 41518 985 $ 41,961 50000 $ 6361 $ 1,013 39,404,474 
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EXPENDITURES: 
Instruction: 

Salaries of Teachers 
Other Salaries for Instruction 
Other Purchased Services 
General Supplies 

Total instruction 

Support services: 
Salaries of Supervisors of Instruction 
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 
Salaries of Secr. And Clerical Assistants 

Other Salaries 

Trenton School District 
Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Preschool Education Aid Expenditures 
Preschool 

Budgetary Basis 

Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Original Budget 

Budget Transfers 

$ 1,040,259 $ (6,000) 

513,851 
7,313 

26,000 108,956 

1,587,423 102,956 

202,828 (15,000) 

1,288,420 (31,053) 

175,146 
128,716 31,053 

E-2 

Final 
Budget Actual Variance 

$ 1,034,259 $ 989,495 $ 44,764 

513,851 437,186 76,665 

7,313 6,294 1,019 

134,956 102,585 32,371 

1,690,379 1,535,560 154,819 

187,828 173,045 14,783 

1,257,367 1,043,537 213,830 

175,146 159,146 16,000 

159,769 149,985 9,784 

Salaries of facilitators, math coaches, literacy coaches, and master teachers 699,990 699,990 646,827 53,163 

Personal Services - Employee Benefits 
Purchased Educational Services - Contracted Pre-K 
Other Purchased Professional Services 

Rentals 
Contr. Serv.-Trans. (Field Trips) 

Travel 

Supplies & Materials 

Miscellaneous expenditures 

Total support services 

Facilities acquisition and cont. serv: 
Instructional equipment 

Total Facilities acquisition and cont. serv: 

Total Expenditures 

1,206,133 1,206,133 1,206,133 

21,315,913 866,280 22,182,193 21,721,334 460,859 

143,664 (35,000) 108,664 53,956 54,708 

7,680 7,680 7,680 

7,313 7,313 7,313 

3,000 3,000 1,087 1,913 

18,588 18,588 16,292 2,296 

15,000 15,000 11,599 3,401 

25,212,391 816,280 26,028,671 25,190,621 838,050 

435,000 435,000 424,570 10,430 

435,000 435,000 424,570 10,430 

$ 26,799,814 $ 1,354,236 $ 28,154,050 $ 27,150,751 $ 1,003,299 

Calculation of Budget and Carryover 

Total revised 2011-12 Preschool Education Aid Allocation $ 26,910,920 
Add: Actual ECPA Carryover June 30, 2011 2,663,504 

Add: Prior Year Purchase Orders Canceled 24,232 

Total Preschool Education Aid Funds Available for 2011-12 Budget 29,598,656 
Less: 2011-12 Budgeted Preschool Education Aid 

(Including prior year budgeted carryover) 

Available & Unbudgeted Preschool Education Aid Funds as of June 30, 2012 

(28,154,050) 
1,444,606 

Add: June 30, 2012 Unexpended Preschool Education Aid 
2011-12 Carryover - Preschool Education Aid 

2011-12 Preschool Education Aid Carryover 

1,003,299 
$ 2,447,905 

Budgeted for Preschool Programs 2012-13 $ 1,646,390 
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Trenton School District 
Capital Proj ects Fund 

F-1 

Summary Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis 

Revenues and Other Financing 
Sources 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

State Sources - SDA Grants 
Contributions from the City of Trenton 

Total revenues 

Expenditures and Other Financing 
Uses 

Construction services 
Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 

Fund balance, July 1 

Fund balance, June 30 

$ 1,388,582 
247,225 

1,635,807 

1,635,807 
1,635,807 

$ 
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Issue/Project Title 

District Projects 
2008-09 capital projects 
2011-12 capital projects 

Subtotal 

NJ School Development Authority Projects 
TrentonHS 
Hedgepeth Williams MS 
Arthur Holland MS 
Grace A. Dunn MS 
Cadwalader ES 
Bellevue ES 
ColumbusES 
Franklin ES 
GrantES 
GregoryES 
Harrison ES 
Jefferson ES 
Joyce Kilmer ES 
Luis Munoz Rivera ES 
MonumentES 
MottES 
PJHill 
ParkerES 
Robbins ES 
Stokes ES 
Washington ES 
RoeblingES 
DaylightlTwilight Alternative HS 
Martin Luther King 
New Early Childhood Center 
WilsonMS 

Subtotal 
Total 

Trenton School District 

Capital Projects Fund 

Summary Schedule of Project Expenditures 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Expenditures to Date 

Original Adjusted Prior Current 
Authorization Appropriation Years Year 

$ 1,350,000 $ 1,331,678 $ 1,045,670 $ 94,579 

4,175,000 4,173,031 152,646 
1,045,670 247,225 

38,405,000 12,332,734 11,939,153 135,594 

1,605,400 2,424,387 2,422,962 1,425 

1,484,292 305,512 305,512 

4,189,000 5,049,958 5,049,958 

16,246,827 235,285 215,927 

70,330 70,330 70,330 

10,221,219 20,273,882 20,273,882 

2,244,000 2,760,872 2,760,872 

3,542,000 4,218,272 4,218,272 

4,051,951 4,649,521 4,649,521 

1,300,000 1,565,892 1,565,892 

43,000 51,786 51,786 

17,741,391 25,129,189 25,129,056 133 

3,369,000 3,940,458 3,940,458 

22,111 635,954 516,557 

5,895,750 9,154,206 9,148,218 

10,125,593 10,745,261 10,729,037 

8,092,000 19,995,354 19,995,354 

331,267 307,665 300,367 

1,212,329 33,055 33,055 

1,766,000 2,091,845 2,088,095 

21,000,000 23,251,911 21,183,958 1,165,909 

18,122,852 40,778,945 40,550,644 74,676 

20,000,000 58,254,493 58,193,390 

1,227,324 2,897,024 2,411,649 10,380 

101,254 391,336 388,398 465 
248,132,303 1,388,582 

$ 249177 973 $ 1635807 

F-2 

Unexpended 
Balance 

June 30, 2012 

$ 191,429 
4,020,385 
4,211,814 

257,987 

19,358 

119,397 
5,988 

16,224 

7,298 

3,750 
902,044 
153,625 
61,103 

474,995 
2,473 

2,024,242 
$ 6236056 
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Trenton School District 
Fiduciary Funds 

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets 

June 30, 2012 

Trust 
Private -
Purpose Agency 

Scholarship Student 
Funds Activity PaIroll 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 166,587 $ 124,976 $ 3,368,349 

Investments 294,267 

Total assets 460,854 $ 124,976 $ 3,368,349 

Liabilities 
Payroll deductions and 

withholdings payable $ 3,341,411 

Summer escrow payroll payable 26,938 

Due to student groups $ 124,976 

Total liabilities $ 124,976 $ 3,368,349 

Net assets 
Held in trust for scholarships $ 460,854 

H-l 

Totals 

$ 3,493,325 

$ 3,493,325 

$ 3,341,411 
26,938 

124,976 
$ 3,493,325 
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Additions 
Interest 
Total additions 

Deductions 
Scholarship payments 
Unrealized loss on investment 
Miscellaneous 
Total deductions 

Change in net assets 
Net assets - beginning 
Net assets - end 

Trenton School District 
Fiduciary Funds 

Statement of Changes 
in Fiduciary Net Assets 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

H-2 

Private-purpose 
Scholarship 
Trust Fund 

$ 14 
14 

4,500 
5,565 

610 
10,675 

(10,661) 
471,515 

$ 460,854 
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Elementary schools 

Columbus 
Grant 
Gregory 
Hill 
Kilmer 
Mott 
Parker 
Wilson 

Middle schools 
Dunn 
Hedgepath-Williams 

High schools 
Activities Assn. 
TCHS West 
Athletic 
JROTC 
DaylightfTwilight HS 

Total all schools 

Trenton School District 
Student Activity Agency Fund 

Schedule of Cash Receipts and Cash Disbursements 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Balance Cash Cash 
June 30,2011 Receipts Disbursements 

$ 212 $ 212 
1,104 $ 13,297 12,815 

171 171 
1,989 2,059 4,438 

556 19,387 15,682 
4,338 13,062 14,062 
4,618 982 5,328 
1,382 26,393 22,223 

$ 14,370 $ 75,180 $ 74,931 

$ 718 $ 14,141 $ 9,051 
2,532 11,888 7,565 

$ 3,250 $ 26,029 $ 16,616 

$ 53,034 $ 72,070 $ 69,186 
4,856 26,169 24,639 

18,780 86,055 72,405 
67 740 400 

2,128 2,993 2,568 
$ 78,865 $ 188,027 $ 169,198 

$ 96,485 $ 289,236 $ 260,745 

H-3 

Balance 
June 30, 2012 

$ 1,586 

(390) 
4,261 
3,338 

272 
5,552 

$ 14,619 

$ 5,808 
6,855 

$ 12,663 

$ 55,918 
6,386 

32,430 
407 

2,553 
$ 97,694 

$ 124,976 
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Trenton School District 
Payroll Agency Fund 

Schedule of Cash Receipts and Cash Disbursements 

Year ended June 30,2012 

Balance 
June Cash Cash 

30,2011 Receipts Disbursements 
Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,577,638 $ 128,579,858 $ 129,789,147 
Total assets $ 4,577,638 $ 128,579,858 $ 129,789,147 

Liabilities 
Payroll deductions and withholdings 

payable $ 4,550,700 $ 125,667,683 $ 126,876,972 
Summer escrow payroll payable 26,938 2,912,175 2,912,175 
Total liabilities $ 4,577,638 $ 128,579,858 $ 129,789,147 

H-4 

Balance 
June 

30,2012 

$ 3,368,349 
$ 3,368,349 

$ 3,341,411 
26,938 

$ 3,368,349 
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(Unaudited) 



Statistical Section 
Unaudited 

Contents 

Financial Trends 

Revenue Capacity 

Debt Capacity 

These schedules contain trend infonnation to help the reader understand how the district's fmancial 
perfonnance and well being have changed over time. 

These schedules contain infonnation to help the reader assess the district's most significant local revenue 
source, the property tax. 

These schedules present infonnation to help the reader assess the affordability of the district's current 
levels of outstanding debt and the district's ability to issue additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the 
environment within which the district's fmancial activities take place. 

Operating Information 

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the infonnation 
in the district's fmancial report relates to the services the district provides and the activities it perfonns. 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual financial 
reports (CAFR) for the relevant year. Ten years of information has been provided where available. 



Governmental activities: 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted (deficit) 

Total governmental activities net assets 

Business-type activities: 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Unrestricted (deficit) 

Total business-type activities net assets 

District-wide: 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted (deficit) 

Total district net assets 

Source: CAFR Schedule A-I and District records. 

2003 

58,461,333 
296,378 

(27,924,320) 
30,833,391 

111,957 
(111,957) 

58,573,290 
296,378 

(28,036,277) 
30,833,391 

2004 200S 

94,499,202 146,448,158 
220,386 66,984 

(25 273,029) (27,537,268) 
69,446,559 118,977,874 

118,597 $ 204,790 
018,597) (204,790} 

94,617,799 146,652,948 
220,386 66,984 

(25,391 ,626) {27,742,058) 
69,446,559 118,977,874 

Trenton School District 
Net Assets by Component 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(accrual basis ojaccOIlnling) 

Unaudited 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 
2006 2007 2008 

$ 177,009,418 204,648,051 249,791,051 
351,583 150,956 694,702 

(25,812,658} (21,058,633) {36,037,098} 
15 J,548,343 183,740,374 214,448,655 

$ 203,261 $ 161,635 133,112 

{203,261 l (16I,635} (133,112} 
$ $ 

177,212,679 204,809,686 249,924,163 
351,583 150,956 694,702 

{26,OI5,919} (21,220,268) (36,170,210) 
151,548,343 183,740,374 $ 214,448,655 

1-1 

2009 2010 2011 2012 

273,336,235 283,500,956 255,834,136 250,074,624 
12,513 145,592 26,158,460 

(48,828,941} (45,842,812) (35,375,350) (32,416,537} 
$ 224,519,807 237,658,144 220,604,378 243,816,547 

$ 99,598 63,531 49,428 
(99,598} (63,53 n (49,428} 21,589 

2J,589 

273,435,833 283,564,487 255,883,564 250,074,624 
12,513 145,592 26,158,460 

(48,928,539) (45,906,343) (35,424,778) (32,394,948) 
224,519,807 237,658,144 220,604,378 243,838,136 
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)·2 

Trenton School District 
Changes in Net Assets 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(accnlal basi.' of accounling) 

Unaudited 

Fiscal Y~lIr Endtd June 30 
1003 1004 100S 1006 1007 1008 1009 1010 1011 lOll 

Ell'ellfiel 
GovcrnmcnwlactiviticN: 

ln~truction 113,733,819 130,431,151 138,062,033 140,791,778 149,396,258 153,801,807 154,662,006 150,371,449 146,111,593 153,563,624 

Support Services: 
Student &; instruction related HCIViccs 54,221,688 54,474,585 64,355,769 68,913,960 61,514,190 66,384,800 66,950,578 61,599,697 57,443,556 59,551,107 

GCDcrnl administration serviCC5 1,805.360 3,089,118 3,455,400 3,391,073 3,073,606 3,273,980 3,008,896 1,874,648 3,107,543 2,107,360 

Schoul AdminislIotin services 7,720,461 8,868,077 9,675,340 10,345,637 10,744,208 11,663,048 11,107,060 12,267,981 10,315,391 11.615,041 
CenlralServiccs 629,059 4,646,477 1,687,269 4,248,440 4,414,715 4,833,673 4,508,909 3.999,267 
Administrative inroonation technology 1,101,716 1,132,757 1,420,788 1,434.936 1,612,989 2,595,571 2,201,343 3.017,583 
Phmt operations and maintenance 23,614,327 28,295,054 31,625,361 34,607,490 34,062,174 36,155,877 33,208,830 31,959,476 25,601,501 25,422,975 
Pupil transportation 8,233,752 8.249,682 9,022,301 9,454,757 8,586,884 9,253,583 8,394,274 7,991,036 7,176,933 6,Ct73,447 
Other ,upport services 5,936,728 6,218,337 69,982 1,234 

Spe.ial School. 5,732,145 488,750 2,221,878 5,428,082 2,519,587 1,926.409 350,921 292,945 137,104 
ChoncrSchoDls 16,474,061 15,305,474 12,808,803 14,338,432 15,691,107 17,388,920 27,541,252 32,417,802 33,318,478 23.361.258 
Capital outlay 2470559 737835 414408 1491054 134139 

Totol governmental activities cxpcnHCS 240942900 256158063 273443050 294542731 288830210 305531800 311251.521 306911.333 290178.192 289.448.766 

BusincslI-lypcllctivitic3: 
FoodltCrvicc 7488054 7383996 8613.828 8721.924 8834447 9.201724 8.615763 5640447 5558984 5881.970 

Total busineslI-typoaclivitics expense 7488054 7383996 8613 828 8721924 8834447 9.201724 8615763 5640447 5.558984 5.881.970 
Totnldistrictcxpenses 248430954 263542059 282056878 303264655 297664657 314733524 319867284 312551780 295737.176 295330736 

Proe:ram RevenueJI 
Governmenloloctivities: 

Operating and capilalsrllnt'i and contributions 31746623 33624.296 38091240 36197.977 63721493 88772440 70312423 58.275.271 44334.923 40314802 
Tuloigovernmcntaillctiviliesprogrumrevenues 31746623 33624296 38091240 36197977 63721493 88,712 440 70.312423 58.275271 44,334923 40314.802 

Business-typcactivitic.: 
ChargcsCorllCrviceli 

Fuod service 1,466,449 1,514,060 1,848,499 1,969,126 1,831,304 1,671,160 1.149,614 756,447 7(>4,526 516,701 
Operating grunts and cuntributions 3233707 3312.317 3553.225 3797945 3863189 4191.605 5141.925 4727313 4333.517 5386858 

Towl business typc acljvj(ics prngrum revenues 4.700156 4826377 MOl 724 5767071 5694493 5862.765 6291539 5483760 5098043 5.903.559 
Tolal district program reVenUes 36446779 38450.673 43492964 41965048 69415986 94635205 76603962 63759.031 4943296(. 46218.361 

Net (ExJl~JUe)lRrvenue 
Onven,menwlactivities (209,196,277) (222,533,767) $ (235,351,810) (258,344,754) (225,108,717) (216,759,360) (240,939,098) $ (248,636,062) (245,843,269) (249,133,964) 
Dusjnes~ty(lClictiviticK ,2.787898l ,2.557619l P212104l ,2954853l ,3139954l ,3338959l ,2324224l p56687l ,460 941l 21589 
Total distriCI~widG net expense pll 984 1751 1225091 386} \238563914} ,261 2996071 $ 12282486711 F20 098 3191 \2432(3322) ,248.792 7491 1246.304210) 12491123751 

General Revenues and Other Change. in Net Asset. 
Governmental activitie.o,:: 

Property taxe:slevied for general purposes, net 21,115,662 21,115,662 21,115,662 21,115,662 21,115,662 21,115,662 21.115,662 21,115,662 21,115,(,62 21,115,662 
Unrestricted gruntJ and conlributiom, 196,506,196 238,947,368 265,764,154 266,827,194 236,134.860 227,545,891 230,993,774 239,424,517 229,852,230 249,064,979 
Spccialitems 21,289,338 (23.474,744) 
Ilivestmcntean,ings 137,206 157,954 294,947 452,929 705,309 380,275 71,417 
Miscellancousincomc 1,761,108 3,506,542 1,234,783 5,474,291 2,484,871 1,378,194 1,153,621 1,390,907 1.757.296 2,165,492 
Transfcnt (27878981 (2557.6191 (32121041 (2954853l P 139,9541 ,33389591 (23242241 ,156687l ,460941l 

Total governmental aCliviticll 238021612 261169907 285197.442 290915223 257300748 247081063 251010.250 261774.399 228789503 272 346133 

Du~ine"s .. typo activities: 
Trallsfer:c 2787898 2557619 3.212104 2954853 3139954 3338959 2324.224 156,687 460.941 

Total busines..,,~tyrc activities 2.787898 2557619 3,212104 2.954853 3139954 3.338,959 2324224 156.687 460941 
Totaldi5tricl .. widc 240809510 263727526 288409546 293870076 260440702 250420022 253334474 261931086 229250444 272 346133 

Change In Nfl Alaets 
Oovcmmcntalactivitics 28,82l,335 38,636,140 49,845,632 32,570,469 32,192,031 30,321,703 10,071,152 13,138,337 (17.053,766) $ 23,212.169 
BUliincss-typcactivilics 21,589 
Tot.aldistril:l 28825335 38636140 49845632 32570469 31 192031 30321703 10071152 13138337 1170537661 23.233758 

SoUn:e: CAFR Schcduld A~l and District recordK. 
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Trenton School District 
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

Unaudited 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 
2003 2004 200S 2006 

General Fund: 
Reserved 1,592,227 $ 7,824,433 $ 2,844,220 $ 414,118 
Restricted 
Unreserved (deficit) 487,226 (1,988,139) (1,972,514) (5,635,283) 
Unassigned (deficit) 

Total general fund $ 2,079,453 $ 5,836,294 $ 871,706 {5,221, 165} 

All Other Governrnental Funds: 
Reserved $ 296,378 7,092 $ 66,984 $ 351,583 
Unreserved, reported in: 

Special revenue fund (deficit) (676,133) (774,985) (769,008) (755,358) 
Capital projects fund (deficit) 

Unassigned (deficit) 
Total all other governrnental funds $ (379,7552 $ (767,893} {702,0242 $ (403,775) 

Source: CAFR Schedule 8-1 and District records. 

Note 1: GASB #54 was implemented in the 2011 fiscal year, which required the presentations of fund balances to be reported 
in different classifications from those presented in prior years. (See footnote l.M in the basic financial statements) 
Prior years have not been restated above and are not required to be. 

Note 2: The deficits in the general fund and special revenue fund are the result of the last two state aid payments being 
deferred until the subsequent fiscal year. See notes to the basic financial statements for additional information. 

2007 2008 

197,307 $ 741,495 

(2,564,236) (8,970,745) 

$ (2,366,929) (8,229,250} 

$ 150,956 

(687,911) $ (744,196) 

$ (536,9552 (744,196) 

J-3 

2009 2010 2011 2012 

$ 65,260 
$ 145,592 26,158,460 

$ (19,625,590) (16,652,470) 
{9,914,245} {9,001,924} 

$ (19,625,590} $ (16,587,210} (9,768,653} $ 17,156,536 

$ 12,513 $ 144,622 

(2,757,491) (2,659,186) 
(144,622) 

$ {2,625,94I) $ (2,802,198) 
$ (2,744,978) (2,659,186) $ (2,625,9412 $ (2,802,198) 
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Trenton School District 
Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

Unaudited 

Fiscal rear ended June 30z 
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Revenues 
Tax levy $ 21,115,662 $ 21,115,662 $ 21,115,662 21,115,662 21,115,662 $ 21,115,662 $ 21,115,662 21,115,662 21,115,662 $ 21,115,662 

Interest earnings 137,206 157,954 294,947 452,929 705,309 380,275 71,417 

Miscellaneous 2,969,093 4,001,912 2,380,682 6,698,652 3,309,467 3,474,747 1,753,998 1,969,781 2,137,956 2,558,574 

State sources 214,619,657 259,405,172 285,095,318 284,480,176 283,952,835 300,093,824 284,503,869 247,031,783 256,916,616 269,311,491 

Federal sources 12,425,177 12,671,122 17,614,177 17,320,634 15,078,922 14,127,954 16,201,951 50,089,131 16,889,877 19,675,208 

Total revenue 251,266,795 297,351,822 326,500,786 330,068,053 324,162,195 339,192,462 323,646,897 320,206,357 297,060,111 312,660,935 

Expenditures 
Instruction: 

Regular Instruction 46,274,196 51,624,590 51,551,529 56,145,990 55,728,007 55,208,324 55,433,911 54,406,500 56,519,716 56,498,201 

Special education instruction 18,767,945 19,792,023 23,225,594 22,514,598 21,456,237 20,817,989 19,803,854 17,509,176 10,532,520 13,409,947 

Vocational education 245,948 1,916,068 1,968,385 2,663,936 2,536,222 2,638,615 2,614,876 2,122,586 2,787,529 

Other instruction 4,540,843 2,249,595 4,812,385 2,914,149 2,256,673 2,688,049 2,974,774 3,398,580 3,581,333 10,043,758 

Support Services: 
Tuition 24,531,282 29,447,258 30,006,364 28,415,397 32,061,853 34,683,917 38,685,650 35,837,822 34,477,449 30,609,266 

Student & inst related services 47,193,228 45,713,785 54,490,409 58,065,429 50,425,193 54,125,845 55,163,892 50,889,647 47,276,594 49,132,237 
General administration 2,483,617 2,696,521 3,046,402 2,961,111 2,584,025 2,674,270 2,472,397 2,521,307 2,781,771 1,786,273 
School administrative services 5,891,145 6,540,487 7,187,006 7,627,799 7,351,470 7,634,570 7,452,658 7,895,492 6,498,466 7,247,564 

Central services 2,608,517 2,713,476 2,899,341 2,952,780 3,108,580 3,260,099 3,051,080 2,597,170 
Admin. information technology 945,326 966,697 1,173,886 1,172,887 1,303,734 2,110,555 1,633,257 2,346,022 
Plant operations and maintenance 19,323,372 22,750,584 25,487,316 28,359,131 26,716,980 27,134,960 26,181,029 23,735,155 19,673,906 19,884,116 
Pupil transportation 8,070,555 7,988,869 8,525,053 8,867,545 8,001,951 8,560,806 7,757,640 7,282,524 6,365,638 6,436,184 
Other Support Services 69,313 1,223 
Employee benefits 39,727,855 46,238,335 45,279,828 49,127,935 57,819,493 60,801,760 55,337,717 57,096,907 58,978,696 60,226,887 

Special Schools 4,580,814 398,817 1,749,911 4,264,009 1,836,727 1,926,409 277,754 187,528 86,765 
Charter Schools 16,474,061 15,305,474 12,808,803 14,338,432 15,691,107 17,388,920 27,541,252 32,417,802 33,318,478 23,361,258 
Capital outlay 13,878,483 38,763,094 54,425,260 42,960,965 29,762,020 39,808,776 28,610,077 16,441,346 2,083,407 2,246,355 
Total expenditures 251,983,344 291,425,500 328,187,401 332,907,822 318,301,185 340,218,877 334,719,795 316,925,498 289,747,368 285,912,003 
Excess (Deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures (716,549) 5,926,322 (1,686,615) (2,839,769) 5,861,010 (1,026,415) (11,072,898) 3,280,859 7,312,743 26,748,932 

Other Financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 21,119,932 22,913,622 26,467,142 26,036,010 12,365,124 4,503,288 3,368,647 2,997,107 2,800,632 
Transfers out {23,677,551} {26, 125, 726} {29,421,995} {29, 175,964} P5,704,083} {6,827,5122 p,525,3342 p,458,0482 {2,800,6322 
Total other financing sources (uses) {2,557,619l {3,212,104l {2,954,853l {3,139,954} {3,338,959l {2,324,224l {156,687} {460,94Q 

Net change in fund balances $ {716,549} 3,368,703 $ {4,898,719} $ {5,794,622l $ 2,721,056 $ (4,365,374l $ {13,397,122} 3,124,172 6,851,802 $ 26,748,932 

Debt service as a percentage of 
noncapital expenditures 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

Source: District records 

Note: Noncapital expenditures are total expenditures less capital outlay. 
Central Service and Administrative Information Technology account classifications were added beginning with year end June 30, 2005. 
Prior to June 30, 2005, Central Service and Administrative Information Technology were combined in Other Support Services as Business and Other Support Services. 
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Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30, 

2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 

Source: District records 

Reduction of 
IBNR 

Liability 

$ 564,637 
$ 

Trenton School District 
General Fund - Other Local Revenue by Source 

Reimbursements 

648,049 
232,106 
640,443 
129,558 
762,443 
463,812 
453,128 
589,538 
343,204 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

Unaudited 

Cancellation of 
Potential Tax 

Liability Donations Rentals 

$ 286,496 $ 807,503 

$ 55,156 
32,258 32,258 

16,063 
45,128 
24,278 

121,955 
49,617 

Prior Year 
Refunds 

$ 83,688 
635,606 
200,080 

29,124 
406,324 
222,172 
213,029 
431,349 
725,911 
709,149 

J-5 

Miscellaneous Annual Totals 

$ 648,325 
$ 819,339 3,196,993 

344,979 777,165 
255,476 980,199 
519,430 1,119,828 
377,516 1,378,194 
431,652 1,153,621 
482,152 1,390,907 
319,892 1,757,296 

1,063,522 2,165,492 
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Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
June 30, Vacant Land Residential 

2003 $ 22,904,010 $ 1,288,834,510 $ 

2004 21,746,010 1,287,297,910 
2005 21,986,110 1,295,070,360 
2006 19,536,760 1,305,752,610 

2007 18,350,710 1,314,322,040 
2008 18,073,280 1,319,790,070 
2009 19,115,080 1,322,952,320 
2010 18,592,390 1,326,000,120 
2011 18,112,390 1,334,734,770 
2012 17,546,890 1,339,504,920 

Source: Municipal Tax Assessor 

Commercial 

469,051,305 
487,432,105 
496,337,825 
525,071,725 
530,827,025 
530,895,060 
537,866,880 
532,937,420 
525,411,960 
523,470,660 

Trenton School District 
Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property 

Industrial 

$ 40,939,800 
41,365,900 
43,270,700 
44,432,200 
43,104,900 
43,337,200 
43,058,100 
43,492,400 
39,114,400 
37,949,100 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Unaudited 

Aeartment Total Assessed Value 

$ 41,977,800 $ 1,863,707,425 
42,522,900 1,880,364,825 
43,608,600 1,900,273,595 
44,433,100 1,939,226,395 
43,591,800 1,950,196,475 
43,744,200 1,955,839,810 
48,706,300 1,971,698,680 
50,344,100 1,971,366,430 
50,483,000 1,967,856,520 
51,914,400 1,970,385,970 

Note: Real property is required to be assessed at some percentage of true value (fair or market value) established by each county board of taxation. 

Reassessment occurs when the County Board of Taxation requests Treasury to order a reassessment. 

a Taxable Value of Machinery, Implements and Equipment of Telephone, Telegraph and Messenger System Companies. 

b Tax rates are per $100 

J-6 

Estimated Actual Total Direct 

Public Net (County Equalized) School Tax 

Utilities • Valuation Taxable Value Rate h 

$ 19,957,853 $ 1,883,665,278 $ 1,975,931,334 $ 1.140 

19,501,085 1,899,865,910 2,046,781,513 1.110 

18,717,352 1,918,990,947 2,110,712,200 1.100 

15,296,693 1,954,523,088 2,456,824,015 1.080 

13,589,166 1,963,785,641 2,962,790,672 1.080 

11,241,518 1,967,081,328 3,265,599,068 1.074 

12,666,783 1,983,865,463 3,342,189,250 1.064 

12,468,760 1,983,835,190 3,087,981,717 1.065 

12,439,095 1,980,295,615 3,095,628,125 1.066 

14,149,127 1,984,535,097 2,829,945,784 1.064 
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Trenton School District 
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(rate per $100 of assessed value) 

Unaudited 

Trenton School District Direct Rate Overlapping Rates 

(From J-6) Mercer 

Fiscal Year Total Direct County 

Ended School Tax City of (including 

June 30, Basic Rate a Rate Trenton Open Space) 

2003 $ 1.140 $ 1.140 $ 2.140 $ 0.680 

2004 1.110 1.110 2.300 0.610 

2005 1.100 1.100 2.340 0.620 

2006 1.080 1.080 2.380 0.640 

2007 1.080 1.080 2.400 0.710 

2008 1.074 1.074 2.534 0.775 

2009 1.064 1.064 2.816 0.810 

2010 1.065 1.065 3.627 0.786 

2011 1.066 1.066 3.735 0.784 

2012 1.064 1.064 3.643 0.781 

Source: Municipal Tax Collector 

J-7 

Total Direct 
and 

Overlapping 
Library Tax Rate 

$ $ 3.960 
4.020 
4.060 
4.100 
4.190 
4.383 
4.690 
5.478 

0.051 5.636 
0.046 5.534 

a The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the net valuation taxable. 
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State of New Jersey 

The Richard Hughes Justice Complex 

New Jersey Economic Development Authority 

State Street Square Urban Renewal 

33-50 State Street LLC 

Verizon 

Robert and Richards (office building) 

IS TAR 100 Riverview 

ENDOV Associates LLC 

Trois Holdings LLC 

DREI Holdings LLC 

Clinton Commons Associates 

ISTAR 200-300 Riverview 

Waters Edge 

140 Urban Renewal Assoc 

Uptown Limited 

Total 

Total Assessed Value (J-6) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Trenton School District 
Principal Property Taxpayers 

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 
Unaudited 

2012 

Taxable % of Total 

Assessed Rank District Net 

Value (Optional) Assessed Value 

932,948,334 47.01% 

102,069,300 5.14% 

89,586,000 4.51% 

25,770,600 1.30"10 

41,966,000 2.11% 

14,149,127 0.71% 

19,884,200 1.00% 

15,300,000 0.77% 

18,420,200 0.93% 

14,362,800 0.72% 

10,822,000 0.55% 

10,808,150 0.54% 

19,011,300 0.96% 

10,624,900 0.54% 

9,424,000 0.47% 

8,692,800 0.44% 

1,343,839,711 67.72% 

1,984,535,097 

$ 

Taxable 

Assessed 

Value 

23,055,100 

21,724,800 

29,276,776 

19,884,200 

16,976,000 

14,362,800 

21,065,800 

146,345,476 

1,883,665,278 

2003 

Rank 

(Optional) 

% of Total 

District Net 

Assessed Value 

1.22% 

1.15% 

1.55% 

1.06% 

0.90"10 

0.76% 

1.12% 

7.77% 

* Trenton is the Capital City for the State of New Jersey. Accordingly, a significant portion of its land and buildings, by virtue of its use by the 

State of New Jersey, is tax exempt. 

The City receives payments in lieu of taxes from the State of New Jersey. 

Source: Municipal Tax Assessor 

J-8 
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Fiscal Year 
Ended 

June 30, 

2003 

2004 

2005 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

Trenton School District 
Property Tax Levies and Collections 

School Taxes 
Levied for the 

Fiscal Year 

$ 21,115,662 
21,115,662 
21,115,662 
21,115,662 
21,115,662 
21,115,662 
21,115,662 
21,115,662 
21,115,662 
21,115,662 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Unaudited 

Collected within the Fiscal Year 
of the Levy a 

Percentage 

Amount of Levy 

$ 21,115,662 100.00% 
21,115,662 100.00% 
21,115,662 100.00% 
21,115,662 100.00% 
21,115,662 100.00% 
21,115,662 100.00% 

21,115,662 100.00% 
21,115,662 100.00% 
21,115,662 100.00% 
21,115,662 100.00% 

J-9 

Collections in Subsequent 
Years 

$ 

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F fonn) 

a School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a 
municipality is required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in the 
amount voted upon or certified prior to the end of the school year. 
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Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
June 30, 

2003 $ 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 

Trenton School District 
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Unaudited 

Governmental Activities 

General 
Obligation 

Bonds b Capital Leases Total District 

48,446,000 $ 569,358 $ 49,015,358 
47,859,000 391,462 48,250,462 
45,465,000 207,490 45,672,490 
47,549,000 47,549,000 
47,934,000 47,934,000 
45,688,556 45,688,556 
47,917,348 47,917,348 
50,661,392 50,661,392 
38,443,000 38,443,000 
38,205,000 38,205,000 

J-10 

Percentage of 
Personal 

Income a Per Capita a 

0.02% $ 9,745 
0.02 9,872 
0.02 10,168 
0.02 10,473 

0.03 15,933 
0.03 15,933 
0.03 16,157 
0.03 17,082 
0.03 17,236 
0.04 17,400 

Source: City of Trenton Finance Office 

Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 

a See J-14 for personal income and population data. These ratios are calculated using personal income and 
population for the prior calendar year. 

b Type I Net Bonded Debt. See footnote 5 for more information. This debt is included in the financial statements 
of the City of Trenton. 
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Fiscal Year 
Ended 

June 30, 

2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 

Trenton School District 
Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Unaudited 

General Bonded Debt Outstanding 

Net General Percentage of 
Actual Taxable General 

Obligation Bonds 
Bonded Debt 
Outstanding Value a of Property 

$ 48,446,000 $ 48,446,000 2.57% 

47,859,000 47,859,000 2.52 

45,465,000 45,465,000 2.37 

47,549,000 47,549,000 2.05 

47,934,000 47,934,000 2.05 

45,688,556 45,688,556 2.32 

47,917,348 47,917,348 2.43 

50,661,392 50,661,392 2.57 

38,443,000 38,443,000 1.94 

38,205,000 38,205,000 1.93 

1-11 

Per Capita b 

$ 9,745 
9,872 

10,168 
10,473 
15,933 
15,933 
16,157 
17,082 
17,236 
17,400 

Notes: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the basic financial statements. 
a See Exhibit J-6 for property tax data. 
b Population data can be found in Exhibit J-14 estimated upon an annual 1.3% growth rate. 
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Trenton School District 
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 

As of June 30, 2012 
Unaudited 

Estimated 

J-12 

Percentage Estimated Share of 

Governmental Unit Debt Outstanding Applicable a Overlapping Debt 

Debt repaid with property taxes 
City of Trenton 

Other debt 
City of Trenton 
County of Mercer 
Mercer County Improvement Authority 

Subtotal, overlapping debt 

Trenton District Direct Debt 

Total direct and overlapping debt 

Sources: City of Trenton Finance Office 

$ 38,205,000 100% 

157,728,905 100% 

* 6.252% 

* 

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the District. 

$ 38,205,000 

157,728,905 

195,933,905 

$ 195,933,905 

This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and 
businesses of The City of Trenton. This process recognizes that, when considering the District's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the 
entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However this does not imply that 
every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping payment. 

a For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values. 

Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another governmental unit's taxable value that is within the 

district's boundaries and dividing it by each unit's total taxable value. 

* Information not available 
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Trenton School District 
Legal Debt Margin Information 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Unaudited 

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2012 

The debt applicable to the limit may be offset only by amounts that the applicable law expressly allows. 

Debt limit 

Total net debt applicable to limit 

Legal debt margin 

Total net debt applicable to the limit 
as a percentage of debt limit 

Average equalized valuation of taxable property 

Debt limit (4 % of average equalization value) 
Type I net bonded school debt 

Legal debt margin 

2003 2004 2005 

73,342,962 74,635,393 76,782,827 

48,446,000 47,859,000 45,465,000 

24,896,962 26,776,393 31,317,827 

66.1% 64.1% 59.2% 

Source: Abstract of ratables and District Records CAFR Schedule J-6. 

Equalized valuation basis 
2012 $ 2,829,945,784 
2011 3,095,628,125 
2010 3,087,981,717 

[A) ... $======9!:O,O ... J3'=!i,5 ... 5::i::5,=62;;;;6= 

2006 

[M) 

[B) 
[C] 

[B-C] 

83,023,720 

47,549,000 

35,474,720 

57.3% 

$ 

3,004,518,542 

120,180,741 
38,205,000 
81,975,741 

2007 

95,156,266 

47,934,000 

47,222,266 

50.4% 

a Limit set by NJSA 18A:24-19 for a K through 12 district; other % limits would be applicable for other district types. 
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2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

110,422,065 127,607,720 129,276,934 120,793,376 120,180,741 

45,688,556 47,917,348 50,661,392 38,443,000 38,205,000 

64,733,509 $ 79,690,372 78,615,542 82,350,376 81,975,741 

41.4% 37.6% 39.2% 31.8% 31.8% 
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Year 

2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 

Source: 

Trenton School District 
Demographic and Economic Statistics 

Population a 

84,808 
84,759 
83,918 
83,154 
82,804 
82,804 
82,804 
83,242 
84,913 
84,913 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Unaudited 

Personal Income b 

N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

Per Capita Personal 

Income c 

$ 9,745 
9,872 

10,168 
10,473 
15,933 
15,933 
16,157 
17,082 
17,236 
17,400 

a Population information provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development 
b Personal income data was not available. 

1-14 

Unemployment 
Rated 

10.20% 
8.30 
9.00 
9.10 
7.90 
9.90 

12.10 
9.60 

13.10 
12.80 

C Per capita personal income by municipality estimated based upon the 2010 Census published by the 
US Bureau of Economic Analysis. 

dUnemployment data provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development 

159 



Employer 

State of New Jersey 
Capital Health Systems 
(formerly Helene Fuld & Mercer Medical) 

Trenton School System 
City of Trenton 
County of Mercer 
St. Francis Medical Center 
The Hibbert Company 
Hutchinson Industries ( 6 locations) 
Mercer Arc Unit 
Water's Edge Convalescent Center 
Mercer Street Friend Center 
Marshall Industrial Technologies 
Trentonian 
Wachovia Bank (Regional Center) 
Millhouse Residential & Health Care 
Trenton Marriott at Layafette Yard 

Source: City of Trenton 

Employees 

20,000 

1,844 

2,400 

1,091 

1,627 

1,250 

480 

330 

221 

219 

203 

162 

140 

10 

136 
116 

30,229 

Trenton School District 
Principal Employers 

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 
Unaudited 

2012 

Percentage of 
Total 

Employment 

66.2% 

0.0% 

6.1% 

7.9% 

3.6% 

5.4% 

4.1% 

1.6% 

1.1% 

0.7% 

0.7% 

0.7% 

0.5% 

0.5% 

0.0% 

0.4% 

0.4% 

100% 

Employer 

State of New Jersey 
Trenton School System 
City of Trenton 
County of Mercer 
Helene Fuld Center 
St Francis Medical Center 
Mercer Medical Center 
The Trenton Times 
Federal Government 

Carter Wallace 

J-15 

2003 

Percentage of 
Total 

Employees Employment 

21,076 64.9% 

1,945 6.0% 

1,700 5.2% 

1,696 5.2% 

1,600 4.9% 

1,450 4.5% 

1,300 4.0% 

721 2.2% 

526 1.6% 

438 1.3% 

32,452 100% 
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Trenton School District 
Full-time Equivalent District Employees by FunctionlProgram 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Unaudited 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

FunctionlProgram 
Instruction: 

Regular 1,168 1,097 1,069 1,093 1,075 1,069 1,114 1,114 989 727 

Special education 94 92 79 74 102 46 90 90 51 260 

Other special education 87 

Other instruction 21 
NonpubJic school programs 2 14 21 23 12 

Support Services: 
Student & instruction related services 300 281 274 306 282 370 187 187 210 267 
General adminsitrative services 13 13 32 13 28 12 9 9 4 5 
School administrative services 95 90 94 101 102 97 79 79 94 89 
Business adminsitrative services 100 84 74 81 63 41 51 51 52 47 
Plant operations and maintenance 324 266 293 316 286 322 317 317 275 134 
Pupil transportation 8 9 14 14 26 25 20 20 23 

Special Schools 148 169 126 152 20 212 
Total 2,252 2,115 2,076 2,173 1,996 2,194 1,867 1,867 1,698 1,638 

Source: District Budget Records 
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Operating Cost Per 
Fiscal Year Enrollment Expenditures a Pupil 

2003 13,389 $ 238,472,341 $ 17,811 

2004 13,361 255,420,228 19,117 

2005 12,940 273,028,642 21,100 

2006 12,510 293,051,677 23,425 

2007 12,758 288,696,071 22,629 

2008 13,599 283,368,752 20,837 

2009 13,302 306,109,718 23,012 

2010 13,770 300,484,152 21,822 

2011 13,356 287,663,961 21,538 

2012 13,727 283,665,648 20,665 

Sources: District records, ASSA and Schedule J-12, J-14 

Note: Enrollment based on annual October district count. 

Percentage 
Change 

29.52% 

7.33 

10.37 

11.02 

-3.40 

-8.60 

10.44 

-5.17 

-1.30 

-4.1 7 

Trenton School District 
Operating Statistics 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Unaudited 

Pupilffeacher Ratio 

Teaching Middle 
Staffb Elementary School 

1,317 1:23 1:23 

1,250 1:22 1:23 

1,283 1:22 1:23 

1,201 1:22 1:23 

1,178 1:23 1:23 

1,115 1:23 1:23 

1,204 1:23 1:23 

1,204 1:23 1:23 

1,162 1:23 1:23 

1,095 1:23 1:23 

a Operating expenditures equal total expenditures less debt service and capital outlay; Schedule J-4. 
b Teaching staff includes only full-time equivalents of certificated staff. 

High 
School 

1:25 

1:25 

1:25 

1:25 

1:25 

1:25 

1:25 

1:25 

1:25 

1:25 

c Average daily enrollment and average daily attendance are obtained from the School Register Summary (SRS). 
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Average Average % Change 
Daily Daily in Average Student 

Enrollment Attendance Daily Attendance 
(ADE) C (ADA) C Enrollment Percentage 

13,475 12,177 7.23% 90.40% 

13,389 12,158 -0.64% 90.80% 

12,940 11,518 -3.35% 89.00% 

12,689 11,485 -1.94% 90.50% 

11,280 10,196 -11.10% 90.40% 

11,636 10,671 4.66% 91.70% 

11,539 10,784 -0.83% 93.46% 

11,662 9,904 5.00% 90.35% 

10,987 9,585 -5.79% 88.10% 

11,353 10,234 3.33% 90.14% 
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( continued) 

Trenton School District 
School Building Information 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Unaudited 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

District Buildin2 - Elementary 
Cadwalader (1961) 

Square Feet 44,286 44,286 44,286 44,286 44,286 44,286 44,286 44,286 44,286 44,286 

Capacity (students) 346 346 346 346 346 346 346 346 346 346 

Enrollment 303 298 344 306 247 219 219 248 247 325 

Columbus (1892) 
Square Feet 52,000 52,000 52,000 52,000 74,000 74,000 74,000 74,000 74,000 74,000 

Capacity (students) 308 308 308 308 300 300 300 308 308 308 

Enrollment 273 228 228 260 334 360 

Franklin (1913) 
Square Feet 49,609 49,609 49,609 49,609 49,609 49,609 49,609 49,609 49,609 49,609 

Capacity (students) 506 506 506 506 506 506 506 405 405 405 

Enrollment 470 456 400 403 447 452 452 432 449 434 

Grant (1933) 
Square Feet 85,068 85,068 85,058 85,058 85,058 85,058 85,058 85,058 85,058 85,058 

Capacity (students) 678 678 678 678 678 678 678 550 550 550 

Enrollment 469 466 472 483 502 561 561 551 581 535 

Gregory (1985) 
Square Feet 51,108 51,108 71,108 88,376 88,376 88,376 88,376 85,058 85,058 85,058 

Capacity (students) 450 450 492 492 492 492 492 460 460 460 

Enrollment 441 434 492 493 484 513 513 453 462 515 

Harrison (1903) 
Square Feet 26,104 26,104 26,104 26,104 26,104 26,104 26,104 26,104 
Capacity (students) 166 166 166 166 166 166 166 184 

Enrollment 198 196 161 159 172 168 168 176 
HedgepethIWilliams (1939) 

Square Feet 169,724 169,724 169,724 169,724 169,724 169,724 169,724 169,724 169,724 169,724 

Capacity (students) 960 960 960 960 960 960 960 925 925 925 

Enrollment 669 636 949 890 818 772 772 810 831 875 

P.J. Hill (1977) 
Square Feet 100,498 100,498 100,498 105,566 105,566 105,566 105,566 105,566 105,566 105,566 
Capacity (students) 450 450 650 650 650 650 650 730 730 730 
Enrollment 485 474 619 601 592 563 563 568 604 646 
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( continued) 

Trenton School District 
School Building Information 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Unaudited 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

District BuildinJ: - Elementary 
Jefferson (1973) 

Square Feet 62,443 62,443 62,443 62,443 63,179 63,179 63,179 63,197 63,197 
Capacity (students) 340 340 340 340 500 500 500 400 400 
Enrollment 428 423 305 258 255 249 166 332 

Kilmer (1973) 
Square Feet 63,179 63,179 63,179 63,179 119,000 119,000 119,000 119,882 119,882 119,882 
Capacity (students) 500 500 500 500 800 800 800 730 800 800 
Enrollment 417 409 410 403 656 582 434 556 592 673 

Monument (1953) 
Square Feet 90,905 90,905 90,905 90,905 90,905 90,905 90,905 90,905 90,905 90,905 
Capacity (students) 480 480 480 480 480 480 480 450 450 450 
Enrollment 381 394 398 395 358 358 358 407 432 446 

Mott (1984) 
Square Feet 54,124 54,124 77,784 77,784 77,784 77,784 77,784 77,653 77,653 77,653 
Capacity (students) 350 350 406 406 406 406 406 406 406 406 
Enrollment 381 402 402 423 452 479 533 467 416 392 

Munoz-Rivera (1923) 
Square Feet 114,703 114,703 114,703 114,703 114,703 114,703 114,703 114,703 114,703 
Capacity (students) 460 460 460 460 460 460 460 523 523 
Enrollment 449 459 473 443 519 520 522 516 64 

Parker (1940) 
Square Feet 58,453 58,453 58,453 58,453 58,453 58,453 58,453 62,500 62,500 62,500 
Capacity (students) 350 350 350 350 350 350 350 505 505 505 
Enrollment 236 285 396 618 498 513 517 

Robbins (1907) 
Square Feet 51,709 51,709 51,709 51,709 51,709 51,709 51,709 51,709 51,709 51,709 
Capacity (students) 420 420 420 420 420 420 420 226 226 226 
Enrollment 407 411 402 390 423 439 471 481 433 483 

Robeson (1939) 
Square Feet 
Capacity (students) 
Enrollment 424 445 

Stokes (1954) 
Square Feet 48,268 48,268 48,268 48,268 48,268 48,268 48,268 48,268 48,268 48,268 
Capacity (students) 416 416 416 416 416 416 416 416 416 416 
Enrollment 422 414 395 383 336 293 207 290 183 204 
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( continued) 

Trenton School District 
School Building Information 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Unaudited 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

District Buildin!:; - Elementary 
Washington (1938) 

Square Feet 41,895 41,895 41,895 41,895 41,895 41,895 41,895 41,865 41,865 41,865 

Capacity (students) 360 360 360 360 360 360 360 349 349 349 

Enrollment 371 367 350 355 335 352 352 364 399 354 

Wilson (1960) 
Square Feet 70,976 70,976 70,976 70,976 70,976 70,976 70,976 70,976 70,976 70,976 

Capacity (students) 502 502 502 502 502 502 502 475 475 475 

Enrollment 384 401 400 393 360 330 330 421 455 418 

Middle School 
Grace A. Dunn (1925) 

Square Feet 198,820 198,820 198,820 161,599 161,599 161,599 161,599 161,599 161,599 161,599 

Capacity (students) 800 800 800 800 800 800 800 669 669 669 

Enrollment 747 757 596 624 723 590 590 602 607 853 
Holland (1926) 

Square Feet 124,945 
Capacity (students) 640 
Enrollment 297 

Martin Luther King (1961) 
Square Feet 126,466 126,466 126,466 126,466 126,466 118,884 118,884 118,884 
Capacity (students) 578 640 578 578 730 730 730 
Enrollment 320 350 284 266 682 683 

Hi!:;h School 
Trenton Central High (1928) 

Square Feet 376,836 376,836 376,836 376,836 376,836 376,836 376,836 376,836 376,836 376,836 
Capacity (students) 2,050 2,050 2,050 2,050 2,050 2,050 2,050 2,300 2,300 2,300 
Enrollment 2,819 2,323 1,723 1,570 1,647 1,993 1,993 1,642 1,715 1,934 

Trenton Central High - West (1926) 
Square Feet 124,945 124,945 124,945 124,945 124,945 124,945 124,945 124,945 124,945 
Capacity (students) 640 640 640 640 640 640 630 630 630 
Enrollment 456 577 522 577 547 547 600 537 631 

Daylightffwilight High School (2008) 
Square Feet 101,000 101,000 101,000 
Capacity (students) 500 500 500 
Enrollment 555 573 507 
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2003 
Leased School Facilities - Elementary 
Columbus Annex (St. Hedwigs (1904) 

Square Feet 
Capacity (students) 
Enrollment 

Parker (Sacred Heart (1921) 
Square Feet 
Capacity (students) 
Enrollment 

Leased School Facilities - Elementary 
Parker Annex (St. Mary's (1921) 

Square Feet 
Capacity (students) 
Enrollment 

Parker Annex II (Ho ly Cross (1 919)) 
Square Feet 
Capacity (students) 
Enrollment 

Robbins Annex (St. Joachim (1965)) 
Square Feet 
Capacity (students) 
Enrollment 

Robbins Annex (Immaculate Conception (1925) 
Square Feet 
Capacity (students) 
Enrollment 

Jefferson Annex (Holy Angels) 
Square Feet 
Capacity (students) 
Enrollment 

61,532 
245 
233 

28,686 
260 
217 

31,980 
220 
189 

18,865 
175 
161 

2004 

61,532 
245 
228 

28,686 
260 
248 

31,980 
220 
205 

18,865 
175 
190 

Trenton School District 
School Building Information 

2005 

61,532 
245 
233 

28,686 
260 
222 

31,980 
220 
202 

41,531 
220 
202 

34,164 
280 
215 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Unaudited 

2006 

61,532 
245 
233 

28,686 
260 
210 

31,980 
220 
210 

41,531 
220 
202 

34,164 
280 
274 

67,317 
315 
301 

2007 

28,686 
260 
210 

31,980 
220 
170 

41,531 
220 
200 

34,164 
280 
283 

2008 

41,531 
220 
221 

34,164 
280 
360 

2009 

41,531 
220 
221 

34,164 
280 
360 

2010 2011 

J-18 
p.4 

( continued) 

2012 
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Trenton School District 
School Building Information 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Unaudited 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 
Leased School Facilities - Hi2;h Schools 
Daylightffwilight High 

(Blessed Sacrement (1929» 
Square Feet 46,824 46,824 46,824 46,824 46,824 

Capacity (students - Three (3) Sessions) 660 660 660 660 660 
Enrollment 1,071 1,019 998 900 896 

Daylightffwilight High-South Ward 
(St. Stanislaus (1928» 
Square Feet 16,646 16,646 16,646 16,646 
Capacity (students - Three (3) Sessions) 190 190 190 190 
Enrollment 500 380 358 200 

TCHS - Medical Arts (Crescent Temple) 
Square Feet 85,200 85,200 85,200 
Capacity (students) 650 650 650 
Enrollment 336 320 315 

Other 
Administration Building 

Square Feet 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 
Department of Special Services 

Square Feet 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 
Truancy Center 

Square Feet 
Maintenance Complex Bldg. A 

Square Feet 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 
Maintenance Complex Bldg. B 

Square Feet 30,000 30,000 
Commissary/Garage 

Square Feet 54,414 54,414 54,414 54,414 54,414 
Junior Five Warehouse 

Square Feet 
Lincoln Ave Warehouse 

Square Feet 
Zeigler Building Warehouse 

Square Feet 

Number of Schools at June 30, 2012 
Elementary = 17 
Middle School = 2 
High School = 3 
Other = 8 

Source: District records 
Note: Year of original construction is shown in parentheses. Increases in square footage and capacity are the result of 

additions. Enrollment is based on the annual October district count. 

J-18 
p.5 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

46,824 46,824 
660 660 
772 772 

16,646 16,646 
190 190 
200 200 

85,200 85,200 
650 650 
315 315 

120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 

8,000 8,000 

22,500 22,500 22,500 

30,000 30,000 30,000 18,270 18,270 

30,000 30,000 30,000 20,474 20,474 

54,414 54,414 54,414 54,414 54,414 

2,975 2,975 

25,042 25,042 

55,000 55,000 
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Trenton School District 
General Fund 

Schedule of Required Maintenance for School Facilities 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Unaudited 

Undistributed Expenditures - Required Maintenance for School Facilities 
11-000-261-XXX 

Years ended June 30, 

School Facilities 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 

Trenton Central High 980,363 427,264 $ 146,374 83,861 $ 102,357 $ 110,652 $ 201,955 $ 226,413 $ 144,135 $ 136,188 

Daylightffwilight High 197,330 86,001 29,463 

Martin 1. King Middle 232,272 101,229 34,679 5,591 6,824 6,291 33,327 109,990 77,995 61,430 

HedgepethlWilIiams 331,601 144,519 49,510 33,546 40,943 41,786 18,668 43,285 65,914 36,460 

Arthur Holland Middle 72,682 88,709 95,842 56,725 61,703 

Grace A. Dunn Middle 315,727 137,601 47,140 55,909 68,238 68,832 64,513 52,487 67,687 91,100 

Cadwalader 86,525 37,709 12,919 16,773 20,471 19,154 17,615 7,998 24,541 12,138 

Columbus 144,579 63,011 21,586 11,182 13,648 14,155 35,549 33,118 

Franklin 96,924 42,242 14,471 16,773 20,471 24,486 13,062 11,451 14,885 22,870 

Grant 166,184 72,426 24,812 22,364 27,295 26,666 30,694 40,628 25,115 24,117 

Gregory 166,184 72,426 24,812 22,364 27,295 26,578 25,668 22,815 39,693 20,333 

Harrison 7,615 5,591 6,824 7,619 3,280 5,698 8,805 3,590 

Jefferson 123,472 18,435 22,364 27,295 25,929 22,178 28,078 16,317 

Joyce Kilmer 234,221 102,079 34,971 5,591 6,824 9,833 28,421 12,142 26,073 13,550 

Luis Munoz-Rivera Elementary 224,103 33,460 61,500 75,062 75,459 24,390 58,574 46,206 51,301 

Monument 177,607 n,405 26,518 16,n3 20,471 20,869 96,403 32,572 46,356 14,874 

Mott 151,716 66,121 22,652 11,182 13,648 14,707 16,247 14,310 29,399 15,840 

P.J.Hill 206,251 89,889 30,794 39,136 47,767 48,135 32,212 35,486 28,860 14,497 

Parker 122,110 53,218 18,232 69,480 12,460 

Paul Robeson Elementary 860 1,442 5,690 

Robbins 101,027 44,030 15,084 ll,IB2 13,648 15,556 54,701 5,337 18,703 17,294 

Stokes 94,304 41,100 14,080 16,m 20,471 22,143 20,093 25,719 21,937 19,607 

Washington 81,794 35,648 12,212 11,182 13,648 17,101 17,047 23,749 24,313 21,On 

Wilson 138,672 60,435 20,704 ~ 20,471 22,207 22,008 14,616 ~ 12,198 

Total School Facilities 4,372,966 1,754,353 559,092 682,379 714,000 720,304 766,308 922,205 717,752 979,592 

Grand Total $ 4,372,966 $1,754,353 $ 559,092 $ 682,379 $ 714,000 $ 720,304 $ 766,308 $ 922,205 $ 717,752 $ 979,592 

Source: District records of required maintenance 
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Trenton School District 
Insurance Schedule 

June 30, 2012 
Unaudited 

New Jersey School Boards Association Insurance 
Group (NJSBAIG) 

School Package Policy: 
Property 
Blanket Building and Contents 
Blanket Extra Expense 
Blanket Valuable Papers and Records 
Demolition and Increased Cost of Construction 
Loss of Rent 
Loss of Business Income/Tuition 
Builders Risk 
Fire Department Service Charge 
Arson Reward 
Pollution Cleanup and Removal 
Fine Arts 
Earthquake 
Flood 
Terrorism 
Accounts Receivable 

EDP 
Blanket Hardware/Software 
Flood 

Equipment Breakdown 
Property Damage 

Crime 
Public Employee Dishonesty 
Theft - Loss of Money & Securities On or Off Premises 
Theft - Money Orders & Counterfeit Paper Currency 
Forgery or Aleration 
Computer Fraud 
Board SecretarylBusiness Administrator 
Board Treasurer 

Comprehensive General Liability 
Bodily Injury and Property Damage 
Bodily Injury from Products and Completed Operations 
Sexual Abuse 
Personal Injury and Advertising Injury 
Employee Benefits and Premises Medical Payments 

School Board Legal Liability: 
School Leaders Errors and Omissions Policy 

Workers Compensation and Employer's Liability 
Agreement: 

Bodily Injury by Accident 

Bodily Injury by Diseases 

$ 

Coverage 

5,000,000,000 
50,000,000 
10,000,000 
10,000,000 

Not Covered 
Not Covered 
Not Covered 

10,000 
10,000 

250,000 
Not Covered 

50,000,000 
10,000,000 

1,000,000 
250,000 

5,500,000 
1,000,000 

100,000,000 

250,000 

100,000 

75,000 

250,000 

100,000 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

16,000,000 

16,000,000 

16,000,000 

16,000,000 

16,000,000 

16,000,000 

2,000,000 

2,000,000 

$ 

J-20 

Deductible 

5,000 
5,000 
5,000 

510,000 

1,000 
510,000 

5,000 

1,000 

1,000 

1,000 

1,000 

1,000 

1,000 

1,000 

1,000 

5,000 
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T~T 
WISS 
ACCOUNTANTS 
CONSU LTANTS 

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over 
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters 
Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed 

In Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

Honorable President and 
Members of the Board of Education 

Trenton School District 
County of Mercer, New Jersey 

K-l 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Trenton School District in the County of 
Mercer, State of New Jersey (the "District") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which 
collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated 
November 30,2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department 
of Education, State of New Jersey; and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptro ller General of the United States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District's internal control 
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our 
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the District's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government A uditing Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of 
School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey_ 

We noted certain matters that we reported to the management of the District in a separate Auditors' 
Management Report on Administrative Findings dated November 30,2012. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the District's management and Board of 
Education members, others within the entity, the New Jersey State Department of Education and federal 
and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 

November 30,2012 
Iselin, New Jersey 

\J:~:lG~:-
Licensed Public School Accountant 

No. 2305 

!JI~ cr~AO 
WISS & COMPANY, LLP 
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Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance with Requirements 

That Could Have a Direct and Material Effect on Each Major Program and on 
Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB 

Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04 

Honorable President and 
Members of the Board of Education 

Trenton School District 
County of Mercer, New Jersey 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of the Trenton School District in the County of Mercer, State of New 
Jersey (the "District") with the types of compliance requirements described in the U. S. Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-I33 Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey State 
Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement, that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2012. The District's major federal and state 
programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs . Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to each of its major federal and state programs is the responsibility of the District's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the District 's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements as prescribed 
by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey; OMB Circular A-I33; 
and New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants 
and State Aid. Those standards, OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04 require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal and state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the District's compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred 
to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state programs for 
the year ended June 30, 2012. 
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Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal and 
state programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District's internal control over 
compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal or state 
program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance 
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and 
New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
District's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or 
state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, 
as defined above. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the District's management and Board of 
Education members, others within the entity, the New Jersey State Department of Education, and federal 
and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 

November 30,2012 
Iselin, New Jersey 

David J. Gannon 
Licensed Public School Accountant 

No. 2305 

W~~~dO 
WISS & COMPANY, LLP 
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p.1 
(continued) 

Trentnn School Di"tricl 

Schedul. of Expendilu .... ofF.dernl Award. 

Y.or onded luno lO, 2012 

Prop-1m Repayment 

Federal or Oalam:e Canryover of Prior .June lU, lOll 

CFDA Grant Award .tJW1c \V.lbyer Cash Budgetary AdJuslmenlll' YUrI' (Accounbl Deferred Duclu 
Federlll CranforJPIIK,,-ThrouBh CrantorlProsnm Title Numher Period Amount JO,2011 Amount Recelvw Expendlhlrr. Caneelled B"l.ncn Reech'.hle) I«vrnue Grantor 

U.s. Deparhnent of nellilit and Human Servlcn . PII .. tu~d -
Through State DIL"parhnent of Education 

Gencml Fund: 
ImpnclAid 84.041 711111·6130/12 5,157 5.1S7 $ (5,157) 
Medil:ol Alillistuncc Prugtwn 93.778 7/1111·6130/12 357,165 181,814 (357,165) (175,351) 
Medical Aluli~tance Program 93.778 7/1/10-6/30/11 376,029 $ (131,405) 131,405 

Total U.S. Departmenl of HClllth and Humon Scrvico~· PO,5Cd· TIuough 
Stole Department oC Education 113 1,4051 318,376 j362,322! 1l7S,351! 

U.S. Deplrhnent of Educatton-P ••• ed-Tbruuch State 
Dt'partment or Education 
Education Job Funds 84.410 711/11-6130112 7,789,683 7,789,683 (7,789,683) 

Totnl U.S. Department of EducouOh-PQsscd-Thruush Stnte 
Depurunent of Education 7,789,683 17,789,6831 

Tolul General Funds !l31,405! 8,108,059 18,152,0051 1175,351) 

U.S. Department of Educatlon-Pa •• ed-ThroQgh Statt!' 
Deparhnent of Education 

Special Rovenue Fund: 
ARRA • Title I 2009·20 I 0, Conyo.er 84.389 9/1/11·6130/12 5,000,807 160,695 (618,430) (457,735) 
ARRA • Title I 2009·2010, Conyo •• r 84.389 9/1/10·8131/11 5,000,807 (615,470) 615,470 
Titl.12011·2012 84.0 lOA 9/1111·8131112 6,069,873 3,894,859 (4,024,921) $ 42,430 (87,632) 
Title 12010·2011 Conyo.er 84.010A 9/111()'8I3 111 I 6,068,990 13766,9581 4,041,248 1274,2901 

TitlclSublotol 14,3824281 8,712,272 14.917,6411 42,430 1545.3671 

ARRA· Tide 12009·2010, SIA. Conyo.er 84.389 9/1/11-6130112 280,378 16,836 (28,718) (11,882) 
ARRA· Tide 12009·2010, SIA. Conyn.er '84.389 911/1()'8/31111 280,378 (36,831) 36,831 
Tid. 12010·2011, SIA Corryo.er 84.0IOA 911111·8131/12 583,118 153,272 (278,190) 1,033 (123,885) 
Title 12010·2011, SIA 84.010A 9/1110·8131/11 583,118 1309,8031 371,682 161 ,879! 

Titlel·SIASubtotnl 1346,6341 578,621 1368,7871 1,033 1135,767) 

ARM - Schnollmpmvcmcnl Grant 84.388 9/1/10·8131111 1,596,388 1220,3951 275,797 (15,914) 46,825 86,313 
ARRA - School Improvement Gmnt Subtotal 12203951 275,797 115,9141 46,825 8(.,313 

Reading Pinll, Title lB. Carryover 84.357 9/1110·8131111 529,957 116,764 (116,764) 
RcadiligFiOlt, Tille lB 84.357 9/1/09·8/31/10 529,957 14,476 (14,416) 
Reading First. Titlo IB, Carryover 84.357 9/1/09·8131110 1,135,589 60119 16O,119! 

Reading First. Title IB Sub(otal 191,359 1191,3591 

ARRA· IDEA Busi. 2009·2010, Conyovcr 84.391 911/10·8131111 3,456,373 (1,090,528) 1,092,907 (2,379) 10,947 10,947 
IDEA n.,ic 2011·2012 84.027A 9/1111·8131112 3,572,549 (3,046,051) (3,046,051) 
IDEA Bu.,i. 20 I 0·20 II Corryo.er 84.027A 9/1111·8131112 3,558,519 (1,102,008) 1,258,309 (371,139) 38,175 (176,463) 
ARRA • IDEA Preschool 2009·20 I 0, Conyn.er 84.392 9/1/10·8/31/11 124,141 (77,942) 120,046 (43,540) (1,436) 
IDEA Preschool 2011·2012 84.l73A 9/1/11·8131112 80,671 (26,790) (26.790) 
IDEA PrellChool 20 I 0·20 II Canyo.er 84.I73A 9/1110·8131111 82,482 (25,050) 20,114 2,210 (2,726) 
IDEA Preschool 2009·2010, Carryover 84.173A 9/1110·8/31111 78,650 !9111 1911 ) 

IDEA Ou'ter Sublotal 1~295,5281 2.491,376 13.490,8101 51532 p,254.3771 10.947 

Titl.II·A. 2011·2012 84.367 9/1/11·8131112 1,209,465 570,645 (109,844) 4(.0,801 
Titl. II·A, 20 I 0·20 II 84.367 9/1/1()'8/31/11 1,341,148 (261,797) 642,207 (380,410) 
Title II·A. 2009·2010, Conyo.er 84.367 9/1110·8131111 1,320,169 18,907 (18,907) 
Tille II·A. 2008·2009, Corryo •• r 84.367 9/1/08·8131111 1,266,189 51.218 151,2181 

TiO.n·ASublotal 12617971 1.282,977 1560,3191 460,801 

Titlen·D, 2009·2010, Conyo.er 84.318 911/10·8131112 14,636 12,851 880 13,731 
Tide n·D Subtotal 12,851 880 13,731 

Till. Ill, 2011·2012 84.365 911/11·81311l2 344,136 (11,152) (11,152) 
Titlolll, 2010·2011, Cnrryo.er 84.365 9/1/10·8/31/11 396,555 (270,554) 356,524 (125,784) 747 (39,067) 
Title Ill, 2009·2010, Conyo.er 84.365 9/1/10·8131111 284,867 (18,961) (18,961) 
Title Illlmmigrnn~ 20 1()'20 I I 84.365 9/111()'8/31112 146,547 182,115) 85,678 F70! 2.799 

TidemOu,terSublotal p52,6691 442,202 (162,667) 753 175, 1801 2.799 

Title V, 2007·2008 Conyo.er 84.298 9/1/07·8131/09 32,668 POOl 11001 
Tide V Subtotal 

11001 11001 

Title IV, 2009·2010, Conyover 84.186A 9/1/09·8/31112 86,255 41,683 41,683 
TillelVSublotal 41683 41,683 
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Trenton S"hool District 

Schedule of Expenditure. of Fede .. l Award. 

Year ended JunelO, 1012 

Program Repayment 

Federal or O.lance Carryonr nrrrior June 3U, 2011 

CFDA Grant Award at June 'V.lkonr Cash Bud~ot.1')' AdJWlhnentsi Yea..-t (Accounts Oderred Our to 

FedcrIIl Guntor/PIlIlS-ll1rouG!! GrantorlProG,ram TItle Number Period Amount 30 2011 Amount Receind Expenditures Cancelled n.lancrs Rrcrlvable) Rrvrnur Grantor 

U.s. Dcp.rtnumt or Education-Palled-Through Statr 
Department of Education (continued) 

Speciol Revenue Fund (continued); 
McKinney Homele .. 2011·2012 84.196A 911111·8131112 225,595 26,251 S (166.398) (140.141) 

McKinney Homclcu 2010-2011 84.196A 911110·8131111 348,000 $ (194,861) 165.481 (3.431) S 32.811 
McKinney HomclcSlC 2009-2010 84.l96A 911109·8131/10 101,422 (32,041) 32,047 
ARRA McKinney Homeless 2009-2010 84.381 911109·8131110 141.163 962 (962) 
McKinney Homeless 2008·2009 84.196A 911108·8131109 110.000 48.184 !48.784 l 

McKinney Homclc.!IS Subtotal !I".162l 223,119 !169,829) 32.811 !49146l !140.141l 

Perkinli Vocational Education 2011 .. 2012 84.048 911111·6130/12 212.623 3,101 (171.M8) 22,690 (145.857) 
Perkinlll Vocational EtJucation 2010~2011 84.048 911110·6130111 222,286 (189,088) 189,088 
Perkins Vocational Education 2009~20tO 84.048 9/1109·6130110 132.340 11.865 !l7,865l 

Perkins Vueational Education Subtotal !111.223l 192.189 !I'I •M81 22.690 !I
'
.865l !145.857l 

Walt Whitman Hililorical Literacy Fellowship 84.215X 711108·6130113 1,624,733 !1I6.6611 340.607 1361,252l 928 l1J6.378l 
Walt Whitman Historical Literacy FelJowship Subtotal !116.6611 340.601 1361.252l 928 !136.318) 

AceCll." Collaboration Equity, Carryover 84.318 811106·7131109 85.160 23,298 !23.298) 
Ac.:,"clIIs Collaboration Equity Subtotal 23.298 !23,298) 

21$1 Cenlury Community Learning Centers 84.281C 911108-8131110 500,000 68.482 !68,482l 
21st Century Community Learning Ccntery Subtot.a.1 68,482 !68.482l 

StudcnL'C Using Technology to Achieve Reading-Writing, Carryover 84.318 911108·8131110 154,260 13.958 l13.958l 
Students Using Technology to Aehjeve Reading-Writing Subtotal 13.958 !13,958l 

Small Learning Community 84.2 IS 911111·8131112 523.518 239.309 (285.385) (46.016) 
Small Learning Community, Carryover 84.2 IS 911/10·8131111 369.515 !118,7661 289.117 (l10.3511 

Small Learning Community Subtotal !178,766l 528.426 1395.736l (46.076l 

SaCeSchools 84.186 911111·8131112 1,454,223 391,401 (1.012.133 ) 383 (674.949) 
SaCeSchool:t 84.186 911110·8131111 1,454,223 (1,194.914) 1.194,914 
Safe Schouls. Carryover 84.186 911110·8131111 1.454.223 !190.571 l 190,571 

SBCO Schoob Subtotal !1.385485l 1.182,886 !1,072.133) 383 (614.949) 

Total U.S, Deportment oC Educution-Pu.'4,",d~ ThrouSh StBte 
Department oCEducotion and Special Revenue Fund !9.537.21'l 16.852,012 (ll,687,396l 199,385 1364•708) !5,154. 198l $ 519.014 S 91.260 

U,N, Deparbnrnt DC Agrh:ullurt-P .. srd~Through. 
St.k Ikl"arhnent of Education 

Entel"J"lrillCFund: 
School BroakfD!!t Program 10.553 111110·6130111 736.133 (222,978) 222,978 
Schuol Drel1kCnsl Program 10.553 711111-6130112 1,124.538 875.044 (1.124,538) (249.494) 
National School Lunch Progrum 10.555 711110·6130111 2.889.415 (875,945) 815.945 
National School Lunch Program 10.555 711111·6/30112 3.161.815 3.030.663 13,161,815! 1131.152) 

National School Breakfast and LUI1t:h Proscum Sublowl !1.098,9231 5,004,630 !4.886,353 l !980.646) 

Nutional Snack Program 10.000 711/1()..6130/11 192,582 (78.646) 18.M6 
National Snuck Program 10.000 7/1111-6130112 293,621 225.815 !293,62I l !61.806) 

National Snack Prusrom Sublolal 118.M61 304.461 !293,62I l !67.806l 

Food donation program (Ne) 10.555 7/1110·6130111 394,026 12,893 (12.893) 
Food donalion pco,rBm (NC) 10.555 711111·6130/12 115,431 115.431 !115. 142l 289 

Food Donalion Program Subtotal 12.893 115,431 !128.0351 289 

Total U.S. Deportment DC Agriculture and 
Enlerpri .. Fund 1I· 1M,676) 5.424.522 !5.308.009) 11.048,452) 289 

TotolFcdcrolAwardK IIO,833,298l S S 30,384.593 S pS 147,410! $ 199.385 S \364.1081 s 16,378.001! $ 519.303 S 97.260 

HC .. non .. caMh eXl1CnditurcI 
See accompa"ylng 1Iole.f 10 ,u:heJultJJ o/expemlllu1'ft.' olfederal and s/ate a'WardJ. 
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Schedule B 

Trenton School District 

Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

RCl,ayment 

Grant or Balance of Prior June 30, 2012 Mcmo Memo 

State Project Grant Award at Junc Casb Budgetary Cancellations! Years' (Accounts Dcferred Duc to (Budgetary Cumulative 

Statc GrantorlProgram Titlc Number Period Amount 30,2011 Received EXl!endltures Adjustments Balances Receivable} Re,'enue Grantor Reccivablel Expcndltures 

State DellRrtmeot of Education 
General Fund: 

Equalization Aid 495-034-5120-078 7/1111-6/30112 189,978,935 173,110,186 (189,978,935) (16,868,749) (189,978,935) 

Transportation Aid 495-034-5120-014 711111-6/30/12 2,490,6J() 2,241,549 (2,490,610) (249,061) (2,490,61U) 

Special Education Categorical Aid 495-034-5120-089 711111-6/30/12 7,894,335 7,104,901 (7,894,335) (789,434) (7,894,335) 

Security Aid 495-034-5120.084 7/1111-6/30/12 4,943,805 4,449,425 (4,943,805) (494,380) (4,943,805) 

Adjustment Aid 495-034-5120·085 711/11-6/30/12 22,599,881 20,339,893 (22,599,881 ) (2,259,988) (22,599,881) 

Extraordinary Aid 100-034·5120-473 711/11-6130/12 848,969 (848,969) (848,969) (848,969) 

Additional Non Public Transportation Aid N/A 7/1111-6/30/12 32,083 (32,083) (32,083) (32,083) 

Anti·Bullying Bill of Rights Act N/A 711111-6/30/12 6,928 6,928 (6,928) (6,928) 

Demonstrably Effective Program Aid 495~)34-5064-002 Indefinite 5,221,821 22,075 (22,075) 

Additional Non Public Transportation Aid N/A 7/1/10-6130/11 36,780 (36,780) 36,780 
TPAF-Social Security reimbursements 495~134·5095-002 711110-6130/11 5,870,842 (296,579) 296,579 
TPAF·Social Security reimbursements 495-O34-5095~)02 711111-6130/12 5,993,077 5,680,328 (5,993,077) (312,749) (5,993,077) 

Equalization Aid 495~)34·5120-O78 711110-6/30/11 189,406,692 (16,335,512) 16,335,512 
Transportation Aid 495-034.5120-014 7/1110-6130/11 2AIO,306 (241,031) 241,031 
Special Education Categorical Aid 495-034-5120-089 711110-6130/11 7,614,973 (761,497) 761,497 
Security Aid 495~)34-5120-O84 7/1110-6130/11 5,166,860 (516,685) 516,685 
Adjustment Aid 495-034-5120-085 7/1110-6130111 10,763,658 (1,076,366) 1,076,366 
Extraordinary Aid 100'()34·5120-473 711/10-6130/11 930,911 (930,911) 930,911 
Homeless Tuition Reimbursement N/A 711/10-6130111 67,331 (67331l 67331 

Total General Fund (20 240617l 233 195902 (234788623l (22 U75l (1193801l (20 661,612l (234,788,623 l 

Special Revenue Fund: 
Preschool Education Aid 495~)34·5120~)86 711111-6/30/12 26,910,920 24,108,722 (25,900,053) 24,232 1,035,099 (2,802,198) (25,900,U53) 

Preschool Education Aid 495 .. 034·5 120~)86 711110-6/30/11 26,747,826 (2,625,941) 2,625,941 
Preschool Education Aid 495·U34·5 I 20-086 711110-6/30/12 26,747,826 1,412,806 1,412,8U6 

Preschool Education Aid 495-034·5120~)86 711109-6/30112 26,591,862 1,250,698 (1,250,698) (1,25U,698) 

New Facilities Funding 495·()34·5120~)49 711106-6/30107 1,510,896 219,097 (219,097) 

New Facilities Funding 495·034-5120~)49 7/1107-6/30/08 389,103 55,487 (55,487) 
Refugee Children N/A 7III08-Completion 68,750 1,997 1,997 
Refugee Children N/A 711/06-Completion 95,S37 10,250 (IO,250) 
School Based Youth Services Program N/A 7I1I11-Completion 432,573 383,489 (432,573) 12,131 (36,953) (432,573) 
School Based Youth Services Program N/A 7I1I1O-Completion 498,638 (22,692) 22,692 
School Based Youth Services Program N/A 7I1109-Completion 528,U28 482 (482) (482) 
Governor's School of Excellence Grant N/A 7/1105-Completion 25,000 (1,843) (1,843) 
Teacher Inquiry Project Program N/A 7/1108-Completion 3,688 (3,688) (3,688) 
NJSCC Robbins Design Competition N/A 7/1I05·Completion 96,()0() 3,978 3,978 
NJFamilyCare N/A 8/1109-6/30/10 2S,OOU (S,U80) (S,080) 
Matrix N/A 7I1106-Completion 14U,OOO 8,054 8,054 
Governor's Grant N/A 7I1I06-6130/U7 471 (471) (471) 
i3 Reading Recovery N/A 71111 I-Completion 63,750 63,750 (22,500) 41,250 (22,SUO) 

New Jersey Non-Public Aid 
NP Auxiliary Services: 

Compensatory Education 100~)34·S 120~)67 711110-6/30/11 8,453 8,453 (8,453) 

Non·Public Textbook Aid 1O()~)34·5120-O64 7I1111-6/3UII2 2,786 2,786 (2,192) 594 (2,192) 
Non-Public Textbook Aid IOO-034·512U-064 711110-6/30/11 5,513 172 (172) 
Non-Public Nursing Services Aid 100-O34·512()~)70 711111-6/30/12 3,980 3,980 (3,742) 238 (3,742) 
Non-Public Nursing Services Aid lOO·()34-5120~)70 711110-6/30/11 6,533 392 6,141 P92l 6,141 
Tolal Special Revenue Fund 312,151 27,211,360 (27,612,240) 42,504 (293,851) (48,035) 2,503,184 6,973 (2,8U2,198) (27,612,240) 

State Del,artment of Agriculture 
Enterprise Fund: 

Slate School Lunch Program H)()~) 10-3350-023 7I1/10-6/3()/11 62,281 (22,080) 22,U8U 
Slate School Lunch Program 1O()~1l0·3350~)23 7/1111-6/30112 78,849 63.757 (78,849) (lS,Un) (78,849) 

Tolal Enterprise Fund (22 U80l 85837 (78849l !IS o92l !,8.849l 
Total State Awards 1199505461 260493099 1262479712l 20429 12938SIl !l256928l 2.503,184 s 6973 $ p3463.810) (262.479712) 

N/A • Information not available. 
See accompanying notes to schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards, 
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1. General 

Trenton School District 

Notes to Schedules of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

K-5 
p. 1 

( continued) 

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance 
present the activity of all federal award and state financial assistance programs of the Board of 
Education, Trenton School District. The Board of Education is defined in Note 1 to the District's 
basic financial statements. All federal awards and state financial assistance received directly 
from federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial assistance passed 
through other government agencies are included on the schedules of expenditures of federal 
awards and state financial assistance. 

2. Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of financial awards and assistance are presented 
using the modified accrual basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the 
food service fund, which are presented using the accrual basis of accounting and those recorded 
in the special revenue fund, which are presented using the budgetary basis of accounting. These 
bases of accounting are described in Note 1 to the District's basic financial statements. The 
information on these schedules are presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some 
amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented, or used in the 
preparation of, the basic financial statements. 

3. Relationship to Basic Financial Statements 

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with amounts reported in the District's 
basic financial statements. The basic financial statements present the general fund and the 
special revenue fund on a GAAP basis. The special revenue fund is presented in the 
accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which recognizes 
encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis 
does not. Budgetary comparison schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special 
revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is 
permitted by law or grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP 
reporting, revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have been 
made. The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual 
basis with the exception of the revenue recognition of the last state aid payments in the current 
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Notes to Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
and State Financial Assistance (continued) 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

3. Relationship to Basic Financial Statements (continued) 

budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-4.2. For GAAP purposes, those 
payments are not recognized until the subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and· 
recording of the last state aid payments in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund also 
recognizes the last state aid payments in the current budget year, consistent with N.J.S.A. 
18A:22-4.2. 

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is ($1,730,521) for 
the general fund and ($725,479) for the special revenue fund. 

See the Note to Required Supplementary Information (C-3) for a reconciliation of the budgetary 
basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the General and Special Revenue Funds. 
Federal awards and state financial assistance revenues, including those contributed to school 
based budgets, are reported in the District's basic financial statements on a GAAP basis as 
follows: 

Federal State Total 

General fund $ 8,152,005 $240,912,974 $249,064,979 
Special revenue fund 11,523,203 27,009,935 38,533,138 
Capital projects fund 1,388,582 1,388,582 
Enterprise fund 5,308,009 78,849 5,386,858 
Total financial award revenues $24,983,217 $269,390,340 $294,373,557 
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Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Donation Program represent current year 
value received and current year distributions respectively. TP AF Social Security contributions 
represent the amount reimbursed by the State for the employer's share of social security for 
TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2012. 

The post retirement pension and medical benefits received on-behalf of the District for the year 
ended June 30, 2012 amounted to $7,854,872. Since on-behalf post retirement pension and 
medical benefits are paid by the State directly, these expenditures are not subject to a Single 
Audit in accordance with New Jersey OMB's Circular 04-04 and are not reported on the 
Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance, as directed by the funding agency. 

5. Adjustments 

All adjustments represent cancellations of prior year receivables or encumbrances. 

Schoolwide Program Funds 

School wide programs are not separate Federal programs as defined in OMB Circular A-133; 
amounts used in schoolwide programs are included in the total expenditures of the program 
contributing the funds in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. The following 
program is included in schoolwide programs in the District. 

Title I $ 2,800,632 

New Jersey Schools Development Authority (NJSDA) Funds 

The NJSDA is administering and constructing projects on behalf of the District. These 
expenditures are not subject to a Single Audit in accordance with New Jersey OMB's Circular 
04-04 and therefore are not reported on the Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards, as 
directed by the funding agency. The NJSDA expenditures incurred for the year ended June 30, 
2012 amounted to $1,388,582. 
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Trenton School District 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Part I - Summary of Auditors' Results 

Financial Statement Section 

Type of auditor~' report issued: 

Internal control over fmancial reporting: 

Material weakness( es) identified? 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

Federal Awards Section 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A 
and Type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major 
programs: 

Internal control over major programs: 

Material weakness( es) identified? 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with Circular A -133 
(Section .510(a))? 

Unqualified 

Yes x 

Yes x 

Yes x 

$754,422 

Yes X 

Unqualified 

Yes X 

Yes X 

Yes X 

K-6 
p. 1 

(continued) 

No 

None 
Reported 

No 

No 

No 

None 
Reported 

No 

180 



Trenton School District 

K-6 
p.2 

(continued) 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Part I - Summary of Auditors' Results 

Federal Awards Section (Continued) 

Identification of major programs: 

CFDA Numbers 
84.410 

10.553/10.555 

Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
Education Jobs 

National School Breakfast and Lunch Cluster 
and Food Donation Program 
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Trenton School District 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Part I - Summary of Auditors' Results (continued) 

State Awards Section 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A 
and Type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major 
programs: 

Internal control over major programs: 

Material weakness( es ) identified? 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with NJOMB 
Circular 04-04? 

$3,000,000 

Yes x 

Unqualified 

Yes x 

Yes x 

Yes x 

K-6 
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( continued) 

No 

No 

None 
Reported 

No 

State Program Numbers Name of State Program or Cluster 
495-034-5120-089 Special Education Categorical Aid 
495-034-5120-084 Security Aid 
495-034-5120-078 Equalization Aid 
495-034-5120-085 Adjustment Aid 
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Part II - Schedule of Financial Statement Findings 

K-6 
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(continued) 

No financial statement findings noted that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 

183 



Trenton School District 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Part III - Schedule of Federal Awards and State Financial 
Assistance Findings And Questioned Costs (continued) 

K-6 
p.5 

No Federal or State award findings or questioned costs noted that are required to be reported in 
accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04. 
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Princeton Regional School District 

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings 

Year ended June 30, 2012 
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